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PKF R.S. Bernaldo & Associates PKF

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Mo, 54 Mational Road

Dampal [-A, Pulilan

Bulacan

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AGRINURTURE, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES (the "Group™), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statemeants of
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated
statements of cash flows for the years then ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policias,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the yvears then ended December 31, 2022,
2021 and 2020 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (FFRSs).

Hasis far Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs].
Cur responsibilities under those standards are further describad in the Awvditor's
Responsibiities for the Audit of the Consofidated Financial Staterments section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requiremants that are
relevant to our audits of the consclidated financial statements in Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other aethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics, We belisve that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our opinion.
Koy Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These mattars were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated fimancial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Awdit Matier T
The Risk

Conszolidation Process

The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
Agrinurture, Inc. and its Subsidiaries. The Group’s consolidation process is a key audit matter
because of the complexity of the process which involves identifying and combining of like
itemns in the financial statements of the Group and subsidiaries, and identifying and eliminating
intercompany transactions and balances to properly reflect the consolidated financial position
and its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows in accordance with
PFRSs.

Dur Response

Qur audit procedure involves obtaining an understanding of the Group's corporate structure
and its consolidation process and policy, such as identifying intercompany transactions and
reconciliation of intercompany balances. We checked the Group’s combination of like itams of
assets, liabilities, equity, income, costs and expenses, and cash flows of the Parent Company
with those of the subsidiaries, We checked the appropriateness of the intercompany
elimination entries of the carrying amount of the Parent Company’s investments in each
subsidiary and the Group’s portion of equity of each subsidiary, and the recognition of the
noncontrofling interest. We further checked the elimination in full of intercompany assets and
liabilities including income, costs and expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions
involving companies within the Group. We also evaluated whether uniform accounting policies
for like transactions and events are adopted by all entities within the Group in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. We further evaluated the sufficiency of the disclosures in
the Group consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matrer 2

The Risk
Accounting for Investments in Foreign Subsidiarics

The Group has investments in foreign subsidiaries which account for 58.44% of the Group's
total assets and 56.B0% of the Group's total revenues. The accounting for these investments
is significant to our audit because of the relative size of the amounts included in the
consolidated financial statements and the involvement of compenent auditors.



Qur Responso

Wa sent out instructions to the component auditors to perform an audit on the relevant
financial information for the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. These
instructions require the component auditors to discuss the scope of their work, their risk
assagssment procedures, audit strategies and reporting requirements. We obtained
understanding of the component auditors” audit planning and execution strategies in
addressing key audit matters significant to the overall audit of the Group's consolidated
financial statemants. We reviewed their audit deliverables, cbtained relevant conclusion
staterments related to their audit proceduras and assessed the impact of these statements to
the overall audit of the Group's consolidated financial statements., We also obtained the
audited financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries, verified whether there is modification
in the audit reports, assessed whether the accounting policies are consistent with that of the
Group, and adjusted any differences in accounting policies to conform with the reporting
framework applied by the Group in preparing the consolidated financial statements. We also
performed tests on certain account balances to validate audit conclusions,

Key Audit Marter 3
Expected Credit Losses

The significant application of judgement and estimates of the management in formulating the
ECL model of the Group made it significant to our audit. These kay matters include how
management defines what comprises default, identifies and groups credit risk exposures,
detarmines the method to estimate lifetime ECL, determines assumptions used in formulating
the ECL model and incorporates forward-looking Information in calculating ECL.

Our Response

Our audit procedures include the following:

Obtained an undarstanding of the Group’s methodologies used for different credit exposures
to determine if these are applicable to the requirements of PFAS 9 to reflect an unbiased and
probability-weighted outcome and the acceptable forward-looking information.
We a) compared the definition of default with the historical analysis of accounts and crodit
risk management policies in place; b) assessed the Group's segmentation of its credit risk
exposures based on similarity of cradit risk characteristics; ¢) checked the methodology used
in applying the simplified approach by evaluating the key inputs, assumptions, and formulas
used; d) tested loss given default by inspecting historical recoveries including the timing,
related direct costs, and writeoffs; &) evaluated the forward-looking information used for
overlay through statistical test and corroboration using publicly available information; )
recalculated impairment provisions on 8 sample basis; hl compared the results with the
allowance disclosed for credit losses using the ECL model in the consolidated financial

statements.



Key Audit Matter 4
The Rigk
Recoverability of Advances to 8 Stockholder

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group has outstanding advances to a stockholder
amounting to B255,683,304 and P275,733,442, respectively. This is significant to our audit
because the assessment of recoverability of the advances requires a high level of management
judgment and the estimation of future cash repayments. The Group's disclosure about the
transaction and recoverability of the amounts are included in Mote 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our Response

Our audit procedures focused on the evaluation of management’s assessment on the
recoverability of the advances to a stockholder. We obtained confirmation from the
stockholder for the acknowledgement of the liability to the Group, the purpose of the
advances, and repayment terms that covers the timing of future cash flows and manner of

payment.
Fey Audit Matter B
The Risk

Fair Value of Biological Assets

The Group's biological assets are accounted for at fair value. The carrying value of the Group's
biclogical assets amounted PS4,335,337 as at December 31, 2022 and the Group's fair value
adjustment on biological assets for the year then ended in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income amounted to P2,020,.2594, The valuation of biclegical assets is
significant to our audit because the estimation process inmwvalves significant manageméant
gstimate. The key assumptions for the fair valua of the biological assets include the agricultural
products future selling prices, estimated yield and future growing costs.

The disclosures on the fair value of biclogical assets are included in Notes 4 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Qur Response

We obtained an understanding of management’s fair value measurement methodolegy and
their process in valuing the biclogical assets. We tested the key assumptions used in the
valuation, which include the future selling prices, estimated yield and future growing costs,
by comparing them to external data such as selling prices in the principal market and historical
information. We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures on the assumptions
underlying the measurement of these biolegical assets,

Other nformation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information incleded n SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2022, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s

report.



Our opinion on the consolidated financial staterments does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or owr knowledge obtained in the audits or otherwise appears to be
matarially misstated.

Other Matter

Tha financial staterments of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020,
were audited by another auditor who expressed an ungualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements on report dated May 24, 2021,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Starements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRSs and for such internal control as Managament
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consclidated financial statements that
ara fres from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
80,

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing Group's financial reporting
process,

Auditors * Responsibiities for the Audit of the Consofidated Financial Statemonts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
gtatemants as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemants can arise from frawd or ammor
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
axpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
fimancial stataments.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audits. We also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatemant resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



* QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

* Conclude on the appropriatensss of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors” report. However, future events or conditions may cause Group to cease to
cantinue 8s a going concernn.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
prasentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. Wa are responsible for the direction, suparvision and performance
of the group audit. Wae remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audits and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audits.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably ba thought to bear on our independance,
and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those
matters that were of most significance in the audits of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors® report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
ba expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resufting in this independent auditors’ report s
REAN G. ABALOS.
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AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMEER 31, 2022 AND 2021

{Amounts in Phillppine Pesos)
Mobies 2022 2021
ASSETS
Current Asscts
Cazh B 98,774,860 80,195,232
Trade and othoer receivables = net 7 569,837,508 741,839 091
Due from: related parties = nat 21 E08, 058,526 551,500, 9568
Inwventaries B 1,369,818,823 1,317,725,194
Prepayments and other current assats - met 5 175,767,888 191,822 938
Total Current Assats 2,823 165,705 2,883,483 421
Honcurrent Assots
Financial assets at fair value through othar
comgrehansive incame [FYOCT) 10 48,233,200 47,801,400
PFroparty and equipment = net 11 458,431,117 614,541,795
Investment property 1 1,349,544,703 1,188,425,936
Intangible assets - net 13 157,355,377 167,174, 787
Right-of-use assets - net 27 59,522,071 79,686,049
Binlogical assets 14 54,335,337 55,301,732
Deferred tax asset i 11,772,444 10,009
Daposits and cther noncurrent assets - net 15 898, 750,863 BOG 196,918

Tokal Honcurrent Assats

2,037,030,112 3,053,138, 126

lllﬁlilﬂél'.l' SEQIEIEI 1i54?

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 605,444 951 611,431,024

Barmpwings i7 832,970,630 37,995,081

Lesse llabilitias 27 318 472 201, 160

Due to related parties 21 170,809,688 154,989 542

w 2 467,226 4,207 BD1
Total Current Liabilities mn:,gm:ﬂ? Il?ﬂﬂlli Mﬂ

Moncurrent Liabilities

Borrowings — net af current portion 17 - 29,373 043

Lease liabilities - net of cwrrent portion 27 - 318,472

Retiremant benefit lability 25 22,723,726 19,275,038

Defarred tax Habdlites EE_ 3 lllﬂ!-'?!:'! 30,606,569
Total Monourrent Liabilities 53,993 459 79,573,132
Total Liabilities 1,656,004,426 1,766,486,730

{Forwand)



{Carryforward)

Hotos 2022 2021
Equity
Capital stock P1 par valua
Common shares - P1 par value
Authorized = 1,500,000,000 and 2,000, 000, D
shares i 2022 and 2021
Subscribed = 1,034,445, 888 shares in 2022 and
2021
{net of subscriptions recelvable at par valve of
P191,615,200 in 2022
and P193,672,800 in 2021} 19 832,831,688 832,831,688
Preferred shares = PO, 10 par value
Authorized = 400,000,000 shares and nil In 20232
and 2021, respectively
Subscribed - 400,000,000 shares and nil in 2022
and 2021, respectively 19 40,000,000 -
Additional pakd-in capital 19 3,602,050,960 3,602 050,960
Daficit (1,847,102,815) (1,848 388,705}
Hat cumulative remeasuremant galn
on retirement banefits 25 855,437 1,785
Foseign currency translation resarse 269,183,381 276,545,517
Revahuation surplus - nat of deferred tax 11 76,060,652 B4,611,960
Noncontralling interest 30 1,791,221 118 1,240,481,612
Total Equity 4,205,100,391 4,148,134 817
5.861,1 B17 5936 621,547

S et mpaeing ONR RO COAtORTanAT Francu' Ridedmali



AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 3023, T021 AND 2030

fAmoumnts In Philigpine Peos)
Motes 2022 2021 2020
NET REVINUE 18 3,836,827 479 4,549, 368,378 &, 400, T, 98
COST OF SALES i I ATT WAL 0T 4055 419,257 A, BT, 00, T2
GROSS PROFIT 408,581,386 493,859,131 511,7F9,210
GEMIRAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 23 A5L.700.091 365,349, 837 45, 1 79, 055
DPERATING PROFIT 57,277,495 128,519,459 66,510,155
OTHER INCOME [CHARGES)
Ohier income = net 24 010,087 1, P, S04 T8 EXT AT
Imiterst incoma 6,37 15,335 i L | 102,371
iGain on change in fair value of investment propemy S = Q0E, T45, 817 "
Gain on changa in fair vale of bislogical 334ty T 2,020,294 17,612,321
11,053,696 1,008, 140,060 78,739,544
EEMANTE CITY 1727 E1.087, 748 41,095, TG 42,077, 760
FROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10,343,443 1,094, 664,173 53,261,009
IMCOME TAX EXPEMSE
Currsht 15,504,340 35,706, a8 44, 200,430
Betered {7,751,230) 1,008,125 {8,001,508)
HET PROFIT 23 1,057 861, 300 1 ald
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
Reciassificeble to proflt or loss
Exchange diffirences on Eransiation
S ETHON DOErpliony ALpoages LSS MEIS0 IRITRIEE
Nob reciassiTcable to prodfit or foss
Rervakaation inorement = niet of deferned tax 11 (8,551, 308) 64, 225,041 10,306,915
Bemeaparenpnt g3in (Iofs] on retirgmnent Denefiy i3 L -5 FL [543, 1990 :
(7,697, 656) 182 842 2 a15
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME II,‘.III-?‘:H. 1|2!§-| IIHIE!H}! %1!&1!!
Met profit aftributabls bor
Equity holders of the Parent Campany (10,559,007 ) £19,001 454 {36,830, 260
Hpnegperoling iedgript ILD90.310 SO ReG ___ SSIPSEED
3323 1,057 861, 300 !.-E-Ell:lll
Taotal comprobhenaive Indama
abtributs e bo:
Equity holders of the Parent Compary 25,967, 747 BEE, 03 B {1,865 451)
HNenconkroBing interest (9,260,494) 451,385 474 60,790,560
16,707,153 1,373, 30, 33 50,125,118
Basdc amd dilutesd earnings [(loss) per shara
attributable to eguity holders
i3t PRrent Company 30 {9.91) o5 (03]

Lep dccorraanying Mot (o Conscldebed Firanohd Serbemerb



AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOiit THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, T0:33, 2021 AND 30320

{Amauate in Miiippine PesoR)
Hirirs 023 2021 2020
CAPITAL STOCK 19
Common shaves - P par valug
Balance &t Beginning and arsd of year 832,831,688 830,774,088 B30, 774, 28
- 2 057,600 =
Balance st end of yosr B32,831,688 B3 831,688 B30, 774,088
Frefered shares - PO I0 pav valkee
Balance at teginining and end of year . s
—t Y QUG EhY YRR 40,000,000 =
Balance st end of yese 40,000,000 _ -
ADDITIONAL PATID-TN CAPITAL 19
Badance st beginning of year 3,602,050, 060 3,567,001, 760 3,547,000, 60
Adggiony guring the yanr - 34,979,200 E
[Batance at end of yebr 050,560 502 7,071,760
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year {1,848 388, 708) {2, 386,088, 752} {2,350, 158, 483)
Kal profit (loss) (10,559, 907) 529,011 454 {0, B30, 165
Other comprehersive income 11,845 877 g 568,593 -
Balance at end of yesr (1,84 1 1 Fi
HET CUMULATIVE REMEASUREMENT GAIN
OM RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Balance 8 begirsting of yaar 1,785 3,974,545 J974. 345
prepppuraanant: gl () a2 L0873, 360] :
Balance ot end of year 25 __#53,437 1,785 3,974,345
FOXREIGM CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE
Balance abf baginning of yasr 234 545,517 3,835,625 [10B52 274)
Exchange @ifferences during the year 32,637,834 337 719 E97 14,777,899
Balsnce sk and of yaar TED, 351 235 545 S17 3825 635
REVALUATION SURPLUS - NET OF
DEFERRED TAX
Balance at beginning of year 84,611,960 210,386,519 2
Ravaluation gain 3,394,589 T3, 793,654 20,306,919
Lrafict {11 Ba% @77) {5, 5d0 So%)
Blsrce at end of year 11 76,060,652 B, 511,960 20,386,919
HONCONTROLLING INTEREST
Blllf-c:ull baginning of year 1,140,485,612 TR0, 138 TEA,FO5, 550
HMMHHHM 13,060,310 S2002% B4E 53,393,263
Exchange d®ference on translstion
of Foresfgn operations (22,310.804) [77.374,734) 7,397,186
R rirthrgirrant b - (69,638} -
Balance at end of year 1 133L,22,118 1240481612 789,006,138
TOTAL EI.I]"I"I" L] 1 391 4. 148 134 AL 7 140, 123




AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2027, 2021 AND 0203

[Amounts i Phlippiae Pesos)

Notes 2022 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before imoome Bax 10,340,443 1,054, 664,173 23,260,939
Adpsmants for:
DCepreciatioen and anforiiza i 11,1327 BE, 719,325 BOBBEG 5T S 92,703,240
Flangnoe Coot 12y 57987, 748 41,995 386 43,077 60
Prindigion for setirgment benefits 2% 3,566,027 3144, 024 1,554,161
Resersal of allrmancs For mpairmsed 29 & (B D4a5, T5I) =
Gain an PV asset valuation 12 = [908,745,817) =
Empairent and write-olf of ssets 7.9,13.21.23 = - B0,625,068
Gaim on foregone lease 27 = . (L A70,017)
Enterest imoome 6,27 (15, 305) {23,358} [102,373)
Gaiy &= change iry Tair vabse of Beslogical afget 14 {2,020, 294) [17812,320}) -
— Unraalized faenign axchange logses (gaing) - nat L {7,608,177) 3,014,380 261,275
Cpserating profit belors working capital changaes 140,984, 037 217,377,252 248,510, 703

Decrease (Scresse) in:

Trade and cther recelvables I8,.9%9 TS0 {155,505,007) [ 10,559,970}

[rventories (74,684, 301) {145,930, 775) 61,590, 044

Prepayments and other cufnent assets 48, 285, 760 (7,183,112} 9,204, 348

Biglagical sty 6,986, 680 = =
e s s g 189 (30,660,774) (207,061,552}
Ket cach provided by (used in) operations 437, 323,044 {143, 00T, 404) 104, 54, 400
[nvroimee: Canes I:d = (17, 334,915) (41, 145,338) (60,530,854}
Het cash flows proviced by (used in)

cperaling sctivities A0 004, 364 j!ﬂ],]‘li,l-lﬁt lwlgﬂ
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cofllpctions rectiaid from: 21

Ralated parties BT, 016,907 23,795,300 17,525, 74k

Sbockboidary 64, 150,459 F21,347 457 10,80, 529
Advances made b 1 |
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AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NHOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at DECEMBER 21, 2022 AND 2021 and for Each of the Years then Ended

December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020
[Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations

AgriNurture, Inc, (the "Group®) was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on February 4, 1997 ko engage in the manufacturing, producing, growing,
buying, selling, distributing, marketing at wholesale only insofar as may be permitted by law,
all kinds of goods, commodities, wares and merchandise of every kind and description and
to enter into all kKinds of contracts for the export, import, purchase, acquisition, sale at
wholesale only and other disposition for its own account as principal or In representative
capacity as manufacturer's representative, up consignment of all kinds of goods, wares,
merchandise or products, whether natural or artificial.

In March 2009, the SEC approved the change in the Group’s primary purpose to engage in
corporate farming, in all its branches for the planting, growing, cultivating and producing of
crops, plants and fruit bearing trees, of all kinds and in connection to engage in agri-tourism
and other pleasurable pursuits for the enjoyments and appreciation of mother nature and
ecology and to engage in the establishment, operation and maintenance of equipment,
structures and facilities for the preservation, conservation and storage of foods, grains and
supplies, like cold storage and refrigeration plants.

The Group's secondary purpose include, among others, to purchase, acquire, lease, sell and
convey real properties such as land, buildings, factories and warehouses and machines,
equipment and other personal properties as may be necessary or incidental to the conduct
of the corporate business, and to pay in cash, shares of capital stock, debentures and other
evidences of indebtedness, or other securities, as may be deamed expedient for any business
or property acquired by the Group,

The Group and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group®) are involved in various
agro-commercial businesses such as export trading and distribution of fruits and vegetables,
retail franchising and real estate,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
assumes that the Group will be able to continue increpsing revenues and Improving
operations despite losses from operations up to 2016. While the Group has incurred
accumulated losses of P1,847,102,815 and P1,848,388,705 a5 at December 31, 2022 and
2021, however, on March 27, 2023, the Parent Company's application for equity
restructuring to wipe-out the deficit as of December 31, 2021 in the amount of
P1,628,045,535 against the additional pald-in capital (APIC) of P3,602,050,960 was
approved considering that all the requirements have been complied with provided that the
remaining APIC of P1,974,005,425 cannot be applied for future losses that may be incurred
by the Parent Company without prior approval of the SEC, The Group’s management
assessed that the going concern assumption remains to be appropriate since the Group has
been continuously growing revenue and improving profitability and is continuing to expand
its core business and increase the distribution (fruits, vegetables and rice) and export sales
channels, Its retail arm is expanding the franchise network with steps to cover not only the
Philippines on a national basis but overseas as well. The Group has started an active
campaign to gain new and recover clients through marketing and selling activities in the
Philippines and overseas. Part of these activities include looking for more opportunities in
the greater Middie East, China and Asian markets.



Also, with the addition of Zhongshan Fucang Trading Co., to the Group in 2017, it will
continuously deliver exceptional quality goods and services and improve its present business
activities through commaodity trading, real estate development, and set up of new platforms.
The Group shall continue to grow organic business and expand new materials with new
product introductions in the coming years to completely wipe out accumulated losses,

The consolidated fimancial statements do not indicate any adjustments to reflect possible
future effects of recoverability and classification of assets or the amount and classification
of labilities that may result should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
Moreover, most loans were already converted to term loans in order to increase the flexibility
of the Group's capital and minimize the immediate impact on operational cash flows.
As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group's current assets already exceeded its current
liabilities by P1,221,154,738 and P1,174,568,813, respectively. Further, the Group launched
its own e-commerce platform through its mobile application and ANI Express website where
customers can order fresh produce, canned beverages, rice and other essential goods for
delivery to customers. The Group |5 also launching new products such as Plant Based Meat,
MNon-Dairy Ice Cream, Big Chill Healthy Drinks in cans for local and export distribution. These
developments are expected to contribute to a positive growth in the future for the Group's
revenue and net earnings.

On March 27, 2023, the Parent Company’s application for equity restructuring to wipe-out
the deficit as of December 31, 2021 in the amount of P1,628,045,535 against the additional
pald-in capital {APIC) of P3,602,050,960 was approved considering that all the reguirements
have been complied with provided that the remaining APIC of P1,974,005,425 cannot be
applied for future losses that may be incurred by the Parent Company without prior approval
of tha SEC.

The following are the recent developments to continuous business expansion:

«  On December 20, 2019 and September 9, 2020, the BOD and the shareholders of the
Group, respectively, have approved the issuance of shares to Plentex Philippines, Inc.
(Plentex). Plentex has subscribed for 6,172,800 shares and the Group has agreed to
issue the same at a value of P1E per share which is to be paid through the issuance of
30,000,000 shares of Plentex Limited.

Plentex is a Philippine Corporation that is developing a substantial large scale agri-
businesscenter in Tacloban, Leybe. Plentex is a subsidiary of Plentex Limited, unlisted
Australian public company in Vickoria, Australia.

As at date of report, the 6,172,800 shares were subscribed and 2,057,600 shares wire
paid.

=  On February 1, 2021, the Group entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA")
with the Unified Bagobo-Tagabawa Tribe ("UBTT") and the National Commission on
Indigenous Peoples ("NCIP”) to promote Inclusive agricultural and economic growth
by pursuing land productivity thru the development of rice and corn plantation in
Bansalan, Davao del Sur. The Group will invest in the development, cperation and
management of the rce and corn plantation while the UBTT will be entitled to an
annual royalty fiee Annual MNet Praofit share in the project. Further, all employment and
labor requirements of the project shall be primarily sourced from the UBTT. NCIP shall
monitor and evaluate compliance of the parties in the terms and conditions of the
MOA. The Group, along with the project shall develop programs on health, skills
development and afternative livelihood for the communities. The parties, In
collaboration with other national government agencies shall likewise conduct tree
planting activities in at least two thousand (2,000) hectares of land.,

As at date of report, the parties have complied with the requirements to fully execute
the agreement, including but not limited to the Free and Prior Informed Consent [FPIC),
as indicated by the issuance of a Certification Precondition by the NCIP. An operation
team has been set up to kick off the launch of the said project.



On February 23 2021, Ocean Bicchemistry Technology Research, Inc. ("OBTRI™) and
Greenergy Holdings, Inc. ("GHI™) have entered into a subscription agreement for the
issuance of 37,500 common shares of OBTRI at par value of P100 per share for a total
aggregate wvalue of P3,750,000. OBTRI Is a corperation primarily engaged In
manufacturing and trading, and is 51% owned by M2000 Imex Company, Inc, ("IMEX")
prior to GHI's subscription while M2000 Imex Company, Inc. ("IMEX") is a8 whilly-
owned subsidiary of ANI.

#As at date of report, the subscription agreement has been executed and the foregoing
transaction completed.

On May 12, 2021, the Group received a Medium Green Rating from Cicero Shades of
Green for its Green Band offering. Cicero Shades of Green is a subsidiary of the climate
research institute CICERO. It provides independent, research-based ewvaluations of
green bond investment frameworks to determine their environmental strength.
Their Second Opiniens are graded Dark Green, Medium Green, Light Green and Brown
to offer imvestors better insight into the environmental quality of green bonds.

The Group has previously secured the authority to issue long term Green Bonds of up
to 75 millian euro with maturity of up to 7 years, including the issuance of commaercial
papers, with terms and conditions to be recommended by management and to be
approved by the BOD. The issuance shall fund the agricultural project expansion of the
Group geared towards climate change adaptation and minimized environmental
footprint.

fs at date of report, the Group Is completing the documentary reguirements and
securing necessary board approval for the incorporation of a wholly-owned forelgn
subsidiary for thie lssuance of green bonds.

On May 12, 2021, the Group has entered Into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU}
with the Department of Agriculture ("DA™) and the Authority of Freeport Area of Bataan
("AFABT). The MOU aims to establish an Agri-Sector Digitalization Program which shall
have a “general purpose and ocbjective of facilitating the implementation and rolling
out of financial inclusion of all stakeholders in the agricultural sector, particularly the
unbanked stakeholders such as the country's farmers and fisherfolk, through a
regulated financial technology platform and licensed virtual currency. The clients of
andfor participants in the financial technology exchange platform and licensed virtual
currency shall be purely Non-Filipinos located outside the Philippines®,

Under the MOU, the Group undertook to perform the following:

I facilitate, together with the DA and AFAB, the implementation of the LANI
e-commerce platform as a fimanclal technology (FinTech) ecosystem for the
country'sfarmers and fsherfolks;

ii. secure a license from AFAB for the issuance and use of Agri Token in the
Freeport Area of Bataan ("FAB™), and upen issuance of said license, allow the
issuance of the Agri Token to the participants of the FinTech ecosystem;

il cause the establishment of a branch of an affiliate bank within FAB upon
approval of the BSP, which shall be the custodian bank for the Agri Token,
and which shall likewise service the banking needs of the locators within FAB;

iv.  establish and secure a license for an AgriXchange Commadities and Futures
Trading Center (“AgriXchange™) with AFAB; and

V. ensure the capability of the Agri¥change to act as a Virtual Currency
Exchange for the conversion of fiat to virtual currencies and vice versa, In
accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations,

The MOU also provided that the Group and the Local Government Units in FAB, with
the support of the DA, shall develop and establish a food terminal, cold/dry storages,
and logistics hub in FAB to boost the country’s food security program. The MOU shall
have immediate effect upon signing by the parties.

Az at date of report, the Group is still in the process of complying with its obligations
under the MOU, including but not limited to securing a license from AFAB to use its
virtual currency.



On February 24, 2020, the Group's BOD approved to accept the Letter of Intent (LOIL)
of Vnesto Capital to finance the expansion project of the Group. Under the LOI,
the Group was eligible to avail up to US$100,000,000 of long-term financing. The
financing shall be a long-term loan with interest pegged at treasury bill plus 3%. After
the acceptance of the LOI, the formal application process shall commence, As at date
of report, the LOI application process s not yet completed.

On February 24, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the subscription of shares of
Binangonan Rural Bank, Inc. (BRB). The subscription is in line with the incdusive growth
thru the establishment of an agricultural ecosystem being envisioned by the Group.
BRE has licensed financial kechnology platforms that can improve the access of Filipino
farmers especially those in the remote ares, to the Agri Agra Micro Financing, As at
date of report, the subscription agreement between the Group and BRB is not yet
completed, Also, the Group is in the process of securing letter of no objection from
BSP to transfer to Greenergy Holdings, Inc.

On March 20, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the amendment of the terms and
conditions of the stock rights offering. It shall have the entitiement ratio of 2.5:1, with
every existing shareholder of 2.5 shares shall be entitled to 1 stock rights share, with
the offer price of P1 par value,

On August 19, 2021, the Group's BOD confirmed the authority to conduct the Stock
Rights Offering of common shares to all eligible sharehotders of the Company at the
entitlernent ratio of 2.5:1 and offer price of P1.00 per share. The number of shares to
be offered shall be 288,000,027,

Az at date of report, the Group is still in the process of application of the Stock Rights
Offer of the 288,000,027 common shares which shall be listed and traded on the
Philippine Stock Exchange.

On March 20, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the amendment in the terms and
conditions of the following issuances and listing of warrants:

a. Issuance and listing of up to 10,000,000 stock warrants in favor of the Group's
employees credit cooperative as approved by the BOD on February 12, 2018.

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average prioe of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underdying commen share upon conversion. Expiry date and
other relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject bo
the approval of the SEC.

b. The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underdying commen share upon conversion. Expiry date and
other rélevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to
the approval of the SEC,

c. Issuance and listing of stock warrants In favor of existing stockholders as of
record date as approved by the BOD on February 12, 2018.

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 yvears from date of issuance, Existing stockholders owning 10
commaon shares as of record date, shall be entitled to 1 warrant. The ratio shall
be 1 warrant equivalent to 1 underlying common share upon conversion. Record
date, expiry date and other relevant terms and conditions shall be determined
by the BOD,



d. Issuance and listing of stock warrants in faver of current directors as approved
by the BOD on February 12, 2018.

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average volume trade of 30 days prior to date of expiration;, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underlying common share upon conversion. Expiry date and
other relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD. Each
director serving at the time of issuance is entitled to up to 100,000 warrants.

On October 10, 2020 and Movember 5, 2021, the Group's BOD and sharehaolders,
respectively, approved the amendment/s to the terms and conditions of the
issuance of warrants to existing shareholders to be bundled to the Company’s
Stock Rights Offering. The issuance to shareholders participating in the Stock
Rights Offering, with every shareholder availing of three (3) Stock Rights, shall
be entitled to one (1) warrant. The ratio shall be one (1) warrant equivalent to
one (1) underlying common share upon conversion, The warranks shall have the
exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the volume weighted average price
of trade fifteen (15) days prior to maturity, to be exercised after five (5) years
from date of listing.

e, Isswance and listing of 10,000,000 stock warrants in favor of ANI Foundation as
approved by the BOD on April 30, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. The ratic shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underying common share upon conversion. Expiry date and
other relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD. The
issuance and listing of the warrants shall be for the purpose of generating funds
for the corporate social responsibility programs of the Group.

On May 5, 2020, the Group has entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the
Department of Agriculture [(*DA"). Under the Agreement, the Group shall be an official
program partner-participant of DA's e-KADIWA ni Ani at Kita Program. As such, thea
Group becomes an online seller of agricultural products,

The DA's e-KADIWA nl Ani at Kita Program s a market system which facilitates the
selling of major agricultural goods at reasonably low prices to the consuming public
through partnership with Local Government Units and the Private Sectors. To further
the services of the KADIWA ni Ani at Kita Program, the DA has launched the e-KADIWA,
an ocnline market portal or platform whereby buyers and sellers of agricultural and
fishery products can transact online,

As at date of report, the Group is actively participating in the foregoing program through
its ANl Express online platform.

On November 26, 2020, the Group has entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
("MOA") with the Philippine International Trading Corporation ("PITC®) to collaborate
on the importation of raw materials to provide healthier and more affordable "BigMa®
Bigas-Mais (rice-corn) blend to the Filipino consumers. The Group is set to locally
produce with its corn contract growers and include in its product portfolio the “BigMa®
brand. The “BigMa®" or Bigas-Mais blend is a Low Glycemic and rich in dietary fiber
staple food alternative for the Filiping consumers, With the production of BigMa, the
Group will be able to reduce carbon foot print, provide more livelihood to local farmers
a5 the source of "Mais”, help the country achieve food-staple sufficiency faster, while
providing a healthier and affordable option to the public.

As at date of report, the Group made its initial shipment through the foregoing
collaboration during the 1st quarter of 2021,



On December 28, 2020, the Group’s BOD approved the acquisition of additional
shareholdings in Fucang Trading Limited (Fucang) from 51% up to 71% for a price to
be determined based on the audited net book value of Fucang as at December 31,
2021. As at date of report, the additional acquisition is not yet completed. Fucang, a
subsidiary, acquired 70% ownership of Guangzhou Lexian Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.
{Lexian} in 2018, a forelgn entity incorporated in China engaged in wholesale trade
(see Note 31).

On October 13, 2018, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement for &
development of the property located in Taytay, Rizal, bisected by the Manggahan
Floodway. The property covers B53 hectares more or less of which is covered by titles
under different names, all of which are either directly or indirectly under the third-
party individual. Each square meter is valued at P1,500. The joint venture shall Include
but not limited to the formation of the following: Phase 1 - Transportation Hub, Phase
2 = Food Terminal and Phase 3 = Property Development Corporation. As at December
31, 2022 and 2021, the Group has made deposits totaling PSOB.7 milllon for the
acquisition to the B59 hectares, corresponding to portions thereof. As at reporting
date, the third party is still completing the titling of the whole portion of the property
to fully execute the joint venture agreement. The parties are in the process of
executing the projects under the Joint Venture Agreement As of reporting pericd, the
masterplan for the design of the food terminal were already completed (see Note 15).

On October 25, 2018, the BOD of the Group authorizes the expansion of business
cperations in Australia through acquisition of existing companies. Accordingly, on
December 28, 2018 the Group made a deposit amounting to AU$172.000 or
P52 million to BSK PTY LTD (see Note 15). The main activity of the Australian
operations is primarily processing of fruit and vegetables for distribution to food
processors, schools, restaurants, mining sites and airlines. As at reporting date, it is
already In the process of finalizing the acquisition agreement.

Group has signed a PL.9 billion deal with a Chinese Company for the purchase of
various agriculture produce particularly tropical fruits, The contract was signed with
SinoChem Group (SinoChem), a Beijing based conglomerate engaged in the
production and trading of chemicals, fertilizers and other agricultural products. Under
the agreement, SinoChem will buy tropical fruits from the Group's contract growers in
the Philippines in the next three years. SinoChem will also provide support through
the supply of affordable fertilizers. The deal aims to provide support to local farmers
and boost country's market access to China.

Due to the health and mobility restrictions brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic,
both parties opted to defer the implementation of the agreement in 2020 and plan to
finalize the terms thereof in 2022, The parties intend to utilize this deal in the BigMa
(rice-corn mix) Project and expansion of banana plantation.

On December 20, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Group approved joint venture or
any similar engagement with Department of Justice through Bureau of Corrections for
the development of at least 2,000 hectares of integrated Agri-Tourism corn plantation
in Palawan, The Group will fund the development while the Bureau of Corrections will
provide the land, The proposed joint venture is intended to expand the Group's
business through corn production and agri-tourism. As at reporting date, the Bureau
of Corrections s awaiting the endorsement of the agreement by the Department of
Justice to finalize the transaction. Also, due to the health and mobility restrictions
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, the implementation of the agreement in
2020 was deferred, However, the parties plan to finalize the terms thereof in 2022,

On Movember 5, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the authority to register, participate,
and appoint a company administrator/s or representative/s in Rice Exchange, which is
a digital marketplace for international rice trading. As at reporting date, the Group s
completing its application for registration.



» On October 10, 2020 and November 5, 2021, the BOD and the shareholders of the
Group, respectively, approved the increase of the Group's authorized capital stock
from P2,000,000,000 to up to PS5,000,000,000. The increase is intended for any future
capital ralsing activitles, This i5 also in anticipation of the issuance of warrants and
stock rights offer of 288,000,027 commean shares from the Group's existing capital
stock.

s 0On November 5, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the subscription of Agrinurture
Development Holdings, Inc. (FADHI") of nine hundred ninety-nine (999) primary
shares of Agrinurture HK Holdings, Ltd. (ANI HK) at par value of USD 1. ANI HEK is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and ADHI is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Greenergy Holdings, Ing.

s On September 7, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the authority to incorporate a
wholly-owned foreign subsidiary, AgriNurture Financial 5.4 r.l. in the Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg, for the Issuance of the long-term green bonds of up to 75 million Euros.
As at date of report, the Group is in the process of incorparating the foreign subsidiary.

On February 24, 2020, the Board has approved the decrease in the par value of the shares
of the Group from one peso (P1.00) to ten centavos (P0.10). The Board has likewise
approved the reclassification of 40 million (40,000,000) unissued common shares with par
value of one peso (P1.00) per share or an aggregate par value of forty million pesos
{A40,000,000) to 400,000,000 voting preferred shares with par value of ten centavos (P0.10)
per share or an aggregate par value of forty million pesos (P40,000,000) subject to the
approval of the SEC.

Upon approval of the SEC, the Group's authorized capital stock will increase to twenty billion
(20,000,000,000) shares for a total par value of two billion peses (P2,000,000,000) which
shall be divided into the following:

a. Common shares, consisting of 19,600,000,000 shares with a par value of ten centavos
(P0.10) per share for a total par value of P1,960,000,000;

b. Preferred shares, consisting of 400,000,000 shares with a par value of ten centavos
(PD.10) per share for a total par value of P40,000,000;

The preferred shares shall have the following rights, privileges, limitaticns and restrictions
which shall also appear on the Certificates of the Preferred Shares of the Corporation:

a. The right to vote and be voted for;

b. The right to receive, out of unrestricted retained eamnings of the Group, participating
dividends at the rate as may be deemed proper by the BOD under the prevailing market
conditions or such other relevant factors as the BOD may consider. Said dividend may
be declared and payable at the discretion of the BOD after taking into account the
Group's eamning, cash flows, financial conditions and other factors as the BOD may
consider relavant;

¢. In the liquidation, dissolution and winding up of the Group, whether voluntary or
otherwise, the right to be paid in full or ratably, insofar as the assets of the Group will
permit, the par value or face value of each preferred share as the BOD may determine
upon thelr issuance;, pus unpaid and acorued dividends up to the current dividend
period, before any assets of the Group shall be pald or distributed ko the holders of the
common shares; and

d. The common shares shall possess all the rights, privileges and prerogatives provided
by law, including the right to vote and be woted for.

The stockholders of the Group shall have no pre-emptive right to subscribe to or purchase
any or all issues or dispositions of shares of any class of the Group.



The change in par value is Intended to increase the number of shares of the Group that will
give more trading opportunities to the shareholders and investors. The decrease in par value
will make the shares more affordable to small investors, hence will be more marketable and
liquid in the market.

The reclassification is intended for any future capital raising activities. The amount to be
raised shall be used as additional working capital and funding for the Group's expansion
project particularly the creation of the Agricultural Ecosystem to benefit local farmers.

As at reporting date, the approval for the decrease in the par value of the shares was deferred
by the stockhaolders.

On November 5, 2021, the Group's BOD confirmed the approval of the reclassification of the
Group's Forty Million (40,000,000) unissued common shares with par value of One Peso
(P1.00) per share or an aggregate par value of Forty Million Pesos (P40,000,000) to
400,000,000 voting preferred shares with par value of P0.10 per share or an aggregate par
value of Forty Million Pesos (P40,000,000), to be subscribed by Earthright Holdings, Inc. The
reclassification of shares was filed, and approved by the SEC on Movember 16, 2022,

The Group's registered principal office address is at No. 54 National Road, Dampol 11-A,
Pulilan, Bulacan,

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and
2021 were authorized and approved for issuance by the Group’s BOD on April 5, 2023.

Basis of Preparation

Thre r:unsulldated ﬁnandal stﬂtcm:nts u'l’ the Gr-nup have been prepared using the historical
cost basis, except for certain financial instruments carried at either amortized cost or at fair
walue, inventories which is carried at lower of cost or net realizable value, biclogical assets
which is presented using the fair value less estimated cost to sell, Investment property which
is presented using the fair value method and property and equipment which is presented
using revaluation medel. These consolidated finandal statements are presented in Philippine
Peso (P); the Group's functional and reperting currency under Philippine Financial Reparting
Standards (PFRS). All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise
indicated.

The consclidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the
previous period,

atatement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with
FFRS. PFRS includes statements named PFRS and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS),
and Interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financlal Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Philippine Financial and Sustainability
Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

Eunctional Currency
Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the

Philippine Peso (P), the currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the Group
operates (the “functional currency™) and all values are rounded to the nearest peso except
when otherwise Indicated.

Each entity In the Group determines Its cwn functional currency and items included In the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

The Group chose to present its consolidated finandial statements using the Group's functional
currency.



Current and Nen-current Presentation

The Group classifies an asset as current when:

= It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating
cycle;
It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
It expects to realize the asset within twelve (12) months after the reporting period; or
The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged
or used to setthe a liability for at least twelve (12) months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other assets as non-current.

The Group classifies a liability as current when:

# It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;

« [t holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

= The liability is due to be settled within twelve [12) months after the reporting period; or

« [t does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve (12} months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,
respectively.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the accounts of the Group and
its subsidiaries where the Group has control,

Specifically, the Parent controls an investee if it has:

« power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

=  exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involverment with the investee; and

e the ability to use its power over the Investee to affect its returns.

When the Parent has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, it
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
Investes, including:

+ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
= rights arising from other contractual arrangement; and
« the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Parent re-assesses its conbrol over an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and
cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group.
Consolidated financial stabements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Intercompany balances and
transactions, including intercompany profits and unrealized profits and losses are eliminated.

When the Parent loses control over a subsidiary, at the date when control is lost, It
(a) derecognizes the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at thelr
carrying amount; (b) derecognizes the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests
including any components of other comprehensive income attributable to them;
() recognizes the fair value of the consideration received; (d) recognizes the fair value of
any Investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value; (e) accounts for all
amounts recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary on the same
basis aswould be required if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets and
llabilities; and (f) recognizes any resulting difference as gain or loss in profit or loss
attributable to the Parent,



The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
Group using consistent accounting policies, Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used
by other members of the Group.

Mon-controlling interests represent interests in certain subsidiaries not held by the Group
and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
consolidated statements of changes in equity and within equity in the consolidated
statements of financial position, separately from equity attributable to the equityholders of
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held
bythe Group. Transactions with noncontralling interest are accounted for using the entity
concepk method, whereby the difference between the consideration and the book value of
the share of the net assets acquired s recognized as an equity transaction.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, Is accounted for
as an equity transaction.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group and the following subsidiaries
{collectively referred to as the Group):

* Ownership
and Voting
Interast
Country af Functianal
__Imvesten Incorperation Principal Activity Currency 2022 2021
First Class Agriculture Trading (Agricultural | Phaippine Pesa
Corporation [FCAC) Pellppincs goods) (PHP) 100%  100%
M2000 IMEX Company, Inc. (IMEX)  Philippines  Toll and manufacturing | ""“w"';}m 100%  100%
Best Chaice Harwst Phalippine Pess
e ol Tona, TS Prilppings  Farm management o 100%  100%
Fresh and Green Harvest Agricultural Trading (agricultural  Phlippine Peso
Comparny, Inc. (FGH®) iy guods) (PHPY pmme et
Lucicy Frult & Vegetabie Trading (sgricultural  Phulippine Peso oo
Products, Inc. (LFYPT)* PrHEnes aoods) (PHP)
Manufacturing/processing/
Frultlicious Comgany, Inc. (FCT) b e trading Traren “"ﬁ:‘:]““ 100%  100%
sgricultural products
Farmwville Farming Co., Inc. (FFCI})  Philippines | 009 ["?"'f""“' “"'"F":';‘";:"“" Siee  S1%
Fresh andg mm “:-u[fm::i [ Mk, Rann rineganiit ““"m]m“ s1%  51%
Food and Deverage  Philippine Pesc
The Bi Chill, Inc. (TBE) Philippenes Pl il BO%  BO%
- Food and Deverage Phillppine Pesg
Heppy Conporation (HC) Philipgenes et oo 0% 0%
""'1";_"’::“’[ s i i Philipgines  Retall and whelesste m"m;“" 100%  100%
i Lt Dalla
w Haoidings Hong Kang Holding Company 9 ﬁfﬁ; T 100w 100%
Agrinurture Int Ltd. (ANI 1L} * Heng Kang Trading and retall O™ ::H::qur 100%  100%
Yoyt Fairy (Frults) Limited (JFF)» 521 7 "“*ﬂ:ﬂﬁ'“‘w} A e Dollar (USD)  B1% 1%
Imf‘ ;““"";""’ China Trading and real estate mﬁ,}“" 51% 5%
~ Curpct and Incinect ownershiG
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3. Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

The Philippine Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC) approved the
issuance of new and revised Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term “PFRS”
in general includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and
Interpretations issued by the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing
Interpretations Committee (5IC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the FSRSC and adopted by SEC.

These new and revised PFRS prescribe new accounting recognition, measurement and
disclosure requirements applicable to the Company. When applicable, the adoption of the new
standards was made in accordance with thelr transitional provisions, otherwise the adoption
Is accounted for as change in accounting policy under PAS B, Accounting Policles, Changes in
Accounting Eslimates and Errors,

3.01 Mew and Revised PFRSs Applied with No Material Effect on the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The following new and revised PFRSs have been adopted In these consolidated financial
statements, The application of these new and revised PFRSs has not had any material impact
on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for
future transactions or arrangements.

« Amendments to PFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
June 30, 2021

The following are the amendments to PFRS 16:

= permit a lessee to apply the practical expedient regarding COVID-19-related rent
concesslons to rent concesslons for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022 {rather than enly payments
originally due on or before June 30, 2021);

¥ require a lessee applying the amendment to do so for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after Aprl 1, 2021;

¥ require a lessee applying the amendment to do 50 retrospectively, recognizing the
cumulative effect of initially applyving the amendment as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate)
at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the lessee first applies the
amendment; and

» specify that, in the reporting period in which a lessee first applies the amendment,
& lesses is not required to disclose the information required by paragraph 28(f) of
BAS B,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting perieds beginning on or afber
April 1, 2021.

=  Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The following are the amendments in reference to the conceptual framework:
¥ update PFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framewerk instead of 1989
Framework;

¥  add to PFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope
of PAS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the
Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination; and

* add to PFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent
assets acquired in a business combinatian.
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The amendments are effective for snnueal pericds beginning om or after
January 1, 2022, permitted if an entity also applies all other updated references (published
together with the updated Conceptual Framework) at the same time or earlier.

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing
the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognize such sales proceeds and
related cost in profit or loss.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or  after
January 1, 2022. An entity applies the amendments retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary
for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the
entity first applies the amendments.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the *cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the *costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labor, materials) or
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022, Entities apply the amendments to contracts for which the entity has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendments. Comparatives are not restated,

Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

= The amendment permits a

subrddlar'y th-at applles pamq:zph D:lEl_'a] of PFF!E 1 tvn measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent's date of
transition to PFRSs.

- The amendment dﬂHﬂH whi:h fea an enuty in-dude.ﬂ- when It appllu 'the il:l per mt"
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of PFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability.
An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf.

Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease [ncentives - The amendment to Hlustrative Example 13
accompanying PFRS 16 removes from the example the lllustration of the reimbursement
of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease
incentives are illustrated in that example.

7 : [z - The amendment removes
tha n:quiremant In pﬂragraph 21 of F"AS 41 for Entltles to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique. This will
ansure consistency with the reguiremeants in PFRS 13,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022,
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3.02 New and Revised PFRSs in Issue but Mot Yet Effective

The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when
they become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the
adoption of these new and amended PFRS, to have significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements,

«  Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non=current

The amendments to PAS 1 are the following:

¥ clarify that the classification of labilities as current or non-curment should be based

on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period and align the
wording in all affected paragraphs to refer to the “right” to defer settlement by at
least twelve months and make explicit that only rights in place "at the end of the
reporting period” should affect the classification of a liability;

clarify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability; and

make clear that settiement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
Instruments, other agsets or services,

The amendments defer the effective date of the January 2020 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to PAS 1) to annual reporting pericds beginning
on or after January 1, 2023, Earlier application of the January 2020 amendments continues
to be permitbed.

«  Amendments to PAS 8, Deflinition of Accounbing Estimates

The definition of accounting estimates has been amended as follows: accounting estimates

arg

“manetary amounts In financial statements that are subject to measurement

uncertainty”,

The amendment also clarifies the following:

¥ Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial

F

statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty.

A change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new
developments is not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change
in an input or a measurement technigue used to develop an accounting estimate are
changes in accounting estimates If they do not result from the correction of prior
period errors.

A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current pericd’s profit or
lzss, or the profit or loss of both the current pericd and future periods. The effect of
the change relating to the current period is recognized as income or expense in the
current period. The effect, If any, on future periods is recognized as income oF
expense in those future periods,

The amendments are effective for annual reperting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023 and changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period.
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» Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure Initiative - Accounting
Policies

The amendments to PAS 1 are the following:

¥ an entity is now required to disclose its material accounting pelicy information
instead of its significant accounting policies;

¥ several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material
accounting policy information and to give examples of when accounting policy
information is likely bo be material;

The amendments also carify the following:

*  accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even if the
related amounts are immaterial;

¥ accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s financial statements
would need it to understand other material information in the financial statements;
and

¥ if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy Information, such information shall
not obscure materlal accounting policy infarmation.

In addition, PFRS Practice Statement 2 has been amended by adding guidance and
examples to explain and demonstrate the application of the four-step materiality process’
to accounting policy information in order to support the amendments to FAS 1.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after January
1, 2023.

«  Amendment to PAS 12, "Deferred tax related to assets and labilities arising from a single
transaction”

The amendments introduce an exception to the initial recognition exemption (IRE) in PAS
12. Additional exclusions have been added to the IRE, detailed in paragraphs 15(b)(iii)
and 24(c) for deferred tax labilities and assets respectively. The effects of these
amendments essentially mean that the IRE is not available for transactions which inveglve
the recognition of both an asset and liability = which in turn leads to equal and opposite
temporary differences - such that deferred taxes are calculated and booked for both
temporary differences, both at initial recognition and subsequently. Applying this
exception, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.,

The initial recognition exemption was initially included within PAS 12 to prevent a lack of
reporting transparency for transactions which are not business combinations and, at the
time of the transaction, do not affect either accounting or taxable profits. Under this
exemption, deferred tax assets/fliabilities would neither be recognized at initial recognition
of the underlying assetfliability, nor subsequently.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative péried prasented. In addition, the amendments also apply to taxable and
deductible temporary differences assodiated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
and decommissioning obligations and corresponding amounts recognized as assets at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginming on or after
January 1, 2023. Early application of the amandments is permitted.
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+ Amendment to PFRS 17, “Initlal Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS 9—Comparative
Infermation™

The amendment is a transition opticn relating to comparative information about fimancial
assets presented on initial application of PFRS 17. The amendment is aimed at helping
antities to avioid temporary accounting mismatches between financial assets and Insurance
contract liabilities, and therefore Improve the usefulness of comparative information for
users of financial statements.

PFRS 17 imcorporating the amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2025,

= PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 szets out the requirements that an entity should apply in reperting information
about insurance contracts it issues and reinsurance contracts it holds. It requires an entity
that issues insurance contracts to report them on the balance sheet as the total of the
fulfilment cash fows and the conbractual service margin, It requires an entity to provide
information that distinguishes two ways insurers earn profits from insurance contracts:
the insurance service result and the financial result. It requires an entity to report as
insurance revenue the amount charged for insurance coverage when it is earned, rather
than when the entity receives premium, It requires that insurance revenue to exclude the
deposits that represent the investrment of the policyholder, rather than an amount charged
for services. Similarly, it requires the entity to present deposit repayments as settlements
of liabilities rather than as insurance expense,

PFRS 17 Is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.
Early application Is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 9 Fimancial Instruments and
PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers on or before the date of initial application
of PFRS 17.

An entity shall apply PFRS 17 retrospectively unless impracticable, except that an entity is
not required to present the quantitative information required by paragraph 28(f) of PAS B
Accounting Policles, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors and an entity shall not
apply the option in paragraph B115 for perlods before the date of initial application of PFRS
17. If, and only If, it is impracticable, an entity shall apply either the modified retrospective
approach or the fair value approach.

»  Amendments to PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
The amendments cover the following areas:

¥ Insurance acquisition cash flows for renewals outside the contract boundary;

¥ Reinsurance contracts held—onerous underlying insurance contracts;

¥ Reinsurance contracts held—underlylng Insurance contracts with direct participation
features; and

¥ Recognition of the contractual service margin in profit or loss in the general model.

The amendments are effective to annual reperting pericds beginning on or after January
1, 2025,

3.02.02 Deferred

« Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assefs batwean an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate and joint wenture. This requires an investor in its financial
statements to recognize in full the gains and losses arising from the sale or contribution
of assets that constitute a business while recognize partial gains and losses if the assets
do not constitute a business (i.e. up to the extent only of unrelated investor share).
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Dn January 13, 2016, the FSRSC decided to postpone the original effective date of January
1, 2016 of the said amendments until the [ASB has completed its broader review of the
research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting
for such transactions and of ather aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Principal accounting and financial reporting policies applied by the Group in the preparation
of its consolidated finandial statements are enumerated below and are consistently applied
to all the years preséented, unless otherwise statad.

4.01 Fair Value Measurament

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value the Group takes Into consideration the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date,

A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or lability Is
exchanged in an orderly transaction between market participants to sell the asset or transfer
the liability at the measurement date under current market conditions., In addition,
It assumes that the transaction takes place either: {a) in the principal market; or {b) in the
absznce of a princlpal market, in the most advantageous market.

The Group considers the fair value of an asset or a liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interast.

A fair value measurement of & nen-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
salling it to anather market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

A fair value measurement assumes that a financial or mon-financial liability or an entity's
own equity Instruments {e.g. equity interests issued as consideration in a business
combination) ks transferred to a market particlpant at the measurement date, The transfer
of a liakllity or an entity’s own equity Instrument assumes the following:

« A ligbility would remain gutstanding and the market participant transferee would be
required to fulfil the obligation. The liability would not be settled with the counterparty
ar otherwise extinguished on the measurament dabe.

= An entity's own equity instrument would remain outstanding and the market
participant transferee would take on the rights and responsibilities assoclated with the
instrument. The instrument would not be cancelled or otherwise extinguished on the

measurement date.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriabe in the droumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inputs.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices {unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

= Level 1inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can acoéss at the messurement date.

# Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or llability, sither directly or indirectly.

# Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or lability.
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4.02 Segment Information

An operating segment is a component of the Group: (a) that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, Including revenues and expenses
refating to transactions with other components of the Group; (b} whose operating results
are regularly reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and [c) for
which discrete financial information is avallable.

The Group reports separately, information about an operating segment that meets any of
the following quantitative thresholds: (a) iks reported revenue, including both sales to
external customers and inter-segment sales or transfers, is 10% or more of the combined
revenue, internal and external, of all operating segments, provided that; (b) the absolute
amount of its reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater, in absolute amount, of
the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a loss and the
combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss; and {c) its assets ara
10% or moare of the combined assets of all operating segments.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be considered
reportable, and separately disclosed, if management believes that information about the
segment would be useful to users of the consolidated financial statements,

The Group is currently organized Into four (4) segments namely as: Exports, Local
Distribution, Retail and Foraign Trading. These divisions aré the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information.

4.03 Financial Assets

4.03.01 Initfal Recognition and Measurement

The Group recognizes a financial asset in iks consolidated statements of financial position
when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Except for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component, at initial
recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
asset mot at Tair value throwgh profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

At initlal recognition, the Group measures trade receivables that do not have a significant
financing companent at their transaction price,

4.03.02 Classification
¥ Financial Asset at Amortized Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
ara met:

+ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financlal assets in order to collect contractual cash Aows: and

s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group's financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash in banks, trade
and other recelvable (except advances to officers and employees), due from related
parties, due from stockholders, refundable deposits presented under "prepayments and
othier current assets’ and deposits and other non-current assets.
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al Cash in Banks

Cash in banks include cash deposits held at call with bank that are subject to Insignificant
risk of change in value, This shall be measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash
or other consideration expected to be pald or received,

related parties are recognized initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of the foregoing receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables,

) Refundable Deposits

Refundable deposits pertain to the amount surrendered to the Group’s lessor as part of
the lease agreement. This amount will be refunded upon termination of the conbract. This
iz measured at amortized cost using the effective Interest method, less any Impairment.

¥ Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

The Group makes an imevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments
in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or
loss to present subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive income,

The Group’s financial assets measured at PVOCT pertaing to equity securities,

The Group does not have financlal assets measured at fair value through profit and loss in
both years,

4.03.03 Reclassification

When, and only when, the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets,
it shall reclassify all affected financial assets In accordance with Note 4.03.02, If the Group
reclassifies financial assets, It shall apply the reclassification prospectively from the
réclassification date. The Growp shall not restate any previously recognized gains, losses
{including impalrmeant gains or losses) or interest.

4.03.04 Effective [nterest Method

Interest income |s caloulated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for: purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets and financial assets that are not
purchased or ariginated credit-impaired but subsequently have become credit-impaired.

4.03.05 Impairment
The Group measures expected losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:
» Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;
= The time value of money; and
Reasonable and supportable assumption that is available withiout undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecast of futung economic
conditions.
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The Group adopted the following approaches in accounting for impainment.

Simplified Approach

The Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses for trade recelvables, The Group determines that a financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental Impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

= Significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
= A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

« The lender({s) of the counterparty, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; and

¢ [t is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial rearganization,

General Approach

The Group applies general approach to cash in banks, other receivables [except
advances to officers and employees), due from related parties, refundable deposit
presented under “prepayments and other current assets” and deposits and other
non-current assets, At each reporting date, the Group measures the loss allowance for
a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses If the credit
risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. However,
if the credit risk has not increased significantly, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-month expected credit losses,

The Group compares the risk of default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default ocourring as at the date of Initial recognition and consider the
matro-economic factors such as GDP, interest, and inflation rates, the performance of
the counterparties’ industry, that is available without undue cost or effort, to determine
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk or not simce initial recognition.

The Group determines that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when there
is & significant decling in the factors. The Group assumes that the credit risk on cash in
banks has not increased significantly since initial recognition because the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

The Group did not apply the 30 days past due rebuttable presumption because based on
the Company’s historical experience, credit risk has not increased significantly even the
amaounts are past due for more than 30 days.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses in the previous reporting pericd, but determines at the current reporting
date, that the credit guality Improves (i.e. there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition), then the Company shall measure the loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses at the current reporting date.

The Group recognizes in profit or loss, as an impalrment gain or loss, the amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date.

The Group performs the assessment of significant increases In credit risk on an individual
basis by considering information that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk.
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The Group did not apply the 90 days past due rebuttable presumption in determining
whether a financial asset is credit impaired and considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group.

The Group determines that a financlal asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

= Significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
= A breach of contrack, such as a default or past due event;

+ The lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would nok otherwise consider; and

= [t is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization.

4.03.06 Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when, and only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows of the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition. The difference between the carrying amount and the consideration
received is recognized in profit or loss,

4.03.07 Write-off

The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
& wiribe-off constitutes a derecognition event.

4.04 Prepaymeants and Other Current Assots

4.04.01 Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash, These ars initially
recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash pald. Subsequently, these are charged
to profit or loss as they are consumed in operations or expire through passage of time.

These are classified In the consolidated statements of financial position as current assets when
the expenses are expected to be incurred within one (1) year or the Group’s normal operating
cycle, whichever Is longer. Otherwise, these are classified as other non-current assets.

4.04.02 Input VAT
Input VAT arises from the purchase of goods or services.

For regular sales, input VAT is applied against output VAT. The remalning balance is
recoverable In future periods. This is carried at cost less allowance for impairment loss, if any.
Impairment loss Is recognized when input VAT can no longer be recovered.

For zero rated sales, input VAT is initially recorded as an asset and measured at the amount
of cash paid. Subsequently, the Group may apply within two (2) years after the close of the
taxable quarter when such sale was made for the tax refund of creditable input tax due or paid
attributable to sales that are zero-rated or effectively zero-rated.
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4.04.03 Advances to Suppliers

Advances to suppliers represent amount pald in advance for goods or services that are yet to
be delivered and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group within
the normal operating cycle or within twelve {12) months from the financial reporting date.
These are initially recorded at actual cash advanced and are subsequently applied against
subsequent asset purchases, costs or expenses incurred.

4.05 Interests in Joint Arrangement

A joint arrangement is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties have
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exist only when decisions about relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing. The sharing of control is also
known as joint control. A joint arrangement can either be a joint venture or a joint operation.

4.05.01 Joint Venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the Group and other parties that have joink
control of the arrangement hawve rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group
reports its interests in a joint venture using equity method, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with PFRS S,
Non-current Asselts Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,

The Group accounts the investment under the cost method. The Group recognizes as income
the dividends received that are distributed from net accumulated eamings of the investee
gince the date of acquisition by the investor. Dividends received that are In excess of the
earnings subsequent to the date of acquisition are not income and therefore considered as
return or reduction of investment.

The requirements of PFRS 9 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss with respect bo the Group's investment in joint venture. When necessary, the
entirg carrying amount of the investment [including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with PAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount {(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impalrment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that iImpairment loss Is recognized in accordance with PAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

4.06 Inventories

Inventories are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, inventories are
stabed at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV), Costs incurred in bringing each product
to its present location and condition Is accounted for as follows:

Property for sale = at construction cost
Merchandise, furniture and appliances = at purchase price on a first-in, first-out
(FIFO} method
Agricultural produce, beverages and - at purchase price on a FIFD method
vegan products
Packaging materials and other supplies = at purchase cost on a FIFO method

NRY of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to sell. For property for sale, NRV
Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based on market prices
at the reporting date, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs of sale.
For packaging materials and other supplies, NRV s the current replacement cost. Inventonies
are classified as current when they are expected to be realized within the normal operating
cycle,
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Cost of property for sale includes:
= Land cost;
# Land improvement cost;
» Amounts paid to contractors for construction and development; and
« Planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees, property
transfer taxes, construction overheads and other related costs

Provizion for inventory loss is established for estimated losses on inventories which are
determined based on specific identification of slow-moving, damaged and obsolete Inventories
and charged to operations.

Inventories are derecognized when sold. The carrying amount of inventories sold is recognized
as an expense and reported under cost of sales in profit or loss in the period in which the
related revenue is recognized.

When the circumstances that previously caused inventories to be impaired no longer exist or
when there is cear evidence of an increase in selling price less costs to complete and sell
because of changed is economic circumstances, a reversal of the impairment is recognized so
that the new carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised selling price less costs
to complete and sell. Any impairment reversal is recognized In profit or loss but is limited to
the amount of the original impairment loss recognized.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.

4.07 Business Combination

The Group applles the standard on business combination under PFRS 3 as amended and
adopted In 2009, The standard outlines the accounting when an acquirer obtains control of a
business {e.g. acquisition or merger). Such business combinations are accounted for using
the “acquisition method®, which generally requires assets acquired and labilities assumed o
be measured at their fair values at date of acquisition,

PFRS 3 seeks to enhance the relevance, reliability and comparability of information provided
about business combinations (e.g. acquisition and mergers) and their effects, It sets out the
principles on the recognition and measurement of acquired assets and liabilities, the
determination of goodwill and the necessary disclosures.

In determining whether a transaction Is & business combination, PFRS 3 provides additional
guidance on determining whether a transaction meets the definition of a business combination
and accounted for In acoordance with its requirements. This guidance includes:

- Business combinations can occur in various ways such as by transferring cash, induding
liabilities, issuing equity instrument [(or any combination thereof), or by not issuing
consideration at all {i.e. by contract alone); and

. Business combinations can be structured in various ways to satisfy legal, taxation or other
objectives, Including one entity becoming a subsidiary of another, the transfer of net
assets from one entity to ancther or to new entity;

The business combination must Involve the acguisition of a business, which generally has
three elements:

# Inputs - an ecomomic resource (e.g. mon-curment assets, intellectual property) that
creates gukputs when one or more processes are applied to it;

. Process = a system standard, protocol, convention or rule that when applied to an input
or inputs, creates gutputs [e.g. strategic management, cperational processes, resource
management); and

+«  Dutput - the result of inputs and processes applied to those input.
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107,01 Acquisition Method
In every acquisition of business, the Group determines the acquisition date, recognize and
measures all identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and non-controlling interest

(NCI, formerly called minority interest) in the acquiree, and determines if there s goodwill or
galm from a bargain purchase if applicable.

The Group recognizes the acquisition date as the date on which the Group cbtains contral over
the acguiree. Generally, this is the date on which the Group legally transfer the consideration,
acquires the assets and assumes the liabilities of the acquiree - the closing date. However,
the Group as the acquirer may obtain control on a date that is either earfler or later than the
clesing date depending on what was agreed upon with the acquiree.

In recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
non-controdling interest in the acquiree, the Group observes the definition of assets and
liabilities in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements at the acquisition date. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
measured at their acquisition-date falr values.

On Income taxes, the Group recognizes and measures a deferred tax asset or liabllity arlsing
from the assets acguired and liabilities assumed in accordance with PAS 12 while the standard
under PAS 19 is relied on for employee benefits.

The Group recognizes and measures goodwill in accordance with PFRS 3, as the difference
bebween:

¢« Aggregate of (1) the value of the consideration transferred (generally at fair value), (2)
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acguiree, and {(3) in a business
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquires, and

# The net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed (measured in accordance with PFRS 3).

4.07.02 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements indude the financial staberments of the Group and its
subsidiaries,

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial staterments of the Parent and
the entities controlled by the Parent (its subsidiaries) up to December 31 of each year. Control
is achieved when the Parent has exposure or rights, to variable returns from its invelvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through ts power over an investee.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or convertible are
taken into account,

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date when control is transferred to the Parent and ceases
to be consolidated from the date when conkrol is transferred out of the Parent.

4.07.03 Measurement

The assets and liabilities and the contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at thelr
fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values
of the assets acquired Is recognized as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below
the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. discount on acquisition) is credited
to the profit and loss in the pericd of acquisition.
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4.07.04 Googwill

Goodwill Is Initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of fair value of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. IF this consideration is lower than the falr
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a2 business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allecated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (CGLU) that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irmespective of whether other assets or llabilities of
the acquire are assigned o those units.

4.07.05 Inter-group Balances

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar clrcumstances. Inter-group balances and transactions,
imcluding inter-group profits and unrealized profits and losses, are ellminated. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiary to bring the
accounting policies used in line with those used by the Group. All inter-group transactions,
balances, income and expenses arg eliminated during consolidation,

4.07.06 Loss af Control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
any non-controlling interests and other components of equity related to the subsidiary.
Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of controls is recognized In profit or loss. If the Group
retaing any Interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at
the date the contral is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as entity-accounted investee or
as financial assets at AVTPL or FVYOCT depending on the level of influence retained,

4.08 Investment Property

Investment property comprises properties under construction or redevelopments that are held
to earn reéntals or capital appreciation or both and that are not occupied by the companies in
the Group. These are measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs, Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment property is measured at its fair value.

Investment property Is accounted for under the fair value model. Fair value is supported by
market evidence and is determined by independent appraisers with sufficient experience with
respect to both the location and the nature of the investment property.

Any gain or loss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale or retirement of an
inwestment property is immediately recognized in profit or loss as fair value gains (losses)
from investment property under the other income in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive iNcHme.

Investment property Is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.

A transfer is made to investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending
of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of
construction or development. A transfer is made from investment property when and only
when there I5 a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sale. A transfer between investment property,
owner-occupied property and Iinventory does not change the cammying amount of the property
transferred mor does It change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure

pUrposes.
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4.09 Property and Equipmeant

Property and equipment are initially measured at cost. The cosk of an asset consists of its
purchase price and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use, Subsequent to initial recognition, property and equipment are carried at
revalued amount {except for certaln property and equipment carried at cost) less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already
been recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing
assek, will low to the Group. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expenses
in the period in which those are incurred.

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, determined from market-
based evidence by appraisal undertaken by professional appraisers, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting peried.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such property and equipment is credited
to the properties revaluation surplus, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an expense, in which case the increase
is credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged., A decrease
in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such revalued assets is charged as an expense
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus relating to a
previous revaluation of those assets, Revaluation surplus is transferred directly to retained
earnings as the asset is being used by the Group.

Land is not depreciated, Depreciation Is computed on the straight-line methed based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building 15 years
Delivery and transportation eguipment 3to 12 years
Machinery and equipment 3to 12 years
Office furniture and fixtures Ito 12 years
Store and warehouse egquipment 3 ta 5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter between the improvements’ useful
life of five [5) years or the lease term.

Properties in the course of construction for production are carried at cost less any recognized
impairment loss. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
cormmences when the assets are ready for their Intended use,

Bearer plants are living plants that are used in the production or supply of agriculbural produce
over a several periods and has a remote likelihood of being sold a3 agricultural produce, except
for Incldental scrap sales,

The property and equipment’s residual values, useful lives and depredation method are
reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there s an Indication of a significant
change since the last reporting date.

Depreciation on revalued assets is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of & revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
revaluation reserve s transferred directly to retained earnings.

An itern of property and equipment Is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an asset is determined as the diference between the sales procesds and the carrying
amount of the asset and Is recognized in profit or loss.
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4.10 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired In & business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Foliowing initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost [ess any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment [osses,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as elther finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization pericd and the amortization methad for an intangible asset with a finite usaful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future econaomic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amertization peried or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on Intangible assets with finite
lives Is recognized In the consclidated statements of profit or loss as the expense category
that is consistent with the function of the intangible assets,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinibe
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal preceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the consolidated profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

4.10.01 Trademark

Trademarks acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. Following initial recognition,
trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses.,
The Group assesses for impairment whenaver there s an Indication that these assets may be
impaired.

The Group has assessed that certain trademark acquired in a business combination in the past
has indefinite useful lives, thus are not amortized, but tested for impairment annually, either
Individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues ko be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basls.

The remaining trademark at current year has finibe useful life and s amortized owver
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 20 years. The amortization period and the
amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied In
the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate,
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortization expense s recognized
in the consalidated profit or loss under "Depreciation and amortization” account in the expense
category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

4.10.02 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets acquired at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is tested for Impairment annually or more frequently If events or changes in
circumstances indicate that might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Any impairment losses recognized for goodwill are not subsequently
reversed, Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
refating to the entity sold.
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Goodwill ks allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Whan the
recoverable amount of cash-generating units is bess than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognized. The Group performs its impalirment testing at the reporting date using a
value-in-use, discounted cash flow methodology.

4,.10.03 Franchise

The Group recognizes franchise as part of its intangible assets when the franchise produces
revenue to the Group and the cost Is measurable. At initial recognition, franchise is valued at
cost which is the amount incurred In acquiring the franchise. Franchise whose life has been
determined to be finite is amortized over the years identified. If the life of the framchise is
determined to be indefinite, such franchise is not amortized but tested for impairment.
Franchise is derecognized upon sale or retirement. The difference between the carmying value
and the proceeds shall be recognized in the consolidated statements of profit or loss. Franchise
is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of ten (10} years.

4.10.04 Computer software

Computer software acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, The initial
cost of computer software consists of ts purchase price, Including Import dutles, taxes and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition and location for
intended use. Subsequently, computer software Is carrled at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impalrment loss.

Acquired computer software is capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five (5) years. Costs associabed with the development or maintenance
of software cost programs aré recognized as expense when incurred in the Group's
consolidated statemnents of profit or loss, Software cost |s derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued wse of the asset, Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the Group's consolidated
statements of profit or loss In the year of derecognition.

4.11 Deposits and Investmants

4.11.01 Deposit for Land Acquisition

Deposit for land acquisition which represents mainly the usufruct rights over a property are
initially stated at actual amount paid and subsequently recognized at cost less any impairment.

Deposit for business acquisitions which are paid in view of call for the future investments are
initially stated at actual amount paid and subsequently recognized at cost less any impairment.

4.11.03 Advances bo Producers

Advances to producers pertain to advances made for the initial cost of cultivation and
development of farm lots owned by third-party. This is initially stated at actual amount paid
and subsequently recognized at cost less any impairment.

4.11.04 Advances to Projects

Advances to projects pertains to unliquidated expenditures made for the processing fees in
connection with the investment of the Group to a foreign company. This is initially stated at
actual amount paid and subsequently recognized at cost less any impairment.,
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4.12 Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that any assets
other than inventories, biclogical assets, deferred tax assets, investment properties and
financial assets that are within the scope of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments may have suffered
an impalirment loss. IF any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset Is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs,

When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be Identified, assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible asset with indefinite wseful life is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs o sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using &
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amaunt af an asset or cash-genarating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amaount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would hawve been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income,

4.13 Biological Assets

Biological assets or agricultural produce are recognized only when the Group controls the
assets as a result of past events, it is probable that future economic benefits assodated with
the assets will flow to the entity; and the fair value or cost of the assets can be measured
reliably.

The Group measures its biological assets on initlal recognition and at each reporting date at
their falr value less estimated costs to sell. Estimated costs to sell include commissions to
brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and commaodity eschanges, and transfer
taxes and duties.

Harvested agricultural produce are also carried at fair value less estimated costs to sell at the
point of harvest.

The Group classifies its biclogical assets between consumable and bearer blological assets.
Consumable biclogical assets are those that are to be harvested as agricultural produce or
sold as blologlcal assets. The Group further classifies its bearer biclogical assets bebween
mature or immature biclogical assets.

Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of a biological asset at fair value less estimated
costs to sell and from a change in fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biological asset
are included in profit or loss for the period In which they arise.

4.14 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are Incurred.
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4.15 Financial Liabilities

4,.15.01 [nitial Recognition and Measurement

The Group shall recognize a financial ligbility in its consolidated statements of financial position
when, and only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

At Initial recognition, the Group shall measure a financial lability at its fair value minus, in the
case of financial liability not at fair walue through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the liability.

4.15.02 Classification

The Group shall classify all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized, sxcept
far:

= financial liabilities at falr value through profit or loss:

= financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies;

= financial guarantee contracts;
= commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate;
+ contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in 8 business combination.

The Group’s financial liabllities measured at amortized cost indude trade and other payables
(excluding customers’ deposits and government payables), borrowings, lease liabilities and
due to related parties.

The Group does not have financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in both years.

4.15.03 Derecognition

The Group removes a financial Hability {or part of @ fimancial liability) from its consolidated
statements of financlal position when, and only when, it Is extinguished (i.e., when the
obligation in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired}.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability {or part of a financial
liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, Is recognized In profit or loss.

4,16 Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration {or an amount of consideration s due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liabllity is recognized when the payment Is made or the payment is due
[whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract,

The contract liabilities also Include payments received by the Group from the customers for
wihich revenue recognition has not yet commenced.

4.16.01 Costs to obtaln contract

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are recognized as an asset if
the Group expects to recover them. The Group has determined that commissions paid to
brokers and marketing agents on the sale of pre-completed real estate units are deferred
when recovery Is reasonably expected and are charged to expense in the period in which the
related revenue Is recognized as earned.,

Costs incurred prior to obtaining contract with customer are not capitalized but are expensed
as incurmed.

29



g s m A p e

The Group amortizes capitalized costs to obtain a contract to cost of sales over the expected
construction period using percentage of completion following the pattern of real estate
revenue recognition. The amartization is induded within cost of sales.

A capitalized cost to obtain a contract is derecognized either when it is disposed of or when
no further economic benefits are expected to Aow from its use or disposal,

At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is an Indication that cost to
obtain a contract maybe impaired. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate by
comparing the carrying amount of the assets to the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive less the costs that relate to providing services under the relevant
contract. In determining the estimated amount of consideration, the Group uses the same
principles as it does to determine the contract transaction price, except that any constraints
used to reduce the transaction price will be removed for the impairment test.

Where the relevant costs or specific performance obligations are demonstrating marginal
profitability or other indicators of impairment, judgment Is required in ascertaining whether
or not the future economic benefits from these contracts are sufficlent to recover these
assets. In performing this Impairment assessment, management is required to make an
assessment of the costs to complete the contract. The ability to accurately forecast such costs
involves estimates around cost savings to be achleved over time, anticipated profitability of
the contract, as well as future performance against any contract-specific performance
indicators that could trigger variable consideration, or service credits.

Where a contract is anticipated to make a loss, these judgments are also relevant in
determining whether or not an enerous contract provision Is required and how this is to be
measured.

i Te0
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4,17 Equity instruments

An gquity instrument |5 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognized at the proceeds recelved, net of direct issue costs,

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

4,17.01 Additional Paid-in Capital

Additional pald-in capltal represents the proceeds and/for fair value of consideration received
in excess of the par value of the shares ssued,

4.18 Employaa Banefits

4.18.01 Short-term Benefits

The Group recognizes a liability, net of amounts already paid and an expense for services
rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the Group
to its employvees include salaries and wages, 555, HDMF, PhilHealth employer contributions
and 13 maonth pay.

4.18.02 Post-employment Benafits

The Group has an wunfunded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan.
This enefit defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will recaive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
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The cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method (PLICM)
which reflects services rendered by employees to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions conceming employees’ projected salaries. Post-employment expenses include
current service cost, past service cost, and net interest on defined benefit assetfliability.
Remeasurements which include cumulative actuarial gains and losses return on plan assets,
and changes in the effects of asset ceiling are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income and are also presented under equity in the consolidated statements of financial

paosition.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period In
which they arise,

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the sccrued retirement benefits at the end of the
reporting period. The accrued retirement benefits Is calculated annually by an independent
actuary using the PUCM. The present value of the accrued retirement benefits is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates based on the market
yields on government bonds as of the valuation dates that hawve terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

The Group's retirement plan s still unfunded, benefit claims under the plan are paid directly
by the Group when they become due.

4.19 Provislons and Contlngent Assat

4.19.01 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation, whether legal or
constructive, as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
the cbligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as & provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation, Where a provision Is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount Is the present value of
those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a recelvable ks recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

4.19.02 Contingent Liabiilies and ASSELS

Contingent llabilitdes and assets are not recognized becausa their existence will be confirmed
only by the otcurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote,

Contingent assets are disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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4.20 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue related cost incurred or to be Incurredfcosts to complete the
transactions can be reliably measured. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against
specific criteria in order bo determine if it s acting as a principal or agent. The Group has
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account any
trade discounts, prompt settiement of discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Group, if
any. Revenue excludes any value added tax.

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good or service {l.e. asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when {or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

4.20.01 Revenye Contracls with Customers

The Group recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the
customer in an amount that reflects the consideration ta which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. The Group applies the following five (5) steps:

1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract, Performance obligations are promises
in a contract to transfer to a custemer goods or services that are distinct;

3. Determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer. If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, an entlty must estimate the amount of consideration to which it expects to ba
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or sérvices to a customaer;

4. Allpcate the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative
stand-alone selling prices of each distinct gocd or sendioe promised in the contrack;

5. Recognize revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised
good or service to a customer (which is when the customer obtains control of that good
or service). A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point In time (typically for
promises to transfer goods to a customer) or over time (typically for promises to transfer
services to a customer). For a performance obligation satisfied over time, an entity would
select an appropriate measure of progress to determine how much revenue should be
recognized as the performance obligation is satisfied.

4.20.02 Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of business is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates.
The revenue from the sale of goods is recognized upon delivery of the goods when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer.

4.20.03 Real estate sales

The Group derives its real estate revenue from sale of residential and commercial units.
Revenue from the sale of these real estate projects under pre-completion stage are recognized
over time during the construction peried (or percentage of completion) since based on the
terms and conditions of its contract with the buyers, the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

In measuring the progress of Its performance obligation over time, the Group uses the input
method, The Group recognizes revenue on the basiz of the efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation {resources consumed, labor hours expended, costs incurred)
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.

Any excess of progress of work over the right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, recognized as residential and office development receivables, under trade
receivables, Is incduded in the “contract asset” account in the asset section of the consolidated
statements of financial position.
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Any excess of collections over the total of recognized trade receivables and contract assets s
included in the “contract liabilities™ account im the liabilities section of the consolidated
statermnents of financial position.

4.20.04 Cost recognilion

The Group recognizes costs relating to satisfied performance obligations as these are incurred
taking inte consideration the contract fulfillment assets such as connection fees, These include
costs of land, land development costs, building costs, professional fees, depreciation, permits
and licenses and capitalized bormowing costs. These costs are allocated to the saleable area,

with the portion allocable to the sold area being recognized as costs of sales while the portion
allocable to the unsold area being recognized as part of real estate inventories,

Contract costs include all direct materials and labor costs and those indirect costs related to
contract performance. Expected losses on contracts are recognized immediately when It is
probable that the total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. Changes in contract
performance, contract conditions and estimated profitakility, including those arising from
contract penalty provisions, and final contract settlements which may result in revisions to
estimated costs and gross margins are recognized in the year in which the changes are
determined.

4.20.05 Franchise

Franchise fees may cover the supply of initial and subsequent services, equipment and other
tangible assets, and know-how. Accordingly, franchise fees are recognized as revenue on a
basis that reflects the purpose for which the fees were charged. Fees charged for the use of
continuing rights granted by the agreement, or for aother services provided during the period
of the agreement, are recognized as revenue as the services are provided or the rights used.

4.20.06 Royally

Royalty is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with substance of the relevant
agreement.,

4. 20.07 Rental Income

Rental income ks recognized in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term
{See note 4,.22.01).

Realized gains and losses are rt.-mgnl:ud when the sale transaction ooours.

4.20.03 Interest [ncome

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method on a time proportion basis
that reflects the effective yield on the assets.

4.20.10 Other Income

Other income is recognized when the related income Is eamed on an accrual Dasis in
accordance with the relevant structure of transaction or agreements.

4,.20.11 Principal versus Agent Considerations
The Group should determinge whether it is a principal or an agent in a transaction through the
nature of its promise in a performance obligation.

The Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
a specified service itself (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls a promised service before it transfers the service to a
customer. It recognizes revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which it expects to
be entitied in exchange for those services transferred.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation Is to arrange for the provision of services
by another party. It recognizes revenue In the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the other party to provide its services.
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4.21 Expense Recognition

Expense encompasses losses as well as those expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary
activities of the Group.

The Group recognizes expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income when
a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a
liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

4.22 Leases

4.42.01 The Group a5 & Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease, Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

4.22.02 The Group 85 & Lesses

A lease |s defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
(the underlying asset) for a peried of time in exchange for consideration”.

To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations
which are whether:

&. the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identifled in the
contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset Is made
available to the Group

b. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from usa
of the identified asset throughout the peried of use, considering its rights within the
defined scope of the contract

¢. the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period
of use, The Group a55ess whether it has the right to direct “how and for what purpose”
the asset is used throughout the period of use,

Right-of-Use (ROU) Asset
At the commencement date, the Group measures the ROLU asset at cost, which camprises of:

»  initial measurement of the lease liability;

# any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any incentives
received:

# any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

= an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee In dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are Incurred to preduce Inventories, The Group incurs the obligation for those
costs either at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used the
underlying asset during a particular pericd.

Subsequent to initial recognition, ROU asset is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

The Group depreciates the ROU asset on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of the lease term.
The Erﬂup also assesses the ROU asset for ImpaFrrnent when such indicators exist.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and low-value assets using the
practical expedients, Instead of recognizing ROU asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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ROU asset is presented as a separate line item on the consclidated statements of financial
position,

Legse [iahilily
At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the

lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if
that rate is readily avallable or If not, the Group uses the incremental bormowing rake.

At the commencement date, the lease payments incuded in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term that are not paild at the commencerment date:

» fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any Incentives
recelvable;

« wariable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement date;

» amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under the residual value guarantees;

s the exercise price of a purchase option if the lesses is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

«  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exarcising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease lability by:
# Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
« reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

» remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications
or to reflect In-substance fixed lease payments.

The Group recognizes the amount of remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset s reduced to
zero and there is further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group
recognizes any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease lability is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment s reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the
right-of-use asset |s already reduced to zero.

Lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item on the consolidated statements of
financial position.

4.23 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, transactions in currencles
other than the Parent’s functional currency, i.e., foreign currencies, are recognized at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting peried,
financial accounts which include cash in banks, trade recelvable and deposits denominated in
forelgn currenches are revalued wsing the referance foreign exchange rates provided by the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSF) on the date of reporting. Exchange differences are
recognized in profit or loss as unrealized foreign exchange gain or loss at the end of each

reparting pericd.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the peried In which they arise except
for exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabllities where the gains and
losses of such non-monetary Items are recognized directly in equity.
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Assers and liabilities from foreign operation are translated at exchange rates at the end of the
reporting pericd. Exchange differences are recognized initially in OCI and redassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment. On the other hand, income and
expenses for each consolidated statements presenting profit or loss and OCI are translated at
the average exchange rate for the period. All the resulting exchange differences are recognized
in the OCL.

4.24 Related Parties and Related Party Transactions

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group that is preparing its
consclidated financial statements. A person or a clese member of that person's family is
related to Group if that person has control or joint control over the Group, has significant
influence over the Group, or is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of & parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

» The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that a parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary are related parties to each other); or

= One entity is an assoclate or joint venture of the other entity (or an assodate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member); or

# Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party: or

«  Dne entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity Is an associate of the
third entity; or

# The entity holds a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group; or

+ The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person [dentified above; or

= A person identified above has significant influence over the entity or Is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity {or of an enkity); or

= Management entity providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members, who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group and include that
person's children and spouse or domestic partner; children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related
parties, regardless of whether a price Is charged.

4.25 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred taxes.

4.25.01 Current Tax

The tax currently payable (= based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consclidated statements of comprehensive income because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's Hability for current tax Is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax for the current and prior periods is recognized as a llabllity to the extent that it
has not been settled, and as an asset to the extent that the amounts already paid exceeds the
amount due,



4.25.02 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and labilities in the consolidated financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits from excess Minimum Corporate Income Tax [MCIT) over
Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) and unused Met Operating Loss Carry-over [(MOLCO),
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can
be utilized. Deferred tax asset however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liabllity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction that affects nelther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences are only recognized to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foresesable
future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except in three
cases as follows:

= Liabilities arising from the initial recognition of goodwill;

« Liabilities arising from the initial recognition of asset/liability other than in a business
combination which, at the time of the transaction, does not affect either the accounting
profit or the taxable profit;

= Liabilities arising from temporary differences assoclated with Investments In subsidiaries,
branches and associabes, and interests in joint arrangements, but only to the extent that
the entity Is able to contral the timing of the reversal of the differences and It is probable
that the reversal will not aocur in the foresesable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measyrement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in profit or loss, except
whean they relate to items that are recognized cutside profit or loss, whether in OCI or directly
in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized outside profit or loss.

4.23.04 Impact of Change in Tax Regime

Components of tax expense include any adjustments recognized in the period for current tax
of prior peried and the amount of deferred tax expense (income) relating to changes in tax
rates. The provision for current income tax during the year include the difference between
income tax per prior year financial statements and prior year income tax return,

Deferred tax assets and labilities as of reporting pericd Is remeasured using the new tax rates.
The impact of remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss (i.e., provision for/benefit from
deferred income tax), unless it can be recognized In other comprehensive income or another

equity account,
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4.26 Earnings per Share

The Group computes Its basic earnings per share by dividing net income or lass attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period.

4.27 Events after the Reporting Period

The Group identifies subsequent events as events that occurred after the reporting date but
before the date when the consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue.
Any subsequent events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the
reporting period, adjusting events, are reflected in the consolidated financial statements, while
subsequent events that do not require adjustments, non-adjusting events, are disclesed in the
notes to consolidated financial statements when material,

#.28 Changes in Accounting Policies

The adoption of the new and revised standards and as disclosed in Motes 3.01 was made In
accordance with their transitional provisions, otherwise the adoption is accounted for as
change in accounting policy under PAS B, Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.

5. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainties

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described In Mote 4,
Management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.,
The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

5.01 Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The following are critical judgments, apart from those Involving estimations that
Management has made in the process of applying the entity's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements.

20101 Assessment of Going Concern Jssye

The management has made an assessment at the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and Is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue the business for the
foreseeable future. The Group’s continued operations as a going concemn depends upon the
successful outcome of efforts to achieve profitable operations and generate sufficient cash
flows to meet obligations on a timely basis. The Group generated a net income of P2,500,323
in 2022, P1,057,861,300 in 2021 and P16,563,014 in 2020. Management believes that with
its continued efforts in building up equity and profitability, the Group will continue to operate
in the normal course. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared

on the going concern basis.

201,02 Functional Currency

PAS 21 requires Management to use its judgment to determine the Group's functional currency
such that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions,

events and conditions that are relevant to the Group. In making this judgment, the Group
considers the following:

« the currency that mainly influences sales prices for financial instruments and services
(this will often be the currency in which sales prices for its financial instruments and
seryices are denominated and settied);
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* the currency in which funds from financing activities are generated: and
#  the currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
operates. The Group has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine Peso.
The Group's functional currency is evidenced by its costs of labor, and other costs of providing
services and majority of its remittance transactions are settled in Philippine Peso,

The Group determined its functional currency to be Philippine peso being the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates. It is the currency that mainly
infiuences the sale of real properties, services, and investments and the costs of providing
the services and of the sold investments.

201.03 Uniform Accounting Policies

Consolidated financial statements are prepared under line-by-line basis for consglidation,
Full amount of subsidiaries” accounts, irrespective of the percentage of ownership, are
combined with those of the Group on a line-by-line bases by adding together similar or lke
items of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Application of line-by-line basis for
consolidation requires judgment in determining that the Parent and its subsidiaries have
uniform accounting policy for like transactions and events in similar circumstances between
the Parent and the subsidiaries. While the Group regularly conducts review of the subsidiaries”
accounting policy to ensure the uniformity in accounting palicy, there would be instances that
the policy over these transactions would be different from that of the Parent. In the event
that significant differences in the accounting policy for a given transaction exist between the
Parent and its subsidiaries, the Parent makes appropriate adjustment in the financial
statements of the subsidiary to conform to the Group's policy for the purpose of consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under PFRS. Management assessed that
the accounting peolicies of the Parent and its subsidiaries are substantially similar for like
transactions and events, thus, no adjustment has been made in the consolidated financial
statements.,

2.01.04 Assessment of Control

The Group determines whether an entity qualifies as a subsidiary when it has control over an
entity. The Group controls an entity when it has the three elements of control as disclosed in
Note 4. In making its judgments, the Group considers all facts and circumstances when
assessing control over an investes. A reassessment of control is conducted when there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Any changes from at least one of the
elements would result to lose or gain of conbrol over an entity.

The Group having fifty-one percent (51%) to one hundred percent (100%) ownership and
voting interest, assessed that it has control over all of its subsidiaries since it has power over
the subsidiaries, exposure or rights to variable returns from its Involvement and ability to use
its power to affect the component of its retumns.

5.01.05 Aggregation of Operaling Seqments

In accordance with the provisions of PFRS 8, Operating Segments, the Group's reporting
segment is based on the management approach with regard to the segment identification,
under which information regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker for
decision-making purposes is considered as decisive, The segments are also evaluated under
the management approach,

The Group reports Its segment based on geographic areas. The Management identifies its
cperating segments as generally based on nature and location of its customers. The Group
has four (4) reportable segments: Exports, Distribution, Retall and Foreign Trading.
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting
policies. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
net trading gains (losses), other income, equity in net earnings, operating expenses and
imcome tax,



specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. In making its judgements, the Group considers whether the cash flows
before and after the changes in timing or in the amount of payments represent only payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Management assessed that the contractual terms of its financial assets are solely payments of
principal and interest and consistent with basic lending arrangement. As of December 31, 2022
and 2021, carmrying amounts of the Group™s financial assets at amortized cost amounted to
P1,456,002,134 and P1,207,542,745, respectively, as disclosed in Note 28.

The Group’s financlal asset at FVTOCI is an equity instrument and its contractual terms do not
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.
In both years, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial asset measured at FWTOCI
amounted to P48,223,200 and P47,801,400, respectively, as disclosed in Note 10,

The Group”s primary document for a contract with a customer from real estate sale is a signed
contract to sell. It has determined, however, that in cases wherein contract to sell are not
signed by both parties, the combination of its other signed documentation such as reservation
agreement, official receipts, buyers’ computation sheets and invoices, would contain all the
criteria to qualify as contract with the customer under PFRS 15,

In addition, part of the assessment process of the Group before revenue recognition is to
assess the probability that the Group will collect the consideration to which it will be entitied
in exchange for the real estate property that will be transferred to the customer.

In evaluating whether collectabllity of an amount of consideration is probable, an entity
considers the significance of the customer’s initial payments in relation to the total contract
price. Collectability is also assessed by considering factors such as past history with the
customer, age and pricing of the property. Management regularly evaluates the historical
cancellations and back-outs if it would still support its current threshold of customers” equity
before commencing révenue recognition,

An entity satisfles a performance obligation by transferring control of a promised good or
service to the customer, which could ocour over time or at a point in time.

=.01.08.01 Sale of Real Estate

The Group concluded that revenue for real estate sales is to be recognized over time
because: {(a) the Group's performance does not creakte an asset with an alternative usa
and; (b} the Group has an enforceable right for performance completed to date.
The promised property is specifically identified in the contract and the contractual
restriction on the Group’s ability to direct the promised property for another use is
substantive, This is because the property promised to the customer is not interchangeable
with other properties without breaching the contract and without incurring significant costs
that otherwise would not have been incurred in relation to that contract.

In addition, under the current legal framework, the customer is contractually obliged to
make payments to the developer up to the performance completed to date. In addition,
the Group requires a certain percentage of buyer's payments of total selling price
({buyer's equity), to be collected as one of the criteria in order to initiate revenue
recognition. Reaching this level of collection is an indication of buyer's continuing
commitment and the probability that economic benefits will flow to the Group. The Group
considers that the initial and continuing investments by the buyer of about ten percent
(10%) would demonstrate the buyer’s commitment to pay.
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The Group has determined that input method used in measuring the progress of the
performance obligation faithfully depicts the Group's performance in transferring control
of real estate development to the customers,

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, revenue from sale of real estate amounted to P72,120,967,
R141,249,379, and P306,231,931, respectively, as discosed in Mote 18,

2.01.08.02 Sale of Goods

The Group identifies performance obligations by considering whether the promised goods
or services in the contract are distinct goods or services, A good or service is distinct when
the customer can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with other
resources that are readily available to the customer and the Group's promise to transfer
the good or service to the customer is separately identifiable from the other promises in
the contract. The Group delivers the best quality produce by exporting and locally
distributing all kinds of fruits and vegetables and other agri-products but its main products
are bananas, mangoes, and coconut water, The Group determined that the delivered
various agri-products are capable of being distinct and therefore considered as separate
performance obligations.

In 2022, 2021 amnd 2020, revenue from sale of goods amounted to B3, 764,706,512,
P4,408,038,999 and P4,102,517,051, respectively, as disclosed in Note 18,

A performance obligation is a vendor's promise to transfer a good or service that is “distinct”
from other goods and services identified in the contract,

Management assessed that allocation of transaction price to pedormance obligation is not
applicable because each performance obligation has stand-alone transaction price which is
distinct from one another.

The Group determines when a significant increase in credit risk ococurs on its financlal assets
based on the credit Management practice of the Group.

Management believes that the 30 days rebuttable presumption on determining whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk in financial assets is not applicable because based on the
Group's historical experience, credit risk has not increased significantly even the amounts are
past due for more than 30 days.

The Group determines when a default ococurs on Bts financlal assets based on the credit
management practice of the Group.

Management believes that the 20 days rebultable presumption on determining whether
financial assets are credit impaired is not applicable based on the Group's historical experience
the Group determines that past due amounts even over 90 days are still collectible.

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment properties, In making its
judgments, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by the entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash
flows that are attrbutable not only to the property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.
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Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use for administrative purposes. If these portions can be sold
separately (or leased out separately under finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portion cannot be sold separately, the property Is accounted for as
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied In determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.

The Group classified the construction in progress for retall and office spaces as investment
properties because these are intended for lease. Accordingly, the carrying amounts of
investment properties amounted to P1,349,544,703 and P1,188,425,936 as of Decamber 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively, as disclosed in Note 12 while land and building amounting to
P319,732,378 and P359,210,313, respectively, qualifies as property as it is held for operation,
as disclosed in Note 11.

After recognition as an asset, an item of property and equipment whose fair value can be
measured reliably shall be carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accoumilated
impairment losses. Revaluations shall be made with sufficlent regularity to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair
value at the end of the reporting pericd.

The frequency of revaluation depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of property
and equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from
its carrying amount, a further revaluation is required. Some items of property and equipment
experience significant and volatile changes in fair value, thus necessitating annual revaluation.
Such frequent revaluations are unnecessary for items of property and equipment with only
Insignificant changes in fair value, Instead, it may be necessary to revalue the item enly every
three (3] to five (5) years.

The revaluation surplus included in equity In respect of an item of property and eguipment
may be transferred directly to retained earnings when the asset is derecognized. This may
invalve transferring the whole amount of surplus when the asset is retired or disposed of.
However, some of the surplus may be transferred as the asset is used by an entity. In such
a case, the amount of the surplus transferred would be the difference between depreciation
based on the réevalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the assets
original cost. Transfers from revaluation surplus to retained earnings are not made through
profit or loss,

In making its judgment on the frequency of revaluation, management considered the
significant changes in the fair value of its revalued assets. Hence, a new revaluation was
adopted as of reporting periods. The Group also determined whether depreciation of its fixed
assets relates to property and equipment subseguently measured using cost model and
revaluation model, In doing 50, Management considerad the tax effect of the depreciation of
the revaluation surplus which corresponds to the revalued amount of property and egquipment.
Since transfers from revaluation surplus to retained eamings resulting from piecemeal
amortization are not made through profit or loss but are transferred directly to equity,
depreciation related to revalued assets is not deductible for tax purposes.

In both years, the Group assessed that the carrying amount of the revalued property and
equipment approximates its fair value. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying
amounts of the revalued property and equipment amounted to P290,222.875 and
P316,229,570, respectively, as disclosed In Note 11,

Management assessed that the lease of machinery, transportation equipment and store
premises qualified as a lease since each contract contains an identified asset, the Group has
the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits, and the Group has the right to
direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use,
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Lease term is the non-cancellable period for which the Group has the right to use an Lease
term is the non-cancellable period for which the Group has the right to use an underlying asset
Including optional periods when the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
[(or mot to terminate) a lease, The Company censiders all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the option when determining the lease
term and the enforceability of the option. The aption to extend the lease term should be
inchuded in the lease term if it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise the option and
the option is enforceable. The Group is required to reassess the option when significant events
oF changes In circumstances occur that are within the control of the lesses,

For lease contracts entered into in both years, most are renewable by mutual agreement,
except for contracts which does not contain a provision on renewal option. Management
assessed that these lease contracts cannot be extended beyond the non-cancelable lease
period since such are not enforceable under the Philippine law,

In both years, the Management used the lease term of four (4) to seven (7) years in the
computation of right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities.

When another party Is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the entity shall
determine whether the nature of its promise |s a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (l.e., the entity is a principal) or to arrange for the other party
to provide those goods or services (l.e., the entity Is an agent).

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Group assessed that it is acting as an agent and recognized
commission income from agency relationship amounting to P11,594,982, P10,020,207, and
P3,583,723, respectively, as disclosed In Nobe 22,

5.02 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainties

The following are the key assumptions concemning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainties at the end of the reporting pericds that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets and liabilities within the nest
financial year.

U 0 Kevene and Lost Recoamninan o Medal Esiale Frolects

The Group’s revenue recognition and cost policies require management to make use of
estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenues and costs.
The Group's revenue from real estate and construction contracts is recognized based on the
percentage of cormpletion (POC) are measured principally on the basis of the estimated
completion of a physical proportion of the contract work, Apart from Involving significant
estimates In determining the quantity of imports such as materials, labor and equipment
needed, the assessment process for the POC is comples and the estimated project
development costs requires technical determination by management’s specialists (project
engineers).

As of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, revenue from residential and commercial real
estate amounted to F72,120,967, P141,249,379 and P306,231,931, respectively, as disclosed
in Mote 18.

stimating Allowances for Expecle = -

The Group Incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the
credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its
measurement of ECL.
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The Group considers a range of relevant forward-looking macro-economic assumptions for the
determination of unblased general industry adjustments and any related specific industry
adjustments that support the calculation of ECLs. Based on the Group's evaluation and
assessment and after taking into consideration external actual and forecast information, the
Group formulates a "base case” view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as
well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves
developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative
probabilities of each outcome, External information includes economic data and forecasts
published by governmental bodies, monetary authorities and selected private-sector and
academic institutions.

The base case represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used by the
Group for other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other scenarios
represent more oplimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. Periodically, the Group carries out
stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination of these other
representative scenarios. The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk
and credit losses of each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical
data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit
losses.,

The Group applies general approach for determining the ECL of cash in banks, other
recelvables {except advances to officers and employees), due from related, refundable
deposits presented under "prepayments and other current assets’ and ‘deposits and other
non-current assets’. An expected credit losses is the difference between the cash flows
that are expected to be received discounted at the eriginal effective interest rate and
contractual cash flows in accordance with the contract. The loss allowance for financial
assets is based on the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Group recognized provision for expected credit losses on other
recelvables amounting to nil, nil and P43,316,857, respectively. The Group also made a
reversal of allowance for expected credit losses amounting to nil, P43,316,857 and nil, In 2022,
2021 and 2020, respectively. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, allowance for expected
credit losses on other receivables amounted to P3,516,118, as disclosed In Notes 7, 23
and 24,

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Group made a direct write-off of the allowance for expected
credit losses amounting to nil, nil and P4,978,013, respectively. As of December 31, 2022 and
2021, allowance for expected credit losses on due from related parties and stockholders
amounted to 6,460,530, as disclosed in Nobes 21, 23 and 24.

#As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, allowance for expected credit losses on refundable
deposits presented under "prepayments and other current assets’ and "deposits and other
nen-current assets’ amounted to PS5, 711,100, as disclosed in Notes 9 and 15

The Group applies the simplified approach in trade receivables to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all receivables and financial asset at
amortized costs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forwand-looking factors specific to the debktors and the
cconamic environment. Detailed information regarding the Company”s impairment of financial
assets is discussed in Note 28,

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Group recognized provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables amounting to nil, nil and P5,504,378, respectively. The Group also made a
reversal of allowance for expected credit losses amounting to nil, P36, 728,895 and nil, In 2022,
2021 and 2020, respectively. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, allowance for expected
credit losses on trade receivables amounted to P48,055 688, as disclosed in Motes 7, 23
and 24,



5.02,03 Fsti ing I i Net Realizable Val
Met realizable values of inventores are assessed regulardy based on the prevallimg selling
prices of inventories less estimated costs to sell. The Group recognizes expense and provides
allowance for decline in value of Iinventories whenever net realizable value of inventories
becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes on
price leviels or other causes. Inventory items identified to be obsolete and unusable |s written
off and charged against allowance account. Increase in the net realizable values will increase
the carrying amount through reduction of allowance for decline but only to the extent of
original acquisition cost,

In both years, Management believes the net realizable value of inventories approximate their
oosts, thus, no allowance for dedline in value was recognized. As of December 31, 2022 and
2021, inventories amounted to P1,369.818.823 and PL,317,.725.194, respectively, as
disclosed in Mote 8.

2.02.04 Fair Value of Investment Property

The Group has adopted the fair wvalue approach in determining the carrying value of its
investment property. While the Group has opted to rely on independent appraisers to
determine the fair value of its investment properties, such fair value was determined based
on recent prices of similar properties, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices. The amounts and
timing of recorded changes in fair value for any peried would differ if the Group made different
judgments and estimates or utilized different basis for determining fair value.

In 2021, the Management recognized gain on change in fair value of investment property
based on the valuation report dated December 27, 2020 by Guangdong Tianshun Land Real
Estate Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. amounting to P908, 745,817 as disclosed in Mote 12. The Royal
Chartered Surveyor has thoroughly and meticulousty analyzed the characteristics and actual
conditions project, and has studied the information provided by the client. On the basis of
market research, the property to be assessed is commercial (agricultural commadity trading
center) and leasing In nature, In grder to make the valuation results scientific, accurate and
objective, the appraizer use the market comparison methed and the income method to
evaluate thelr value. The comparative methed s to compare the real estate of the object of
valuation with the similar real estate that has been traded recently at the time of value, and
to make appropriate amendments to the transaction price of these similar real estate.
The income method is @ method to convert the net income of the expected valuation object
real estate in the future period into the present value of the value point by using the
appropriate reduction Interest rate, and to find the sum of its present value to determine the
real estate price,

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amount of investment property amounted o
P1,349,544,703 and P1,188,425 936, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 12.

2.02.05 Fair Value of Biological Assets

The Group has adopted the fair value approach in determnining the carrying wvalue of its
biclogical assets. The Group determines its fair value based on recent prices of similar assets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices. The amounts and timing of recorded changes in
fair value for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments and estimates or
utilized different basis for determining fair value,

The fair value of biological assets was derived using the market approach. In 2022, 2021 and
2020, the Management recognized gain on change in fair value of biclogical assets based on
the valuation amounting to P2,020,294, P17,612,321 and nil, as disclosed in Mote 14, As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of biological assets amounted to
P54,335,337 and P59,301,732, respectively, as disclosed in Note 14,
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2.02.06 Fair Value of Property and Equipment

The valuation has been carried gut on January 6, 2021, in accordance with the Santos Knight
Frank; Inc. incorporating the International Valuation Standards of the International Valuation
Standards Council (IWSC), and the Philippine Valuation Standards (PVS). In valuing the land,
Market Approach was used which is the most common technique for valuing land, and is the
most preferred method when comparable sales are available. With this method, sales of similar
property or parcels of land are analyzed, compared, and adjusted to provide a value Indication
for the property being appraised. The comparison process is based on an analysis of the
similarity or dissimilarity of the comparable. Cost Approach was used for the improvements
while a combination of the Market and Cost Approach was used for the machinery and
equipment. The Cost Approach generally involves the following steps: (a) The value of the
subject land Is normally estimated by the Market Data or Sales Comparison Approach.
In instances where avallable market data is sufficient, the Income Approach (Residual Method)
can be used, (b) The depreciated cost of the subject improvement is estimated by calculating
the direct cost of reproducing or replacing the improvement, deducting accrued depreciation
from all sources, and adding the Indirect costs attributed to the improvement, Combining the
estimates shown above results in the indicated value of the subject property by the Cost
Approach.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the camying amounts of property and equipment at
revalued amount are F290,222 875 and P316,229,570, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 11.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of the Group's property and
equipment are reviewed at least annually, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there
is an indication of a significant change in, how an asset is used; significant unexpected wear
and tear; technological advancement; and changes in market prices since the most recent
annual reporting date. The useful lives of the Group’s property and equipment are estimated
based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use, In determining
the useful life of property and equipment, the Group considers the expected usage, expected
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the market demand for the product or service
output and legal or other limits on the use of the Group's assets.

In addition, the estimation of the useful lives is based on Company’s collective assessment of
Industry practice, Internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is
possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in
estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of
recorded expenses for any pericd would be affected by changes im these factors and
circumstances.

A reduction in the estimated wseful lives of property and equipment would increase the
recagnized expenses and decrease non-current assets. The Group uses a depreciation method
that reflects the pattern in which it expects to consume the property and equipment’s future
econamic benefits. If there i an indication that there has been a significant change in the
pattern used by which the Group expects to consume the property and equipment’s future
econamic benefits, the entity shall review its present depreciation method and, If current
expectations differ, change the depredation method to reflect the new pattemn,

In both years, Management assessed that there are no indications that theare has been any
change in pattern used by the Group in consuming its property and equipment’s Tuture
econamic benefits.

The carrying amounts of depreciable property and equipment measured at revalued amounts
as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to P13B,222,875 and P164,229,570,

respectively, as disclosed in Note 11.01.
The carrying amaounts of depreciable property and equipment measured at cost as of December
31, 2022 and 2011 amounted to PBS,636,271 and P137,813,202, respectively, as disclosed in
MNote 11.02.



The residual value, useful life and amortization method of the Group's intangible assets are
reviewed at least annually, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, If there is an indication
of a significant change In, how an asset is used; technological advancement; and changes in
market prices since the most recent annual reporting date. Amortization begins when the
intangible asset is avallable for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for
it to be usable in the manner intended by Management. Amortization ceases when the
intangible asset is derecognized. The Group uses a straight-line method of amortization since
it cannot determine reliably the pattern In which it expects to consume the intangible asset's
future economic benefits,

In both years, Management assessed that there are no indications that there has been any
change in pattern used by the Group in consuming its Intangible assets’ future economic
benefits. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of the intangible assets
are P157,359,377 and P167,174,787, respectively, as disclosed in Note 13,

2.02.09 Asset Impairment

The Group performs an impairment review when certain impairment indicators are present.
Determining the fair value of advances to officers and employees, prepayments and other
current assets (except refundable deposits), property and equipment, right-of use assets,
intangible assets and deposits and other non-current assets (except refundable deposits),
which require the determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Group to make estimates
and assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements. Future events could cause
the Group to conclude that aforementioned assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss
could have a material adverse impact on the finandal condition and results of operations,

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significant juedgment and
estimations. While the Group believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable
values and may lead to future additional impairment charges under PFRS.

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Group recognized provision for impairment on prepayments and
other current assets amounting to nil, nil and P185,820, respectively, as disclosed in Motes 9
and 23.

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Group recognized provision for impairment on deposits and other
non-current assets (except refundable deposits) amounting to nil, nll and 85,640,000,
respectively.

In both years, Management assessed that no indicators of impalrment had existed on property
and equipment, investment property, right-of use assets and intangible assets.

A5 of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the aggregate carmying amounts of advances to officers
and employees, prepayments and other current assets {except refundable deposits), property
and equipment, Investment property, right-cf use assets, intangible assets and depaosits and
other non-current assets (except refundable deposits) amounted to P3,150,907,753 and
£3,187,800,734, respectively, as disclosed in Notes 7, 9, 11, 12, 13 and 15.

202,10 Deferred Tax Assels

The Group reviews the carrying amounts at each reporting period and reduces deferred tax
assets to the extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized prior to its expliration.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group recognized deferred tax assets from effect of
PFRS 16, retirement obligation and allowance for impairment losses amounting bo P11,772 444
and P10,009, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 26. In both years, Management believes that
future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of deferred tax assets to be utilized

prior to expiration,
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202,11 Post-emploviment Banafits

The determination of the retirement obligation and cost and other retirement benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions include among others, discount rates, mortality of plan members
and rates of compensation increase. In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from
the assumptions and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized directly
u;lmrn-easurtmmu in other comprehensive income and therefore, generally affect related
abligation.

While the Group believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially
affect the pension and other retirement obligations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s retirement benefit obligation are P22,723,726 and
P19,275,038, as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, as disclosed in Note 25.

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the retirement benefit expense recognized are P3,566,127,
P3,144,024 and P1,554,161, respectively, as disclosed in Notes 23 and 25,

In 2022, 2021 and 2020, the remeasurement amounted to gain and loss of P117,439,
4,042,199 and nil, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 25.

5.02. 12 Assessment of Joint Control

Joint contral is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an armmangement, which exists
enly when dedsions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. An entity has a control when it is exposed, or has rights to variable retumns
from invalvement with the arrangement and has the ability to affect those returns through
their power over the arrangement.

In both years, Management assessad that the contractual armangement with a third party and
the landowners gives both parties joint control since dedsion about the relevant activities
requires the unanimous consent of both parties sharning cantral.

The joint arrangement is classified into joint cperations and joint ventures, The joint operations
are a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement while the
joint wenture |5 @ joint arrangement whereby the parties that hawve joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The joint arrangement agreed
by the Group and a third party and the landowners was mutually cassified by both parties as
2 joint venture,

Management believes that a joint venture arrangement will maintain the parties” rights to net
assets,

if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
Assessments require the use of estimates and assumptions such as market evaluation and
trends, discount rates, future capital requirements and operating performance. If the
recoverable amount of the unit exceeds the carrying amount of the goodwill, the goodwill shall
be regarded as not impaired.

Ho provision for impairment of goodwill was recognized In 2022, 2021 and 2022,

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of goodwill amounted to
P35.488,046 and P39,232,347, respectively, as disclosed in Note 13,



+02.15 Contingencies

The Group Is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable
costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counsed
handling the defense of these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. The
Growp currently does not believe that these proceedings will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements (see Motes 7 and 37).

Cash

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Cash on hand P973,683 P31,861,174
Cash in banks 97,801,177 48,334,058

P98,774,860  P80,195,232

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates of less than 1.0%
annually. This includes checks on hand undeposited as at year-end. Interest income
earned from cash in banks, net of final taxes withheld, amounted to P15,335, #23,398
and P32,686, In 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Group has cash in banks denominated in foreign currencies such as USD, HKD and
RMB. These cash in banks were translated as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 at closing
rates, In 2022, 2021 and 2020, unrealized forelgn exchange gain (loss) on cash in banks
denominated im foreign currencies amounted to P107.041, P267 and R7,082,
respectively, as disclosed in Mote 28.

7.

Trade and Other Recelvables - net

This account consists of;

Hote 2022 2021
Trade 18 465,913,170 P363,628,263
Advances to officers and employees 65,579,047 63,561,313
Others 193,571,931 169,876,155

725,064,148 797,065,731

Less allowance for expected credit losses:

Trade receivables 48,055,688 48,055,688
Advances to officers and employees 3,654,834 3,654,834
Others 3,516,118 3,516,118

55,226,640 55,226,640

P665,837,508 P741,835,031

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are collectible within 30 to 90 days.
These are generally settled through cash payment or application of customers’ deposit,
if any.

Advances to officers and employees are noninterest bearing and subject to liquidation.

Other receivables as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 include non-interest-bearing
receivables from sales of scraps and first-class rejects, which are sold to local wet market
at a lower price. This is generally collectible on 15 to 30-day terms.
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Other receivables also indude receivable from a third party amounting to #64,655,714
which is included In an ongoing criminal action initiated by the Group to recover the said
receivable among others (see Note 15). The amount is guaranteed by a stockholder in
the event of an adverse result of the ongoing case and is provided with an allowance for
impairment amounting to P43,316,857 as at December 31, 2020, In 2021, the allowance
was reversed since the Management believes that it can still recover the amount since
it is guaranteed by the stockholders.

The Group has trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currency which are
transiated at December 31, 2022 and 2021 dosing rates. In 2022, 2021 and 2020,
unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) on trade receivables denominated in foreign
currencies amounted to 6,835,855, (P3,091,144) and (Pe42,767), respectively, as
disclosed in Mote 28,

Movements in allowance for expected credit losses pertalning to trade receivables,
advances to officers and employees and other receivables Follows:

Note 2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year 55,226,640 P135,272,392
Reversal during the year 24 - (80,045,752)
Balance at end of year P55,226, 640 PL5, 226 640

None of the Group's receivables were pledged to any of its liabilities.

All receivables are unsecured and neninterest-bearing.

Inventories

This account consists of the following at cost:

2022 2021

Property for sale PE70,601,344 PA04, 871,695

Merchandise, furmniture and appliances 348,197,927 303,478,125
Agricultural produce, beverages and

vegan products 117,994,394 B2,778,207

Packaging materials and other supplies 33,025,158 26,599,167

P1,369,B18,823 Pl 317,725,194

Property for sale represents development costs and construction materials for residential
and commercial units of Shengmel Century Plaza Development Project located in Jiawang
District, X¥uzhou, China.

The cost of inventories recognized as part of “Cost of Sales” in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income amounted to P3,427.846,093 In 2022,
P£4,055,419,257 in 2021, and P3,897,009,772 in 2020 (see Note 22}.

The carrying amounts of the total inventories as at December 31, 2022 and 2021
approximate their NRVs, There were no purchase commitments and accrued net losses
an inventories in 2022, 2021 and 2020.

No provision for inventory obsolescence or impairment was recognized in 2022, 2021 and
2020.

Inventories are not pledged as security for any of the Group's liabilities,
The inventories are expected to be recovered within the Group's normal operating cycle.
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9. Prepayments and Other Current Assets - net

This account consists of the following at cost:

2022 2021
Prepaid expense P2,238,473 P1,123,309
Input VAT - net 136,034,959 132,781,531
Advances to suppliers 33,282,975 53,267,630
Refundable deposits (Note 27) 15,329,303 14,890,492
Creditable withholding taxes {(CWTs) 934,747 1,775,589
Deferred input VAT 335,925 335,925
Materials and supplies 95,484 142,040
188,261,866 204,316,916

Less allowance for Impairment losses:
Refundable deposits 6,711,100 6,711,100
Input VAT 5,251,353 5,251,353
CWTs 531,525 531,525
12,493,978 12,493,978

P175,767,888 191,822,938

Prepaid expense includes insurance, short-term lease rental and IT services.
Prepaid insurance refers to insurances of wehicles, equipment and construction in

progress,

Input VAT arises from purchase of goods and services. Purchase of goods include
packaging and other supplies while purchase of services include but not limited to tolling
and professional fees and other contracted services,

Advances to suppliers represent non-interest bearing advanced paymeants to third-party
forgign and local suppliers for wvarious future dellvery of purchases of goods and
performance of services.

Refundable deposits are made for shori-term store-leased spaces of the Group.
These deposits will be refunded upon end of lease term.

Creditable withholding taxes are considered prepayments which are claimed for the tax
to be paid during the year and are carried over in the succeeding period for the same

pUrpose,

10. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

On April 3, 2018, the Group acquired 15% cwnership of CMP Supply Chain Management
(Shanghal) Co. Ltd, a company incorporated in China. The acquired shares are classified
as financlial assets at AVOCT amounting to 48,223,200 (CNY6,000,000) and P47, 801,400
(CNY&,000,000) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

This account was translated as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 at closing rates,
In 2022, 2021 and 2020, effect of foreign balance translation amounted to P421.800,
F3,720,000 and P574,200, respectively, as disclosed in Note 28.

11. Property and Equipment - net

The carrying amounts of the Company’s property and equipment are as follows:

2022 2021

At revalued amounts (Note 11.01) P290,222,875  P316,229,570
At cost (Mote 11.02) 168,208,242 298,311,725
Pa58,431,117  P614,541,295
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As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group's property and equipment were measured
at revalued amount based on the valuation report dated January 6, 2021. The fair value
of the Group’s land has been determined by independent firm of appraisers accredited
by SEC. The valuation has been carried out in accerdance with the Santos Knight Frank,
Inc, incorporating the International Valuation Standards of the International Valuation
standards Council (IVSC), and the Philippine Valuation Standards (PVS]). In valuing the
land Market Approach was used which is the most common technique for valuing land,
and Is the most preferred method when comparable sales are available. With this
method, sales of similar property or parcels of land are analyzed, compared, and
adjusted to provide a value indication for the property being appraised. The comparison
process is based on am analysis of the similarity or dissimilarity of the comparable. Cost
Approach was used for the improvements while a combination of the Market and Cost
Approach was used for the machinery and equipment. The Cost Approach generally
invalves the following steps: (a) The value of the subject land Is normally estimated by
the Market Data or Sales Comparison Approach. In instances where avallable market
data is sufficient, the Income Approach (Residual Method) can be used,
(b} The depreciated cost of the subject improvement is estimated by calculating the
direct cost of reproducing or réplacing the improvement, deducting accrued depreciation
from all sources, and adding the indirect costs attributed to the improvement. Combining
the estimates shown above results in the indicated value of the subject property by the

Cost Approach,

The Group periodically amartizes revalpation increment over the lives of the assets by
crediting the equlvalent depreclation on the appraisal increase to retained earnings.
Effectively, the fair value is realized through the use of the assets as the Group generates
income firom operations.

Land and bullding located in Pulilan, Bulacan with carrying value of P237,713,874, and
p241 205,182 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, are used as collaterals
for one of ts lang-term liabilities under Bank 3 (see Mote 11}).
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Depreciation of property and equipment were charged to the following:

Notes 2022 2021 2020

Cist of sales 23 P24,528,400 PG, 311,152 P20,985,614
General and administrative expenses 23 31,909,802 20,517,708 35,007,176
_Tetal depeeciation P56,438,202 _ Pa6,628,660 P56,982,790

Certain assets such as delivery and transportation equipment, buildings and machinery
equipment are covered by insurance. In 2018, three ({3) delivery trucks under
transportation equipment of the Group, amounting to P3,022,800, is mortgaged as
collateral for its own auto-loan (see MNote 17). The carrying wvalue of the trucks as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to 562,246 and P1,236,994, respectively.

If the property and equipment carried at revalued amounts were measured using cost
madel, its cost and carrying amount would have been the following:

2022 2021
Land P122,875,830  P122,875,830
Building 45,012,787 47 404,065
Store and warehouse equipment 4,001,768 4,483,440
Delivery and transportation equipment 418,338 803,540
Machinery and equipment 12,716,024 23,460,807
Office furniture and fixtures 1,340,160 1,703,195
Leasehold improvement 587,402 232,105

P186,952,309 P200,963,386

The Group’s commitment to acquire property s discussed in Note 15. The Group's
Management had reviewed the carrying values of property and equipment as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 for any possible impairment. Based on the evaluation, there
are no Indications that the property and equipmant are impaired.

The remaining property and equipment of the Group are not pledged as security to any of
the Group's liabilities,




12, Investment Property

This pertains to construction-in-progress for retail and office spaces intended for lease.
The roliforward analysis of construction-in-progress under investment property follows:

Note 2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year £1,188,425,936 P262,348,B77
Transferred to inventory 33 {6,243,548) [146,666451)
Transferred from advances to contractors 33 156,875,631 38,531,280
Effect of forelgn exchange translation 10,486,682 125,466,413
Gain on change in fair value - 908,745,817
Balance at end of year P1,349,544,703 P1,188,425,936

The Group’s Management had reviewed the carrying values of investment property as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 for any possible impairment, Based on the evaluation, there
are no indications that the investment property is impaired.

In 2021, the Management recognized gain on change in fair value of Investment property
based on the valuation report dated December 27, 2020 by Guangdong Tianshun Land
Real Estate Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd, amounting to P90B, 745,817, The Roval Chartered
Surveyor has thoroughly and meticulously analyzed the characteristics and actual
conditions of the project, and has studied the information provided by the client, On the
basis of market research, the property to be assessed is commercial (agricultural
commedity trading center) and leasing in nature, In order to make the valuation results
scientific, accurate and objective, the appraiser use the market comparison method and
the income method to evaluate their value. The comparative method s to compare the
real estate of the object of valuation with the similar real estate that has been traded
recently at the time of value, and to make appropriate amendments to the transaction
price of these similar real estate. The Income method is a methed to convert the net
income of the expected valuation object real estate In the future period Into the present
value of the value point by using the appropriate reduction interest rate, and to find the
sum of its present value to determine the real estate price.,

The Group's investment properties are not pledoed as security for any of the Group's
liabilitles. The Group has no contractual commitment to purchase investrment property.
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The calculations of value In use are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

» Gross Margins. Gross marging are based on average values achieved in the period
immediately before the budget period. These are increases over the budget period
for anticipated efficlency improvements. Values assigned to key assumptions reflect
past experience, except for efficiency improvement.

» Discount Rates, The Group uses the welghted-average cost of capltal as the discount
rate, which reflects managements estimate of the risk specific to sach unit. This is
the benmchmark used by management to assess operating performance and to
evaluate future investments proposals.

= Raw Material Price Inflation. Consumer price forecast is obtained from Indices during
the budget perlod from which raw materials are purchased. Values assigned to key
assumptions are consistent with external sources of information.

MNo impairment loss for goodwill was recognized in all years.

Franchise

On Januwary 7, 2011, the Group entered into a Master Licensing Agresment with Tully's
Coffes International Pte. Ltd. for the operation of coffee shops and sale of coffee products
under the brand "Tully's”. The term of the license is for a period of ten (10) years but
may be extended for ancther ten (10) years. Under the agreement, the Group paid
%200,000 equivalent to P9.05 million as a sign-up fee.

In 2021, the term of the franchise is extended for another 10 years.
Computer saftwane
Computer software pertains to the accounting software used by the Group. The carrying

value of computer software Is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable,

Total amortization recognized in the consolidated profit and loss for the above intangible
asset amounted to 10,127,145, P10,078,056 and P10,925,303 in 2022, 2021 and 2021,
respectively (see Noke 23).

Mo impalrment loss for trademark and computer software were recognized in all years.
The Group's Intangible assets are not pledged as security to any of the Group's liabilities.
The Group has no contractual commitment to purchase intangible assets.

14. Biological Assets

Consumable biclogical assets include corns, bokchoy, italian parsley, green ice lettuce,
romaine, kallaan and coriander. These are located in agricultural farms In Tanauan and
Batulao Batangas and Bansalan, Davao del Sur.

The mowvements in the carrying amounts of the biological assets are shown below:

Yaar incuned 2022 2021
Balance, January 1 P£59,301,732 P-
Increases due to purchases = 41689411
Harvest during the year (6,986,689)
Gain arising from changes in
fair value less costs to sell 2,020,294 17,612,321
Balance, December 31 P54,335,337 P59,301,732
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15. Deposits and Other Moncurrent Assets - net

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Advances and deposits (Note 15.01) PGET 462,402 PEBE6, 799,121
Deposit for future investments (Note 15.02) 216,154,185 214,263,521
Refundable deposits (Note 15.03) 1,774,276 1,774,276
905,390,863 902,836,918
Less allowance for impalrment loss {(6,640,000) (&, 640 000)
PB98, 750,863 RB96, 196,918
15.01 Advances and Deposits
Breakdown of advances and deposits are as follows:
2022 2021
Deposit for land acquisition (Mote 15.01,01) A508,700,000 PSOE, 700,000
Deposit for business acquisition (Note 15.01.02) 107,444,301 106,781,020
Advances to farm growers (Note 15.01.03) 34,068,101 34,068,101
Advance payment to Tolman (Mote 15.01.04) 30,610,000 30,610,000
Advances to project (Mote 15.01.05) 6,640,000 6,640,000
687,462,402 686,799,121
Less: allowance for impairment of
advances to project (6,640,000) (6,640,000)
P680,822, 402 PGB0, 159,121

Detalls of advances and deposits include the following:

15.01.Q1 Deposit for Land Acquisition

On December 28, 2018, the Group and a third-party individual entered into an agreesment
to form a joint venture to develop a property located in Taytay Rizal. Relative to this, the
Parent Company made a deposit amounting to A300,000,000 to acquire a portion of the
859 hectares, or a corresponding portion thereof, of titled and untitled parcels of land.

In 2019, the Group made additional deposit amounting to P208,700,000 which was
advanced by one of its stockholders, The parties are in the process of executing the
projects under the Joint Venture Agreement. The joint venture shall incude but not
limited to the formation of the following: Phase 1 - Transportation Hub, Phase 2 =
Food Terminal and Phase Property Development Corporation. As of reporting period,
the masterplan for the design of the food terminal were already completed.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit for land acquisition amounted to
P508,700,000.

15.01.02 Deposit for Business Acquisition
Breakdown of deposit for business acquisition is as follows:

2022 2021

Freshness First Pty Ltd. {(Note 15.01.02.01) P2T 817,501 P27.154,220

Plentex Philippines, Inc. {Note 15.01.02.02) 73,376,800 73,376,800
Agricultural Bank of the Philippines, Inc,

(MNote 15.01.02.03) 6,250,000 6,250,000

P107,444,301 P106,781,020




Detalls of deposit for business acquisition Include the following:

15.01.02,01 Freshness First Pty Lid,

On December 28, 2018, the Group made a deposit amounting to ALUDL72,000 or
PE,349,435 to acquire existing business operation in Australia,

In 2021, the Group made additional deposit amounting to AUDS63, 866 or P20 824 104,

This deposit was translated at December 31, 2022 and 2021 dosing rates. Unrealized
foreign exchange gain amounted to P663,281 and P69,849 in 2021 (see Note 2B).

Az of reporting period, the investment to Freshness First Pty. Ltd. was still undergoing
finalization of legal documents.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit amounted to P27,817,501 and P27,154 220,
respectively.

15.01.02,02 Plentex Philippines, Inc,

On December 20, 2019 and September 9, 2020, the BOD and the shareholders of the
Group, respectively, have approved the issuance of shares to Plentex Philippines, Inc.
{Plentex). Plentex has subscribed for 6,172,800 shares and the Group has agreed to issue

the same at a wvalue of P18 per share which is to be paid through the issuance of
30,000,000 shares of Plentex Limited.

Flentex is a Philippine Corporation that is developing a substantial large scale
agri-business center in Tacloban, Leyte. Plentex is a subsidiary of Plentex Limited,
unlisted Australian public company in Victoria, Australia,

The subscription agreements have no definite timeline and are based on the mutual
agreement of both parties.

In 2021, the first batch of the issuance of shares pertaining to the subscription agreement
with Plentex Philippines, Inc, were made resulting to an increase in subscribed and paid-up
capital amounting to P2,057,600 and additional paid-in capital amounting P34,979,159, as
disciosed In Mote 19,

A= of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit amounted to P73,376,800.

15.01.02.03 Agricultural Bank of the Phillppines. Inc.

On June 13, 2018, the Group made a deposit amounting to PG,250,000 to a local bank
to acquire 2,500,000 common shares of another company representing 12.5%
ownership. The said investment is still for approval of SEC and Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
{BSP). As of reporting period, the investment was already approved by the BSP, however
still pending approval from the SEC.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit amounted to P6,250,000.

15.01.03 Advances [0 Farm Growers

In 2020, the Group has agreements with various owners of mango farm lots to provide
farm inputs In the growing mangoes such as fertilizers and pesticides, In exchange for
share in the produce. Advances as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to
p34,068,101.
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45.01.04 Agvances to Tolman

Advance payment to Tolman Manufacturing Inc. (*Tolman®) for future acquisition of
equipment necessary for pre-processing, sterilization, aseptic storage and clean in place
station for coconut water amounted to P30.6 million as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
The Group has ongoing criminal action against Tolman to recover the advance payment
mentioned. In 2019, the Group filed a complaint-affidavit charging the directors, officers
and shareholders (respondents) of Tolman, with the crime estafa. The Group alleges that
during the negotiation stage of the Shareholders Agreement, respondents represented to
the Group that Tolman is in the process of increasing Its authorized capital stock from
which the shares of the Group will be issued upon the latter's delivery of cash, eguipment
and other resources. Relying on such representation, the Group entered into a
Shareholders Agreement and delivered to Tolman B30,000,000 cash, UHT processing
equipment worth P134,000,000 and lease payments In the amount of P46,000,000,
Despite receipt of said cash, equipment and lease payments, respondents falled to lssue
the Group's shares of stock, Worst, no application to increase the capital stock was ever
made before or during the existence of the Shareholders Agreement. In the resolution
dated January 29, 2021, the Office of the City of Prosecutor of Makati finds a sufficient
ground to engender a well-founded belief that the crime of Estafa under Article 315,
paragraph 2 [a) was committed by respondent Emmanuel V. Duenas. The amount Is
guaranteed by a stockholder in the event of an adverse result of the ongoing case.
Due to the foregoing, the total outstanding recelvables of the Group from Tolman Is
considered to be fully recoverable as at December 31, 2022, In addition, the assets of
Actron Industries, Inc., Jemana Holdings, Inc. and Duenas in Tolman exceeds the claims
of the Group against the outstanding receivables. A civil case has been filed to further
pursue for the overall claim of the Group against the concerned parties,

12.01.05 Advances to Profect

Provision for impairment loss amounting to P5,640,000 was recognized in 2020
(sea Mote 23).

15.02 Depoasgit for Future Investments

In 2017, Fucang made a deposit amounting to P194.7 million to invest in Guangzhou
Tianchen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, a real estate company in China,
The balance of this deposit amounted to P197.6 million (CNY 26.8 million) and P197.6
milllion (CNY 26.8 million) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively and shall be

converted to equity once the construction projects of Tianchen is completed. As at
reporting date, the construction is 90% completed and is expected to be finished on the
fourth quarter of 2023. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit for future
investments amounted to P216,154,185 and P214,263,521, respectively.

15.03 Refundable Deposits

Refundable deposits are related to long-term operating and finance lease properties of
the Group (see Note 27).

The balance of refundable deposits as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 was based on the
discounting of future cash flows using the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Accretion
income from the discounting of refundable deposits amounted to nil, nil, and P&9,687 in
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 27). As of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
refundable deposits amounted to P1,774,276.
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16. Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Trade payables P148,154,764 P128,486,313
MNon-trade payables 394,098,260 402,345,434
Customers’ deposits
Real estate 29,210,056 45,605,212
Sale of goods 12,820,371 22,280,318
Accrued sxpenses 11,678,096 6,179,825
Government payables 5,703,654 5,171,163
Accrued interest (Note 17) 3,779,750 1,272,759
P605,444,951  P611,431,024

Tr;ch! payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are generally settled within one
(1) month.

Non-trade payables mainly indude unsecured and non-interest bearing payable to
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Fund GMHB (TLCIF) subsequently assigned by
TLCIF to Greenergy Holdings Inc. (GHIL), as consented by GHI on December 29, 2014,
with the following terms and conditions;

a. The Group shall pay the non-trade payables on or before December 31, 2016 in cash or
non-cash assets acceptable to GHI; and

b. If the non-trade payables will be paid with non-cash assets, the appraised value thereof
shall be determined by an independent appraiser mutually acceptable to the Group and
GHI.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, non-trade payables to GHI amounting to P250,118,737
are not yet settled, Non-trade payables also include outstanding liabilities to nontrade
suppliers.

Customers” deposits pertain to advanced collections from customers for goods o be
delivered and excess of collections over the progress of work for sale of real estate
projects under pre-completion stage.

Accrued expenses are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear
interest. These pertain to accruals made for utilities, association dues, security services,
salaries and wages and professional fees. Accruals are made based on the prior month’s
billings and/or contracts and are normally settled within 12 months from the end of the

reparting period.
Government payables include expanded withholding taxes, withhelding taxes on

compensation, final taxes, social security, government heaith and other fund premiums
which are paid within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s pavables amounting to P2,742,091, P4,000,521, and B22,929,353 as at
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, representing old balances and with no
follow-ups for claims, and also pertains to excess accruals, were derecognized in the
same years, after Management has determined that these are no longer part of the
Group's obligations (sea MNote 24).
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17.Borrowings

Details of this account are as fallow:

2022 2021

Long-term (Mote 17.01)
Bank 1 (Note 17.01.01) £ 29,053,571 104,267,857
Bank 2 (Note 17.01.02) - 6,214,574
Others 8,415,932 9,084,693
37,469,493 119,567,124
Less: noncurrent portion - 29,372,043
Current portion P 37,469 493 Q0 195 081

Short-term {Note 17.02)
Bank 3 (Note 17.02.01) # 290,942,137 392,200,000
Bank 4 (Note 17.02.02) 231,600,000 255,600,000
Bank 5 (Note 17.02.03) 110,000,000 197,000,000
Bank & (MNote 17.02.04) 99,959,000 -
Bank 7 (Note 17.02.05) 50,000,000 =
Others 3,000,000 3,000,000
P 785,501,137 847,800,000

The rollforward analysis of borrowings follows:
2022 2021
Balance at beginning of the year B 967,367,124 P 786,508,717
Avaliments during the year 187,300,000 335,314,386
Payments during the year (331,696,494)  (154,855,979)

Balance at end of year P 822,970,630 P 967,367,124

Im 2022, 2021 and 2020, foreign exchange adjustment pertains to realized foreign
exchange loss amounting to nil, nil and P138,555 arising from the settlement of foreign

currency loan.

17.01 Long-term Borrowings
12.01.01 Bank 1

The Group has various loans, which pertain to its Short-term Loan Line (STLL), Export
Packing Credit Line (EPCL), Trust Receipt Lines (TR Lines) and other bank loans that are
currently maturing as of the end of the reporting period. The loans bear interest rate of
6% per annum, with the interest payable on a monthly basis.

The loans are secured by an existing real estate mortgage over its land and building
located in Pulilan, Bulacan. The aggregate amount of net book values of the land and
building mortgage amounted to P237,713,874, and P241,205,182 as at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively (see Note 11). The loan has been fully settled as of 1%

guarter of 2023,



12.01.02 Bank 2

The Group has a current loan facility with loan bearing interest rate of 8.0% per annum,
with interest payable on a monthly basis. The loan has a term of 32 months, and is
payable via 24 monthly amortization of principal and interest, payable from January 2016
to December 2017, inclusive of a grace period of B months on the payment of the principal
from May 2015 to December 2015. On June 30, 2017, the loan was restructured and
has a remaining term of 60 months, principal payable every month starting October 2017.

The loan is secured by pledge on shares of stocks of the Group and continuing suretyship
with a stockholder. The loan was fully paid in 2021,

17.02 Short-term Borrowings

17.02.01 Bank 3

In both years, the Group availed various short-term, unsecured loans, bearing an interest
rate of B.50% per annum, with the interest payable on a monthly basis.
The loan is to be repriced every 30 to 180 days upon mutual agreement of both parties.

17.02.02 Bank 4

In both years, the Parent Company availed unsecured, short-term loans with interest rate
of 7.75% per annum, payable in three {3} months.

17.02.03 Bank 5

In both years, the Parent Company availed unsecured, short-term loans with interest rate
ranging from 8.25% to 8,50% per annum, payable in s5ix (6) months.

17.02.04 Bank &

In 2022, the Parent Company availed unsecured, short-term loans with interest rate of
6.50% per annum, payvable in six [6) months,

17.02.05 Bank 7

In 2022, the Parent Company availed unsecured, short-term loans with Interest rate of
6.80% per annum, payable in six (&) months,

Dther loans indude the following:

« [In 2018, TBC avalled a loan from a local bank, amounting to P3,022,800 for acquisition
of three units of delivery trucks, with an interest rate of 9.4% per annum, payable in five
{5) years. Outstanding balance of loan as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted
to PSE2,246 and P1,236,994, respectively, which are secured by a chattel mortgage
(see Mote 11).

« In May 2004, the previous owners of FCI obtained a noninterest-bearing, unsecured loan
amounting to #13,650,000 from the Agricultural Competitiveness Enhancement Fund
(ACEF) of the Department of Agriculture (DA) through the chosen conduit bank,
Land Bank of the Philippines for the additional working capital and expansion of fruit
processing facilities. The loan is payable quarterly within five (5) years starting
September 2005 to June 2009,

Due to unfavorable effects of economic conditions, FCI proposed to settle the ACEF
loan with monthly payments of P30,000 starting October 2007. The Company also
has the option to pay the loan at P100,000 quarterly. The DA subsequently approved
the proposal in September 2012,
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The loan was restructured as a result of the decision made by the ACEF Executive
Committee (EXECOM) with FCI proposed for deferment of 10% outstanding balance
amounting to P1,046,000 to be paid on January 31, 2019, The corresponding balance
ko be paid at P831,570, quarterly, for three (3) vears, starting on March 31, 2019,
amount inclusive of fixed annual Interest of 2%. Interest of P47,070 is payable on a
quarterly basis, upon payment of principal. Qutstanding balance of the loan
amounted to P7,060,500 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

= AN availed short-term, unsecured loans from third-party individuals which bear interest
ranging from 1% to 2% and hawve terms of 1-12 months. Outstanding balance of these
loans amounted to P5.7 million as at December 31, 2020, The loan was settled in 2021.

« FFCI availed short term, unsecured loans which bear interest rate of 1% per rmonth,
payable on a monthly basis and have maximum terms of three {3) to six {(6) months,
Outstanding balance of these loans amounted to P3,000,000 as at December 31, 2022
and 2021,

Finance cost incurred an the above borrowings Is as follows:

2022 2021
Long-term borrowings P 52,042,047 P 28,037,115
Short-term borrowings 5,902,650 13,773,958

P 579446907 P 41811073

Movements of accrued interest, as disclosed in Mote 15 are as follows:

2022 2021
Accrued interest, beginning P 1,272,759 P 3,301,164
Interest incurred 57,944,697 41,811,073
Interest paid (55,437, 706) (43,839, 478)
Accrued interest, ending (o 3,779,750 P 1,272,759

The maturity profile for the Group's borrowings as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as
follows:

Maturity Profile 2022 2021
Due within one (1) year P B22970,630 P 937,995,081
Due beyvond one (1) year but not more

than five (5) years - 29,372,043

P 822,970,630 P 967,367,124

The Company Is compliant with the terms and conditions of the loan contracts.

The loan agreements do not contain provisions on specific ratios and corresponding threshold
that should be maintained.

65



£9

6LV LLB'OEB'Ed S6BEGL GLILd OI9'10009d  SCL 0GE'LIEd OvZ IFI98L'Id 2301
STE'65T - STE'6ST - - AjjeAoa pue asouely
LEB'OPE'D - - LEB'OVE'D UD|SSIWILLIOD SRS
ET6'800'98 = = ET6'800'98 = L=l
ES0'0F6'09 - - S91'805 B68'TEF09 aaung
S6TTHL'6S - S6T'IFL'6S - - sabeiaasq pue poo) sHsoIy
tLE'STO'BET vLE'STO'RET pOOJEDS
958'999'2T - - 0LL'WE9'E 980'TL6'8T JIEM JNUOI0Y
L96'0ET'EL L96'0ET'EL - - - ajelsa |ead
|R1243UWOD pUR [BUIPISIH
TER'BOT'IVE C68'BOTTVE - - - yebpeb pue aunjuing
TL0'F60'TEE TL0'F60°TEE - - s|eagew Buppng
ETETTIY LLL ETETIV'LLL - - - PSIpURYIIIN
EB8S'L0T'0F8'Id BLT'TES ST - EVO'BES'YIZd  THT'LEL'90T'Td sa|qeiaban pue 53Ny
SuUry EEE&%
6LP LTROER'Ed SER'EGTZ'GLT'Td OT9'TO0'09d SC.0BE TIEdD 9¥Z IPI 98L Td =30l
098t - = = 095"t T
TSE'ES - - - TS6'ES eperuR)
ESS'ERG - - - ESS'ER6 1503 IPPIW
86E'600°T - - = 86E'600'T ueder
SLL'ovT's - - - SLLobT's nesey
LER'DOB'ET - - - LEB‘0DDR'ET vsn
TZ¥'095°ET - - - TZ¢095'ET Buoy Buoy
BEE'TGHE'TLE - 0T9'100'09 BTL'DBE'TIE - sauddijiyd
P9 'IBL'STY'Ed SER'EGE'GLI'Td -d -d ISL°L8Y'9ET Td BUIYD
jenydesboan
=01 Bujpen ubjaiog 1eyay uo@Ng ISP [E207 wodx3 KoBayes
TTOT

'QT0Z pue T707 'Z707 '1£ Jeqwasa papua sieak 3yl Joy satunos sofew Agq dnousy S43 Jo SaNUaASS JO S|SA|EUE BU] SMOYS MOpaq Bige) syl

BNUBASYH "BT




HLEHEE 605 td ERE' 9T B9y Id GES LBE Cid EBR'GET BOSH 996 £E9 055 Td [EETR
Z15 452 - Z15 452 - - AQEAcd pUR SSIpURl]
GBF916'9 # e 52F 9169 LIOISSILILIGD 5385
rZO'OPT'ZE - FZ0'OF1'ZT - - safiesanag pue pooy Juesnelsay
OLF'FO0'EE - - - OLb'PO0 ZY PRUNg
BFE'SGR'SO - FI6"969'C FEF'R9TED JEgEA JNUGoas)
GLE'GRE THT GLE'BRE THT - - - DIRISD B [BOIDLLICD PUR [RRUIPISIY
Z0E'£59° 18T ZOE'£e9'18T - poojess
SRT'0ET'E9E - - SBZ'0ET'E9E 201y
g01'85Z S0P q01'8se S0k - - 5] pUR LIS
BEZ ST OFY BEZ LS ObF - - sjeuagew Bup)ing
BER'S0R T GE8'S0R'TEy . - - jafipeb pue aungiuing
GOE'SR9 LEY Td 6E0'6E8"958d - S0Z"96E'SETd 790108 S0 Td sa|qejaban pue syniy
BUST SANASSE S0000 Jofep)
B.EBBT GFS bd  EBGOTT BOF fd  9EG LGL Zd £68'6E1 205 996 EE9 055 Td EI0L
696126 P9 = = = EO6 126 ¥9 E2El i e
PEPTZOE - - PP TZ0E 1583 3PP
BIL'0EE'S - - BLLOER'S Buoy Buoy
6EF'LES0ES - QES'LBE'EE £68"GET'ROS - saupdd|jiyd
88L°9/E'SPE'Ed EBG9TT'B9F'Td oo -d SOR'GSZ' LIV Td BUIYD)
jexydesboas
1230 bujpes) ubaiod [EER] UORNGUISI [E307 Hodx3 Adobage)

Ta0e



69

“D|OS PUR paJSAlED AR SINPoud U0 PUE SIUSLLYSAIMEI SU) Laym paysnes 51 uonebiqo aouswsopad sy
spanpoud pasedand pue paysiuy — 26E/2AG PUR POGY ,SHSON PUR , SIURITEISY
ieray

spoob 34y Jo 3)es pue Aasap uodn awg ul ud B 18 pIYsSOes 51
dnousy au Jo wopebygo ssuewuopad ay| ssund pue JajemM INUOS0D ‘saobusw "seusueq s UPns sPpnposd-ube Jaylo pue sepgejaboa pue s3ny
sanpoud ysauy Jauio pue sajgelaban pue syny jo spupy (@ BuRnqUIsp AjEao) pue Bupuodss AQ aonposd Ajjenb isaqg oyl smaaep dnousy UL

DOTIIs P essy ple o=y

TMGIBG pRZURWWNS ae suonebgo sousuwuoped 5,dnouD BU IN0GE USIIEWLICHUT

SUGMES0 soueunorad
ZB6BPL 80P 96B'TEBE'LIETd  OTE'PET 1Zd EZE P12 EOEd IPE L1P 99 1d [E101
BBS L8 = BES LB - = AJBADS pUB B5|YIURIY
TE9'LET'T - 129°LET'E - - safEJanaq PUR POOY HSODN
BRO'LOF'L - - - BB LOV'L UDISSILWND SjeS
ore'sLz’or - - ora'sLz’or - adng
91L'8Z6 LT - 91L'826°L1 - - sabeianaq pue pooy JuBInNeEysY
p0&'808 9, - - £8R'652"s LT0'6PS'TL JRAJRM JIUOCOT)
059°£90"9ET 059" £90"9ET = - = pogjeas
BFR'PEO'SST - - BrR'PES'SST - aafy
TE6'TEZ 90E TE6'TEZ 90E = - - BYRISA |BAI |RUMULICD PUR [RJUSDISIY
050'SBZ ERE 050'S8Z'EBE - - - 1abpeb pue aumyIng
BA5'SOF 90P 695 50T 90 - = = sjeualew buiping
ESL'PIP a9 £SL'PIP'ZRO - - - asIpueysaly
BI0'090" YL T EPE'9LS EOM TER'086d ZE6'0F0'ZETD THZ'TOP LB9 Td sajgejaban pue synu4
FUIT SIS /SP00D JO{RN
ZHGRPL 80P td  9GB'IRGSTEZd 9IBFET TEd ECE ¥1Z EOEd LVE LT 99 Td EEn
S9T'0¥6'SL = - - S9T0F6 SL SIRI0
OLL'PPE'E - - - 0LL"PPEE 1583 PP
EOt'E09 5 - = = EOF'E09'6 Buoy Guoy
BET'GPE"YIE - a18'PET"IT ETE"PIZ'EQE - sauddipug
GEP'TTOGEA'Ed  O68'TRELTIETd —d ~d EVS 629 LL9 Td Uy
rexyydesboas
(e Bujpes) uBjaJed UDIINGLISIP (#2307 vodxg Hobae3

[1E3ay
0E0E




] Franchize and royally income

Recognition of franchise fees is based on the purpose of charging the specific fees, Fees
relating to performance obligations are recognized when substantial ocbligations were
already performed. Royalty fees are recognized on a monthly basis at a certain

percentage of sales of the franchisees.

Foreign trading
. Lale of real estate property

The Group recognized revenue on the sale of real estate projects under pre-completed
contract over time during the course of construction. Sale of completed real property is
recognized in full at a paint in time upon transfer of control of the asset to the customer.

. Sale of merchandise, fruit and vegetables, building materials, furniture and gadgats,

seafood - fnished and prepared products

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the goods are delivered

amd sald.
Contract Balances

Mote 2022 2020

Trade recelvables - gross 7
Foreign trading P302,659,731 P243,500,237 P164,028,912
Export - distribution 112,286,244 279,497,902 157,708,268
Local - distribution 35,901,855 27,520,874 60,135,540
Reztail 15,065,340 13,109,250 11,877,665
P465,913,170 P563,628,263  P3I93,750,405

Trade recelvables are non-interest bearing and are generally due and demandable or are
collectible within 30 to 90 days. These are generally settled through cash payment or

application of customer’s deposit,

19. Equity

The issued capital of the Group are as follows:

_ 2022 2021
Capital stock P 872,831 688 832,831,688
Additional paid-in capital 3,602,050,960 3,602,050,960
P 4474,B82 648 4 434 BE2 648
Components of capital stock are as follows:

2022 2021
Preferred shares (Note 19.01) P 40,000,000 P =
Ordinary shares (Mote 19.02) B32,831,688 832,831,688
Lo 872 831 688 P 832,831 688

The movement in the Group's subscribed and paid-up capital is shown below:
2022 2021
Balance at beginning P 832,831,688 P 830,774,088
Paid-up during the year 40,000,000 2 057,600
Balance at end of year p B72.8B31 688 P EEIEEﬂliﬁﬂs
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Roliforward analysis of subscribed capital at par value is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year * 1,024,4496,888 P 1,024,446,888
Subscription during the year 40,000,000 ___ :
Balance at end of year B 1,064,446,888 P 1,024,446 BES

The movement in the Group's additional paid-in capital is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year P 3,602,050,960 F 3,567,071,761
Additions during the year
{met of subscriptions receivable of
P307 481 BE2 in 2022 and 2021)* - 34,979,199
Balance at end of year p 3,602,050,960 P 3,602,050, 960

=The subscription recelvable will be credited o additional paid-in caplital upon colteckian.
19.01 Preference Shares

The mowements in the carrying amount of the Group's preference shares are shown below.

2022 2021

Shares Amount Sharas Amount

Authorized
PO, 10 par value 400,000,000 P 40,000,000 - B -

Issued and fully paid
Balance, January 1 = =
Paid up during the yvear 400,000,000 40,000,000 = =

Balance, December 31 400,000,000 £ 40,000,000 = f =

At the annual meeting of the stockholders, held at its principal offices on September 3, 2022,
at which meeting a quorum was present and acted throughout, the stockholders representing
at least bwo-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock approved the reclassification of the
Corporation”s Forky Million (40,000,000} unissued common shares with par value of One Peso
{P1.00) per share, or an aggregate par value of Forty Million Pesos (P40,000,000), into Four
Hundred Million (400,000,000) voting preferred shares with par value of Ten Centavos
(P0.10) per share, or an aggregate par value of Forty Millien Pesos [(P40,000,000); with the
following features:

The preferred shares shall have the following rights, privileges, limitations, and restrictions,
which shall also appear on the Certificates of the Preferred Shares of the Corporation:

i.  The right to vote and be voted for;

li. The right to receive, out of unrestricted retained earnings of the Corporation,
participating dividends at the rate as may be deemed proper by the Board of
Directors under the prevalling market conditions or such other relevant factors as
the Board of Directors may consider. Said dividend maybe declared and payable at
the discretions of the Board of Directors after taking into account the Corporation’s
earning, cash flows, finandal conditions and other factors as the Board of Directors
may conslider relevant; and

iii. Inthe liquidation, dissclution and winding up the Corporation, whether voluntary or
otherwise, the right to be paid in full or ratably, insofar as the assets of the
Corporation will permit, the par value or face value of each preferred share as the
Board of Directors may determine upon their issuance, plus unpaid and Bocrued
dividends up to the current dividend period, before any assets of the Corporation
shall be paid or distributed to the holders of the common shares.,

The reclassification of shares was filed, and approved by the SEC on Movember 16, 2022,
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19.02 Ordinary Shares

Shown below are the details on the movements of ordinary shares.
The movement in the Group's authorized number of shares is shown bebow:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning L 2,000,000,000 P 2,000,000,000
Reclassification to preferred shares (400,000,000) -
Balance at end of year P 1,600,000,000 @ 2,000,000,000

The movement in the Group's subscribed and paid-up capital is shown below;

2022 2021
Balance at beginning o] B32,831,688 P 830,774,088
Paid-up during the year = 2,057,600
Balance at end of year P B32,831,688 P 832,831,688

Rollfarward analysis of subscribed capital at par value Is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning and end of year P 1,024,446,888 P 1,024,446 688

The movement in the Group's additional paid-in capital Is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year [ 3,602,050,960 P 3.567,071,761
Additions during the year
(net of subscriptions recalvable of
P307 481 BE2 In 2022 and 2021)* = 34,979,190
Balance at end of year B 3,602,050,960 F 3 602,050,960
*The subscription recelvable will be credited to additional paid-in capital upon collection,

Im 2020, Plentex Philippines, Inc. and the Group entered inbo a subscription agreement n
which the former agreed to subscribe for and the latter has agreed to issue a total of
6,172,800 common shares of the Group's authorized capital stock. The parties have agreed
that Plentex will subscribe for the shares in three (3) separate batches each of 2,057,600
common shares at a price of P18 per share. The subscription agreements have no definite
timeline and are based on the mutual agreement of both parties.

In 2021, the first batch of the issuance of shares pertaining to the subscription agresment
with Plentex Philippines, Inc. were made resulting to an increase in subscribed and paid-up
capltal amounting ta P2,057,600 and additional paid-in capital amounting P34,979,199,

The total number of shareholders of the Group is 42 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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The principal market for the Group's capital stock is the PSE. The high and low trading
prices of the Group's shares as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
High Low High Low
First 5.35 5.14 Pe.60 P6.20
Second 4.99 4.62 7.53 7.32
Third 5.84 5.55 7.95 7.80
Fourth 7.15 6.85 8.09 7.81

20. Basic/ Diluted Earnings [(Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net eamings (loss)
attributable to stockholders of the Group by the weighted average number of crdinary
shares in issue during the years.

20232 2021 2020

Met income (loss) from continuing

operations attributable to equity

holders of the Group (P10,559,987) P529.031,454 (P36,830,269)
Weighted average number of common

shares - subscribed and paid up 832,831,688 832,831,688 830,774,088
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)

per share {(P0.01) PO.64 {PD.04)

= The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of the
e subscriplions dufing the wear.

2022 2021 2020
Number of shares beginning of year 832,831,688 830,774,088 830,774,088
Weighted average number of shares
issued during the year - 057,600 -
Weighted average numbser of
outstanding common shares =
subscribed and paid up 832,831,688 832 831 688 830,774,088

Net income (loss) from continuing
operations attributable to equity

holders of the Group (P10,559,987) P529,031,454 (P36,830,265)
Weighted average number of common

shares - subscribed and pald up 832,831,688 B32831,688 830,774,088
Basic and diluted earnings [loss)

per share (P0.01) PO, 64 (PO.0s)
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21.Related Party Transactions

Mature of relationship of the Company and its related parties are disclosed below:

Related Parties Nature of Relationship
Greenergy Holdings Incorporated Affiliate
Agrinurture Development Holdings, Inc. Affiliate
Lite Speed Technologies, Inc. Affiliate
Ocean Biochemistry Technology Ressarch Inc, Affiliate
Sunchamp Real Estate Development Corp. Affiliate
Total Waste Management Recovery System Inc, Affiliate
Winsun Green Ventures, Ing, Affiliabe
Earthright Holdings, Inc. Stockholder
Plentex Philippines, Inc, Stockhaolder

Stockholder and key management

Officers officers personnel

The Company has transactions with related parties. For consolidated financial statements
disclosure purposes, an affiliate is an entity under common control of the Company’s
shareholders.

The Group has the following transactions with related parties:

Unsecured and non-interest bearing cash advances to/from its related parties for the
aoquisition of operating machinery and equipment and other investing activities and for
working capital purposes. These are payable on demand and usually settled In cash or
ather form of assets by way of liquidation.

On December 28, 2018, the Group and a third-party Individual entered Inbo an
agreement to form a joint venbure to dewvelop & property located in Taytay, Rizal,
Relative to this, the Group made a deposit amounting to P300.0 million to acquire a
portion of the 859 hectares, or a corresponding portion thereof, of titled and untitled
parcels of land,

In 2019, the Group made additional deposit amounting to P208.7 milllon which was
advanced by one of its stockholders. As at reporting date, the third party is completing
the titling of the whole portion of the property to fully execute the transactions.
The deposit shall be recognized as property upon the determination of the final amoaunt
and upon taking control of the related property (see Note 15).

A stockheolder persaonally guarantead several bank loans with its real estate property,
shares of stock and continuing suretyship of a stock (see Motes 17).
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d.

Details of the related party balances follow:

2022 2021

Due from:
Stockholders P255,683,304 P275,733,442
Entity under common ownership 259,743,852 282 628,054
515,427,156 558,361,496
Allowance for impairment losses (6,460,530) (6,460,530)
P508,966,626 _P551,000,966
2022 2021

Dhue to:

Stockholders P166,466,647 P149,573 250
Entity under common ownership 4,343,041 5,416,292

P170,809,688 P154,089, 542

The rollforward analysis of related party accounts follow:

2022 2021

Due from related parties:
Balance at beginning of year P551,900,966 PS38,254,012
Advances 91,539,289 258,799,714
Collections, settlements and liquidation (132,033,446) (245,152,760)
Balance at end of year P511,406,809 P551,500,966

Dwe to related parties:

Balance at beginning of year P154,989,542 P57,295,175
Advances 24,330,110 97,654,367
___Payments _(8,509,964) -
Balance at end of year P170,B00. 6B P154 989 542
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Due from Stockholders

Due from stockholders mainly pertain to advances to the Group’s President to be used
in the Agri-Sector Digitalization Program in partnership with government agencies
(see Mote 1). These are non-interest bearing advances, unsecured, not guaranteed and
no impairment and are generally collectible on demand and ko be settled in cash and
other assets through liquidation or offsetting with corresponding pavable. As at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the balance of due from stockholders is current.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The Group considers its President, Chief Finance Officer, Assistant Vice President as key
management personnel. Total remuneration of key management personnel, composed
mainly of short-term employee benefits and provision for retirement benefits for
executive officers, were included under "Personnel Costs™ and "Retirement Benefits™ in
the general and administrative expenses in profit or loss,

Detalls on the remuneration of key management personnel, as disclosed inm Mote 23,
are as follows:

20232 2021 2020
Short-term employee benefits P10,370,052 PL11,864,508 PO6LT.424
Post employment benefits 390,634 340,737 148,132

10,760,686 P12,205,245 P9,765,556
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22.Cost of Sales

This account consists of:

Note 2022 2021 2020
Inventories, beginning P412,853,.499 P330.821,276 P26, 220,253
Purchases snd oonvension cost 143,575,102 3 77 7,947
Eﬂ'ﬂﬁq_wd'l avaiable for sale 3,556,428.601 1964, 707,047 3,647 408,240
[nvenbaries, end B m,n:uﬂ luﬂdﬂ IEEI!! lll?l!.

Ilbl?tll 11 22 3,571,853 548 3,336, Sk, 564
Caost of goods sold of real property:

[nvenibories, Deginming 04,871,695 SP0.422 408 919 869,205
Msterials, development and ancillary cost 173,245,443 E32.816,855 156,261,566

Transfer from advances to contractors for
materiats, development and andillary cost 33 156,875,631 38,531,280 73,552,840
Trarsfer from CIP under nvesiman proparty iz 6,243 548 146,666,451 6B, 044, 3637
Cost of real property 1,241,236,315 1,388,437 404  1,328,628,053
[ifiy &hil B n?n,l-n!,m S04, B71 695 J58, 205,245
mél_-lgﬂ?l 483 565, 109 S0 422 808
Cast of goods sold B B3,427.B46,093 P4055410,257  BILAST.009,772

Purchases and conversion costs consist of:

Motes 2022 2021 2020
Tt of goods FL972,800,028 PIA60,073,696 P3216 149,040
Depredation and amortization i1, 27 44,682,378 50,292,282 45,750,461
Sadaries, wages ard benclits 18,403,485 18,673,650 i7 446,456
Rentals 27 14,861,923 1411738 5535 672

_Others 8 1 124 5 278,358

#3143 575,102 P3,663,685,771 P3.385, 167,987

Others Include production supplies, freight and handling costs, contracted services, gas
and cil, repairs and maintenance, talling, sales commission and utilities.

23. General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

Hotes 2022 20231 2020

Taxes and licenses F115,089,719 P125489,066 PL42,575,700
Personnel costs 94,665,017 100,475,256 98,460,618
Depreciation and amortization 11,13 41,036,947 30,594,293 46,922 479
Communication, light and waber 18,935,523 19,355,645 15,670,901
Transportation and travel 18,327,562 19,044,765 18,543,317
Representation and entertalnment 11,906,879 12,968,952 14,071,668
Advertising 7,150,886 6,431,200 5,159,262
Repairs and maintenance 6,937,694 3,213,345 5,308,513
Professional fees 5,259,484 7,140,085 5,415,570
Fredght and handling cost 4,462,035 4,323,266 4,655,563
Supplies 4,191,518 3,718,858 3,401,835
Retirement expense 25 3,568,127 3,144,004 1,554,161
Penalties 2,746,658 674,112 =
Contrached services 2,569,683 2,472,861 1,118,041
Rentals 27 1,525 480 2,233 654 2441 208
Bank charges 762,979 1,000,991 1,002 6878
Dues and subsoriplion d413,061 1,099,751 3,921 630
Insurance 183,965 184,044 S47,. 350
Impairment and write-off 7.9,13.21 - - 60,625 0GE
_Others 10,968,676 12,776,452 12,333,244

BI51, 703, 881 P3I65 349,633 P45, 129,055
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Personnel cost ane as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Salaries and wages PES, 305,308 PILOS405,729 o4 ETL 970
Other employee benefits 5,363,709 4,069,527 3,588 639

P24,668,017 P109 475,256  POE46061E

Other employee benefits Include 555, HDMF, Philhealth employer contributions and
13th month pay.

Others pertains to trainings and seminars, pest controls, mails and postages and printing.

24. Other Income - net

This account consists of:

Hobes 2022 2021 . P,

Met forelgn exchange koss (gain) 5,047,907 P{3.443,218) 2,737,146

Rental income > 1,228,069 1,155 469 1,039,523
Gain on reversal of allowance for

impairment 75 - 80,045,752 50,732

Gain on foregone leases 27 - - 1,870,017

Gther income 16 2,742,001 4,000,521 22,929 353

P, 018,067 PEL1,758,524  P28,627,171

Other income pertains to write-off of payables representing old balances and with no
follow-ups for daims, and also pertains to excess accruals, were derecognized in the
samé years, aftéer Management has determined that these are no longer part of the
Group's obligations (see Mote 1&).

25. Retiremant Liability

The Company has a single retirement plan under the regulatery framework of the Philippines.
Under R.A, Mo, 7641, the Company is legally cbliged to provide a minimum retirement pay
for qualified employees upon retirement. The framework, however, does not have a minimum
funding requirement, The Company”s benefit plan is aligned with this framework.

Under the funded plan, the employeas are antitled to retirement benefits equivalent to 22.5
days per year of credited service in accordance with R.LA. No. 7641 on attainment of a
retirement age of sixty (60) years with at least five (5) years of service. The payments for
the funded benefits are borne by the Company as it falls due.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was
carried out an January 3, 2022 by Miravite Consulting Group The present value of the defined
benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured
using the Projected Unit Credit Method (PUCM).

The following table summarizes the components of pension costs recognized in the Group®s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

Nota 2022 2021 2020
Charged to profit and loss:
Current service cost £2,301,207 PZ,466,198 POG3, 165
Het interest cost 1,264 920 677, 826 590,996
23 3,566,127 3,144,024 1,554,161
Charged (credited) to other
comprehensive income!
Net remeasurement gains (117,439) 4,042,199

£3,448,688 P7,186,223 P1,554,161
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Movement of retirement liability recognized in the consclidated statements of financial
position are as follows:

MNote 2022 2021

Balance at beginning of year P19,275,038 P12 088 815
Retirement benefits expense 23 3,566,127 3,144,024
_Remeasurement loss {gain) (117,439) 4,042,199
Balance at end of year P22.723,726 P19, 275,038

The rollforward of net cumulative remeasurement gain on retirement benefits as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 follows:

2022 2021
Net cumulative remeasurement loss [gain)
Balance at beginning of year P{67,B853) 3,974,346
Remeasurement loss {gain) 117,439 (4,042,199)
Tax effect 736,213 -
ot P785,799 (67,853)
Met cumulative remeasurement gain
attributable to NCI
Balance at beginning of year P(569,638) P
Remeasurement loss {gain) - {69.638)
P{69,638) PE9,638)
Net cumulative remeasurement gain on
retirement benefits PB55,437 P1,785

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment medical benefits
as well as the present value of the pension obligation are determined wsing actuarial
valuations, The actuarial valuation invelves making various assumptions. The principal
assumptions used In determining pension and post-employment benefit obligations for
the defined benefit plans are shown below:

2023 2021 2020
Discount rate 7.22% 5.20% 7.80%
Projected salary increase rate 5.00%; 5.00% 5.00%

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the defined benefit
liability is as follows:

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
December 31, 2022
Discount rate +/-1.00%  Decrease by 6.22% Increase by 8.21%
Salary increase rate +/-1.00%: Increase by 6.00% Decrease by 4.00%
December 31, 2021
Discount rate +/f=1.00% Decrease by 6.20% Increase by 4,20%
Salary Increase rate +/-1.00% Increase by 6.00% Decrease by 4.00%

&ll other assumptions are held constant In determining the sensitivity results above,

The estimated average remaining working lives of employees is 14 years for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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26. Income Taxes

a. The Group and local subsidiaries are subject to RCIT or MCIT whichever is higher. Forelgn

subsidiaries are subject to corporate income tax at statutory tax rate applicable to their

respective countries.

P44, 700,430 in 2022, 2021, and 2020 respectively.

& reconcillation of provision for income tax expense (benefit) for 2022, 2021 and 2020
applicable to income before income tax computed at the statutory Income tax rates

Income tax expense amounted bo P15,594,340, P35,796,748, and

follows:
2022 2021 2020
Income befiore noome kax P10,343,443 #1054 664,173 B53,261,939
_Muitiplied by statutory rate 25%/20% 25%/20% 0%
Income tax at statutory rate @ 30% . 15,978,582
fncome tax at statubory rate @ 25% 15,333,658 276,377,583 -
Income tax at statutory rate @ 20% (10,198,238} (2,169,232 -
Income tax effects of:
Changes in unrecognized deferred tax assets 8,787,952 (9,523,003) 34,784,997
Difference |n Lax rates 2,292 696 (X22,504,73%) (5977,119)
Hondeductible depreciation from
plecemeal revaluation 2,581 886 24659.859 -
Hondeductible expenses B29. 738 169 347 1,881,849
Provision for retirement expense 175,546 - -
Interest income subject to final tax - {5,765) {9,805)
Amortization of security deposit - 10,642 -
Effect of change in tax rate - (1,045961) -
Reversal of allowanoe - (2.235,600) '
Hontaxable income [3,665) - {22,957
Unrealired foreign exchange gain = (665) =
Application of NOLCO (608,721)  (1,133,378) (2,504,887)
Recognition of deferred tax assets (11,110,819) - -
_Applied/Expired MCIT (236,913) (3,606,125) (7631,725)
Total income tax = current and defermed 7,843,120 36,802,673 36,658,935
rred | Eax & bmefit | (7,751,220) 1,006,125  {B,001,505)

Casrrent Income ExXpeEnSE

P15

PAS, TO6, 748 Pdd, TO0AT0

€. The Group reviews deferred tax assets at each financial reporting date and recognized

these to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

= The Group have recognized deferred tax asset from the following:

Allpwrancs
Ratiramant for
benelit Impalrmant
abligatisn PFRS 16 losEEE Total
Balanoe &t Jamusry 1, 2021 Pe F3E7,049 P PIA7, 049
Recognized In profit or loss - (248,024 ) - {348,034}
_Effect of change In tax rate 3 (129,016} : {139,018)
Balance at December 31, 2021 - 10,009 = 10,009
Recoghlned in profit or loss 3,156,745 (2,273} TEIL AT 11,036,218
i drthaer
Ww" IMCE T 736,218 - - 736,216
December 31, 2022 Lt} i1 Lot ] PrETL TAT P11 772444
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* The Group has unrecognized deferred taxes from the following:

Notes 2022 2021 2020
Allowance for impairment losses 7,915 P72,231,359 71,169,018  P46,321,911
NOLCO 25,126,814 5 733,030 33,128,024
Retirement liability 25 1,254,831 4,505,052 3,626,645
MCIT 485,145 1,731,776 6, 1B5,034
Unrealized foreign exchangs loss = D6 489 fB129
P99,108,149 P83 235 365  PE9,339, 743
d. The Group recognized deferred tax liabilities from the following:
Galn on chamngs |n Unrealized
Rawalusthon falr walue of foreign
Increment Blological assets  exchange galn Total
Balance at Jaruary 1, 2021 P8, 737,251 P- = PE, 737,251
Recognioed i profit or loss - 5,969,783 - 5,989,783
Recognized in other

COMOrefensive incomes 17,335,743 . = 17,335,743

—feckof changgin tax rpte {1,456, 208) - - f1,436,200)

Batanos at Dacember 31, 2021 24,616, 786 5,989, TE3 = 30,606,569

Eecoagrired in profit or loss = 1,374,478 1,200,520 3,274,998

Recogrined in other
n (2,611 834 = = {2611 834}
lamce ok December 31, 2033 [ar 853 P7,364 761 530 [ 733

& The deferred income tax expense (benefit} amounted to (P7,751,220), P1,006,125, and
(PB,001,505) in 2022, 2021 and 2020. Income tax benefit in 2022, 2021 and 2020 also

includes applied MCIT whose cormesponding deferred tax asset was previpusly not
recognized amounting to nil, P3,485,638 and P7, 716,905, respectively.
f. HMet Operating Loss Carry-Ower (NOLCO)

= Detalls of NOLCO from 2018, 2019 and 2022 are as follows:

Applied  Applied

Year Previous  Current Explry
Incurrad AFount Ye&ar Year E'n!Erl!uI l..ln.lE_l_ll!ﬂ Diaka
2018 P13,360,100  P2,899,773 - PLOEG0,336 p- 2021
2019 27,881,057 231,455 27,649,602 - 2072
202 44,258,106 - - 44,258 106 2025

499,271 P3.131.238 - P38 109,938

P44,258,106
= [Details of NOLCO covered by Revenue Regulation Mo. 25=2020 Is as follows:

Pursuant to Section 4 (bbbb) of Bayanihan II and as implemented under Revenue
Fegulations (RR) Mo, 25-2020, the net operating losses of a business or enterprise
incurred for taxable years 2020 and 2021 can be carried over as deduction from gross
income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years immediately following the year of

such loss.
Applied
Year Pravious Applied Explry
Incurred  Amount ¥ear Current Year  Expired  Unappliad Date
2020 PES, 404 032  P1,023,724 #32,130,158 P P51,250,150 2025
2031 30,135 820 - - - 30,125,820 2026

PB5,5289,852 P1,023,724 P3,130,158 P- P81,375870
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g. The Group incurred MCIT which can be claimed as deduction against future tax due as
follows:

Applied
Year Previous Applied Expiry
Incurred Amount Year  Current Year ired Unapplied Drate
2019 P1,310,020 p- P14l 494 P1,168, 526 B- 2023
200 335,504 - o7 920 . 237,584 2023
FiiFd 223,601 = B2 679 B 180,922 2004
2022 116,639 - - 116,639 2025
P1,985,764 P- __ P322,093  PL168,526  P495,145

h. The Group opted for the itemized deduction scheme for its income tax reporting In 2022,
2021 and 2020,

27.Leasa Agreements

Group as a Lessar
The Group has an operating lease arrangement of its property to a third-party construction
company.

The lease has a term of one year commencing from January 1, 2018 subject to an annual
review and renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties. The lease contract was renewed
in 2022 and 2021 for another twelve [12) months from date of renewal. Refundable deposit
pertaining to this lease amounted to P121,511 (see Note 16).

The lease agreement includes clause requiring the lessee to be liable when the property has
been subjected to excess wear-and-tear during the lease term. This strategy minimizes the
risk exposure to residual value of the underlying asset.

Estimated future minimum lease receipts to be collected to lessee not later than one (1) year
as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to P1,234,669 and P1,155,469, respectively.

Rental income from the lease amounted to £1,228,069 in 2022, P1,155,469 in 2021 and
£1,039,923 In 2020, respectively (see Note 24).



Group as a Lessee

The Group leases machinery, transportation equipment and store premises from third parties
under finance lease agreements ranging from four (4) to seven (7) years.,

1. Right-of-use assets

The balance and movements of ROU assets relating to the lease of machinery,
transportation eqguipment and store premises is as follows:

2022
Discount on
Leases m Total
Cost T
Balance P152,759,108 P198,692 P152.997 8
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of year 73,113,059 198,692 73,311,751
D!(E‘I‘aﬂal:ﬂnn during the year
ote 22} 20,163,978 = 20,163,978
Balance at end of year 93,277,037 198,682 93,475,729
Met carrying value P59,522,071 P- P59,522,071
2021
Discount on
= Leases rental deposit Total
Balance P152.799. 108 plog 602 P1SZ 007 8O0
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of year 49,186,609 145,481 45,332,090
I:re[macminn during the year
te 22) 23,926,450 53,211 23,979,661
Balance at end of year 73,113,059 198,652 73,311,751
Met carmying value P75 686,049 P-  P79,686,049

iI. Refundable Deposit

The balance and movements of refundable deposits as at December 31, 2022 and 2021
folbow:

MNote 2032 2021

Carrying value as at beginning of year P9, 712,625 P10,728,536
Deposits made during the year 394,169 -
Refund on deposits recelved during the
year = (1,015911}
Total refundable deposits 10,106,794 9,712,625
Refundable deposits on short berm leases 9 (8,211,446) (7,B17,277)
Moncurrent refundable deposits 1,895,348 1,805,348
Refundable deposits other than leases 15 (698,724) (698,724)
Carrying value as at end of year of

refundable depasits related to leases 9 P1,196,624 Pl 196,624

Relative to the leases, the Group's refundable deposit amounted P17,103,579 and
P16,664,768, respectively, as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, which is equivalent to one
month lease rental based on rental rate applicable on the last year of the lease term. The
refundable deposit is presented under "Prepayments and other current assets™ and "Other
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 (see Notes 9 and 15).

Accretion income on refundable deposits amounted to nil, nil and PES,EB7, respectively.



I, Lease Liabilities

The balance and movements of lease liabilities as at December 31, 2022 and 2021
relating to the leases above follow:

2022 2021
Balance at the beginning of vear P&09,632 P5,892,020
Payments of lease lability (334,211) (5,466,702)
Amartization of interest 43,051 184,314
Met carrying value 318,472 609,632
Less: current portion 318,472 291, 160
Noncurrent portion - P318,472

At each reporting date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2022 2021

Mok later than one (1) year P334,210 P334,211
_Later than one (1) vear but not later than five (5] vears - 334,210
P334,210 PBES,421

IV, Short-term Leases
The Group leases office spaces, warehouses, residential units, warehouse equipment
under lease agreements usually for a period of one (1) year, renewable subject to the
mutual consent of the lessor and the lessee without any escalation clause.

V. Amounts recognized in profit or loss:

Note 2022 2021 2020
Cost of services: 22
Amortization of ROU P20,163,978 RZ3,979.661 F24,794 847
Rent expense
relatimg to short-
term lease 14,861,923 1,411,738 3,233,672
Operating expenses: 23
Rent expense
relating to short-
term lease 1,525,480 2,232,654 2,441,208
Other incame:
Interest cost on lease Hability 43,051 184,313 716,137
Rental income £d 1,228,069 1,155 469 1,039,923
Gain on foregone leases 24 = = 1,870,017
Accretion income on discount
on refundable deposit - £ 69,687

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the lessors provided rent concessions to the Group
in the farm of rent-free periods and discounts. The Group accounted these rent
concessions as not a lease modification. The rent concessions resulted to a decrease of
lease llabilities amounting to P1,870,017 as at Decemnber 31, 2020 and to the recognition
of gain on forgone leases In 2020 of the samea amount.

Income tax benefit amounting to P2,273, P248,025 and P2B4,600 in 2022, 2021 and
2020, respectively, relates to the adoption of PFRS 16 (see Note 26).
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28.Financial Risk Management and Capital Management Objectives and Policles

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments consist of cash, trade and other receivables
[excluding advances to officers and employees), due to and from related parties and
stockholders, borrowings and lease labilities. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is tofimance the Group’s normal course of its operating activities. The Group has various other
financial assets and fimancial liabilities such as refundable deposits under "Prepayments and
other current assets” and deposits and other non-current assets and trade and other payahles
(excluding government payables and customers’ deposits) which arise directly from its
operations,

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, lquidity risk,
market risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The BOD reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below:

= Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the potential loss arising from any fallure by counterparties to fulfill
their obligations, as and when they fall due. It is inherent to the business as potential
losses may arise due to the fallure of its customers and counterparties to fulfill their
ohligations om maturity periads or due to adverse market conditions.

a. Credit risk exposure
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group's financial
assets, without taking into account any collateral and other credit enhancements as
at December 31, 2022 and 2021

Maotes 2022 2021
Fimancial assets at amaortized costs;
Cash in banks 6 P97,791,247 P48,316,792
Trade and other receivables - net 7 607,909,542 622,022,383
Due from related parties - net 21 508,966,626 276,167,524
Due from stockholders 21 231,032,240 251,082,378
Refundable deposits = net 9,15 10,392,479 9 853,668

£1,456,092,134 P1,207,542,745

The table above excudes financial assets and financial liabilities of subsidiaries
accounted for using the liquidation basis of accounting (see Mote 29).

b. Credit guality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Group using internal credit

ratings and is classified into three:

{a) high grade which has no history of default;

(b} standard grade which pertains to accounts with history of one (1) or two (2)
defaults; and

(c) substandard grade, which pertains to accounts with history of at least 3 payment
defaults.
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The table below summarizes the credit quality of the Group's financial assets based
on its historical experience with the corresponding parties as at December 31, 2022
and 2021:

IEF
Helther past dise nor
—_— Ampalred
Past dua but
High grade Standard grade notimpaired  Impalred Taokal

Cash -PPa, 720,870 PIS 080 [ - P98, 764,930
Trade and othes

recelvables =  GO7T.909. 543 229807176 51,571,808 A9, 2H8,534
Cue from related parties = SOB966.626 = 6,400,530 515 427,156
Cwe from a stockhalder = ¥31.032,240 - - 30,0053, 240
Financial assets at FVOCT = 8,233, B0 = = 48,223,200
Refundable deposits = 10383470 = @711 106 A7 103 579
Totad 29 870R 559 147 P239.807.176 P1.7959,839 629

2021
RERnEr Pt dus nor impained
Past due but
High grade  Standard grade  not impaired Trrgalred Tatal

Cagh PEO, 041, 285 PLIESTT P [ PB0,177 966
Trase and cifer

recelvables . 52E.908,065 153,024,547 51,571,806 733,504 418
Due from related parties . 76,167,524 E 5,460,530 162,628,054
Due firom & stockdholder . 158,082,376 = = 151,082 378
Financial assets at FWOCI . 47 801 400 = - 47,801,400
Ratundybis Jeposity = Sy N R S 1y 8 Py L I | P
H O1,380 P1. 104 12 PLS3.024 547 PE4 T43 435 P1411 858 984

The table above excludes financlal assets and financial Habilities of subsidiaries
accounted for using the liquidation basis of accounting (see Mote 23).

¢ Cash in banks classified as high grade are deposited and invested with banks with
good credit training and can be withdrawn anytime, Standard grade cash in
banks are those deposited under rural banks.

= High grade receivables pertain to recelvables from third party buyers of real
estate of the Group and program partners who consistently pay before the
maturity date. Standard grade receivables are receivables that are collected on

their due dates even without an effort from the Group to follow them up.
Both high grade and standard grade receivables currently have no to minimal
history of default.

» Due from related parties and stockholder are assessed as standard grade since
the Group practices offsetting of receivables and payables.

« High-grade refundable deposits are accounts considered to be high wvalue,
The counterparties have a very remote likelihood of default. Refundable security
deposits assessed as standard grade are refunded upan termination aor fulfilmént
of agreement,

Below Is the aging analysis of past due but not impaired trade and other recelvables:

30 to 51 to Mare than
Trade 60 days 90 days 90 days Total

1022 £28,729,075 P68,248,012 P132,830,089 P229,BO7,176
2021 p32.491,172 P29 458 416 P91,074,955 P153,024,547




c.

Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or activities in the same gepgraphic region or have similar
economic features that would cause thelr ability to meet contractual obligations ta
be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations Indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry or gesgraphical location. Such credit
risk concentrations, if not properly managed, may cause significant losses that could
threaten the Group’s financial strength and undermine public confidence. The Group
is not exposed to large concentrakion of credit risks.

Impairment assessment

The Group applles general approach for determining the expected credit losses of
cash in banks, nontrade receivables, due from related parties, due from a stockholder
and refundable deposit, A credit loss is the difference between the cash flows that
are expected to be received discounted at the original effective interest rabe and
contractual cash flows in accordance with the contract. The loss allowance for
financial assets is based on the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The management provided allowance for impairment of due from related
parties amounting to P6,460,530 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively
and refundable deposits amounting to P&,711,100 as at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively (see Motes 9 and 21).

The Group applies the PFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To measure
expected credit loss, receivables were grouped based on days past due and grouped
the customers according to their profile. The expected loss rates are based on the
historical credit losses within the period of time, The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information affecting the ability of the
customers to settie the receivables.

The Group has identified GDP of Asia Pacific continent to which the principal entities
of the Group’s customers are based as the most relevant factor, and accordingly
adjust historical loss rate based on the changes on GDP growth rates. The Group has
identified GDP of the Philippines as the most relevant factor for its local and related
party sales.

Based on the above basis, the loss allowance on receivables after specific
identification as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 was determined using the expected
loss rates as follows:

20232
1to 30 days Ower 30 to 60 Owver 60 to 90 Over 90 days
st dus dua da dug d
Expected loss rate
Export 0.00% 0.00% 0,00 % 0.00%
Local 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%: 0.00%
Related party 0.00% 0.00%: i0.00% 0.00%
FilFd
1o 30days Over300p 60 Ower &0 to 90  Over 30 days
past due  days past dus  days past due past dus
Expected loss rate
Export 0,00 0.00% 0. 0 0. 0
Local 10, D3 0.00% 0. 00% 0. 0%
Related party i0. 00 0. 00%% 0,10 0. D0



Total allowance for Impairment losses on trade receivables from the simplified
approach of measuring ECL amounted to P48,055,688 as at December 31, 2022 and

2021, respectively,

Total provision for Impalrment losses recognized under "Operating expenses” account
in profit or loss amounted to nil, nil, P5,504,378 in 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respectively (see Note 7).

Liguidity Ris}

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due under normal and stress circumstances. To limit the risk, the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet operating capital requirements. The Group also
micnitors the maturities of its financial assets and financial liabilities and ensures that it
has sufficient current assets to settle the current liabilities.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities and

assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 based on undiscounted payments;

2023

Due within Due beyond

Hotes  On demand one {1} year one (1) year Tatal
Financial assets
Cash £ POB,764,930 P P~ P98,764,930
Trade and other recelvables - et 7 - BO7,908,542 = 607,909,542
Due from refated parties 2l 508,956,616 - = 508,066,626
Due from & stockholder 21 231,032,240 - = 231,052,240
Financial assets at FVOCT 10 48,233,200 - - 48,223,200
Refundstle deposits = net 8 15 5,652 406 2,065,707 1,77 1 7
639 PEL 245 PL1.774.276 P1.50 g1F
Dtther Rrarcial Mabilitias
Trade and other payables 16 - PEIS 455099 B~ PEIO, 455,000
Disk b related parties 21 19,537,659 - - 160,517,650
Barrawings 17 - BI1,970,630 §13,970,630
Leass lisbilities 27 - IAWATE - 318,472
Flﬁ!I!EEIEI FIEE&J-I-_-I-‘EI. P HE?_‘,I?I&
FLiF3
Due within ~ Due beyand
Notes D cemand one (1) year  one (1) year Total
Financial araels
Cash & PEO,177, 966 P P- PEO, 17T, 566
Trade s other receivables = net 7 . 622,022,383 622,022,383
Due from related parties 21 276,167,524 - 276,167,524
Due from a stockhalder 21 251,082,378 - = 251,082,378
Firancial assets at FVOCH 10 47,801,400 - - 47,601,400
_Refundable deposits - net g, 15 5 53 408 2,526,896 1,774,276 8,053 658
FE'H:I.TH FE.E,E‘.I'B Bl 78, 275 Fl.!!?:2D5:! 19
Cither Maancal DabiWies
Trade and other payables Lé B P520,260,660 P-  P520,289,660
Due to related parthes i1 153,560,134 . 153,560,134
BorTowings 17 - 937,995,081 29,372,043 967,367,124
Loase llabilities 7 - 291, 160 FiE 472 60632
153,580,134 ©1,458,575,001 F29,690,515 P1641846,550

The table above excludes financial assets and financial liabilities of subsidiaries accounted
for using the liguidation basis of accounting (see Mote 29).
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss to future eamings, to fair values or to future cash fows that
may result from changes in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial
instrument may change as a result of changes in foreign currency exchanges rates and
interest rates,

Fareign currency sk

Foreign currency risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its consolidated financial statements and cash flows.
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure generally arises from
cash in banks, trade receivable and payables, deposits, borrowings and lease liability in
Renminbl (RMB}, Hong Kong Dollar (HK$), United States Dollar (USS) and Australian
Dollar (AU$). The Group did not seek to hedge the exposure on the change in forgign
exchange rates between the RMB, US$, HKS, AUS and the Philippine Pesos. The Group
does not generally believe that active currency hedging would provide long-term benefits
to stockholders.

The Group's policy s to maintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits and
within existing regulatory guidelines, The Group believes that its profile of foreign
CUFrEnCcY exposure on its assets and liabilities is within conservative limits for an
institution engaged in the type of business in which the Group is invalved.
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The equivalent exchange rates of one foreign currency in Philippine peso as at
Decamber 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
uss 56.1200 P50.774
AUS 37.80 36.81
RME 8.04 7.97
HES 6.51 6.51

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's Income before income tax in 2022 and 2021 are

a5 follows:
2022 2021
Increase Increasea
(decrease) [decreass)
_Currency in rate MNet effect in rate Net effect
RMEB 1.30%: 66,888,361 1.30%; 66,EER, 361
(1.30%) (66,888,361) (1.30%) (66,288,361)
HE$ 1.02% 10,998 1.02% 10,998
(1.02%) (10,998) (1.02%) (10,998)
uss 0.95% 120,547,405 0.95% 120,547,405
(0.99%%) (120,547,405} (0.99%) (120,547, 405)
ALS 2.60%: 25,940,055 2.60% 25,940,055
(2.60% 25 940 055 2.60% 25,940,055

Foreign exchange loss is as follows:

2022 2021 2020

Realized foreign exchange loss [gain) P2,558,270 P428, 836 (P2,998,371)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) _ (7,606,177) 3,014,382 261,225
(P5,047,907)  P3,443,218 (P2,737,146)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its cash deposits in banks which
are subject to variable interest rates while its borrowings at fixed interest rates.
The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining appropriate fixed rate borrowings.

The interest rate risk arising from deposits with banks Is managed by means of effective
investment planning and analysis and maximizing investment opportunities in various
local banks and financial institutions.,

Profit for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 would have besn unaffected
since the Group has no borrowings at variable rates and Interest rate risk exposure for
its cash In bank, which is subject to variable rate, is very Immaterial.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capltal management is to ensure that the Group has
sufficlent funds In order to support thelr business, pay existing obligations and maximize
shareholder value. The Group considers advances from related parties as capital,

The Group's policy Is to maintain sufficlent capital to cover working capital requirements. The
Group obtains advances fram related parties to cover inadegquacy in working capital.
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As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group considers the following accounts as capital:

2022 2021
Capital stock P872,831,6B8  P832,831,688
Additicnal paid-in capital 3,602,050,960  3,602,050,950
Due to related parties 170,809,688 154,989,542
Total capital P4,645,692,336  P4,589,872,190

The Group has no externally imposed capital requirement. No changes were made in the
chjectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

29. Fair Value Measurement

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying values and estimated fair values of
Group's financial instruments as at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Goi basis of H
2022
:Immun:
Hotes  Carrying walue Fair valus inputs
Financial assets
Cash [ POE, 764,930 POE, 764,930 POE, 764,930
Trade and other receivables = et 7 607,909,542 607,809,542 607,509,542
D frem relabed parties = net i1 508,966,626 S08, 966,626 S08, 966,626
D from a stockhalder i1 231,032,240 231,032,240 231,032,240
fefu e - 8, 15 10,392,479 10,392,479 10,392,479
1,457,065,817 1.457,065,817 1,457,065,817
Financisl atsets gt FOCT 10 22X 200 A8 223 200 200
P1. 505 280,017 P 280,017 p 2B9,017F
Financial Eabilithes
Trade payables and ather payables 16 P530,455,080  P530,455,099 P539,455,069
D bo related parthes i 188 527,659 189,527,659 186,527,659
Bormowings: 1 B2, 970,630 B22,970,630 B11,970,630
Lease llabilities 27 318,472 318,472 318,472
P15 271,860 P 171 860 P 271
2071
Significant
Mokes Carrying valse Fair valug ghservabls inputs
Financipl assats
Cash [ R0, 177,966 PE0, 177 066 PEO,1TT 0966
Trade and other receivables - net ¥ 622 023,383 622 022 383 622,022,383
Duwse from related parties - net 21 276,167,524 276,167 524 276,167,524
Duse from & stockholder 21 251,082,378 251,082,378 251,082,378
Refundable depasits - not g, 15 9 .953 668 9,953 658 9,953 668
1,239.403,219 1,239,403,919 1,239,403,91%
Financial assets at PYOLT 10 47 81 400 47 801 400 47,801,400
Pi, 287 205 319 pi 287 205 319 Pl 2EY, 205,310
Financial liabllities
Trade payables and other payables 16 PS20,209 440 PSXD, 269 660 PRS0, 269,660
Due to related parties 21 153,580,133 153,580,133 153,580,133
Borrowings 17 OE7 367,124 S6F 367,124 Q6T 367,124
Leace |labiitias 27 609 532 GO 532 BiE, 633
Fl,641, 846 549 #1641 846,548 Bl 641 B4G 549




Liguidation basis of accounting

2022 2021
Financial assets measured at net realizabla value

Cash in banks P15,930 P17, 266
Trade and other receivables - net 3,753 3,753
Due from a stockholder 24,651,064 24,651 064
P24,664,747 24,672,083

Financial labilities at amortized cost: =
Trade payables and other payables P18,255,771 P17,994,671
Due to related parties 1,282,029 1,400,409
P19,537,800 P19,404,080

Methods and Assumptions Used to Estimate Fair Value
The Management assessed that the following financial instruments approximate their carmying
amounts based on the methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values:

Cash in banks, trade and other receivables, refundable deposits, due to/from related parties
and stockholders and trade and other payables.

The carrying amounts of cash in banks, trade and other recelvables, due to/from related
parties and stockholders, current refundable deposits and trade and other payables
approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The fair value of noncurrent refundable deposits from long-term lease contracts is the present
value of the discounted expected future cash flows using the incremental borrowing rate.

Borrowings

The carrying value of borrowings approximate their fair values as their interest rates are
based on market rates for debt with the same maturity profiles at the end of the reporting
period,

Lease labilities
The fair values of lease payable are based on the present value of future cash flows discounted

using the current rates avallable for debt with the same maturity profile as at the end of
thereporting period.

There has been no reclassification ameng the levels of hierarchy during 2022 and 2021,
28.01 Fair Value Determinations of Asset

The following provides an analysis of assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis subsequent to Initial recognition at falr value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which inputs to valuation technigues are observable:

= Laevel 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markats for idantical assets or liabilities:

# Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from Imputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(l.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and

= Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unocbservable inputs).
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£3.00.01 Fair Value Hierarchy

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Level 3 2022 2021
Assets:
Biological assets P54,335,337 P59,301,732
Property and equipment 290,222,875 316,229,570
Investment property 1,349,544,703 1,188 425 936
£1,694,102,915 P1,563,957,238

The following are the valuation techniques used to derive level 3 fair values of the following
assets:

Assets:

Property and equipment: In valuing the land Market Approach was used which Is the
moest common technique for valuing land, and is the most preferred method when
comparable sales are available, With this method, sales of similar property or parcels of
land are analyzed, compared, and adjusted to provide a value indication for the property
being appraised. The comparison process 15 based on an analysis of the similarity or
dissimilarity of the comparable, Cost Approach was used for the improvements while a
combination of the Market and Cost Approach was used for the machinery and
equipment. The Cost Approach generally involves the following steps: (a) The value of
the subject land is normally estimated by the Market Data or Sales Comparison
Approach. In instances where available market data is sufficient, the Income Approach
(Residual Method) can be used, (b) The depreciated cost of the subject improvement is
estimated by calculating the direct cost of reproducing or replacing the improvement,
deducting accrued depraciation from all sources, and adding the indirect costs attributed
ta the improvement. Combining the estimates shown above results in the indicated value
of the subject property by the Cost Approach,

Blologlcal assets: The fair value was derived using the market approach. Market approach
is a valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant information generated by market
transactions involving identical or comparable assets. Under market approach, the most
significant input into this valuation is the fair value less estimated costs to sall in an active
market.

Investment properties: The fair wvalue was derived usimg the market approach.
Market approach is a valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets.
Under market approach, the most significant input Inko this valuation is the price per square
foot.

Financial assets at FVOCI: The fair value of financial asset at FVTOCI could not be refiably
determined because it does not have gquoted market price in an active market, thus, cost is
a good approximate of its falr value.

The Group has no financial instruments that are carried at FYPL.

29.01.03 Highest and Best Use

The Company's investment properties are currently held for capital appreciation. However,
in both vears, the Company assessed the highest and best use of the investment properties
from the perspective of market participants. The investment properties in combination with
other assets and labilities could be leased out to others to earn rental income. Management
believes that the current use of the Investment properties is the asset's highest and best use,
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30. Moncontrolling Interast

Moncontrolling Interests represents the eguity in subsidiaries not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Group. The details of the account are as follows:

2022
Balance at Comprehensive Balance at
baginning of year income (loss) end of year
Fucang P1,179,042,278 P(6,623,560) P1,172,418,718
ANI HK 114,798, 585 - 114,798,585
TBC {32,408,953) (2,121,880) (34,530,833)
FFCI (19,108,729) (425,857) (19,534,586)
FI (2,944,544) - (2,944,544)
FGP 1,883,298 (77,765) 1,805,533
Heppy (780,323) (11,432) (791,755)
P1,240,481,612 P{9,260,494) £1,231,221,118
2021
Balance at Comprehensive Balance at
beginning of year income (loss) end of year
Fucang P726,608,406 P452,433,872 P1,179,042,278
ANI HE 114,758,585 = 114,798,585
TEC {31,886,805) (522,148) (32,408,953)
FFCI (18,631,691) (477,038) (19,108,729)
FI (2,944,544) - (2,944,544)
FGP 1,918,629 (35,331) 1,883,258
Heppy (766,442) {13,881) (780,323)
P789,096,138 P451 385,474 P1,240,481,612
2020
Balance at Comprehensive Balance at
beginning of year income (loss) end of year
Fucang P670,512,126 P56,096,280 P726,608,406
ANI HK 114,491,013 307,572 114,798,585
TBC (39,853,641) 7,966,836 {(31,886,805)
FFCI (15,214,395) (3,417,296) (18,631,691)
FI (2,944,544) - (2,544,544)
FGP 1,871,048 47,581 1,918,629
Heppy {556,038) (210,404) (766,442)
P7.28,305,569 PG60,790,569 P789,096,138

31.Business Combination

Acquisition of Lexian

As discussed in Note 1, Fucang acquired Guangzhou Lexian Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. {Lexian),
a foreign entity incorporated in Ching engaged in wholesale industry in 2018. Fucang owns
70% equity interest in Lexian which is eguivalent to RMB700,000 divided into 70,000 shares
at RMB10.0 per share (equivalent to P7,160,000 divided into 70,000 shares). Lexian Is an
indirect subsidiary of Agrinurture, Inc. (the Group) owning 51% equity interest in Fucang.

The cost of Investment is equivalent to Fucang's share in net assets of Lexian at the date of
incorporation. As such, no goodwill or investment income was recognized from the business

combination,
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31 Sagment Information

The Group has identified Its operating segments based on internal reports that are reviewed
and used by the Chief Executive Officer (the chief operating decision maker) in assessing
performance and in determining the allocation of resources. The operating segments
identified by the management are a5 follows:

Exports

The Export segment is in charge of looking for markets abroad as well as sourcing the best
quality produce possible to satisfy its growing number of clients abroad. Its maln export
products are fresh banana, fresh mango, and coco-water.

Local Distribution

The Local Distribution segment s responsible for the local sales and distribution of various
produce that the Group offers to a number of supermarkets around Luzon,

Retall

The Retail segment is responsible for the management and operation of the Group's retail
businesses.

Foreign Trading

The Foreign Trading segment is charge of the international distribution cperations of the
Group in Hong Kong and China.

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. In addition, the
Group's reportable segments also include geographical areas for local and foreign operations.
Foreign operations are included under *Foreign Trading® and local operations are included
under the remaining reported segments.
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33. Notes to Consolldated Statements of Cash Flows

Balow are the non-cash activities of the Group in 2021 and 2020:

Transfer from Transfer to Motes 2022 2021
Investment property Inventories 12, 22 6,243,546 146,666,451
BAdvances to Investment 12

contractors property 156,875,631 38,531,280

CIP under investment property that are determined to be sold in the normal operating cycle
are reclassified to property for sale under inventories (see Mokes 12 and 22).

Long-term advances to contractors represent noninterest-bearing down payments to third
party foreign contractors for real estate projects and fixed assets under construction. These
were reclassified to its related asset accounts upon determination of its purpose (see Notes
11, 12 and 22).

The net movement in long-term advances to contractors before reclassification is included

in the net changes In other noncurrent assets in the consolidated statements of cash flows
In 2022 and 2021.

34. Reconciliation of Liabilities from Financing Activities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities as shown in the consolidated
statements of cash flows is as follows:

2022 2021
January 1 P1,078,942, 507 PE50,095,912
Changes from financing cash flows
Avallments of loan 187,300,000 335,314,386
Advances from related parties 24,330,110 97,694,367
Payments of borrowings (331,696,494) (154,855979)
Interest (55,480,757} [(44,023,791)
Advances from related parties (8,509,964) -
payment of lease liabllity (291,160) (5,282,388)
_December 31 P894,594,242 P1,078,942,507
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35. Reclassification of Comparative Amounts

Certain amounts in the comparative consolidated financial statements and note disclosures

have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. The reclassifications of
comparative amounts are as follows:

The foregoing reclassifications have an impact on the opening consolidated statements of
financial position as of January 1, 2022 but did not have any impact on prioer year's profit or
lozs and consolidated statements of cash flows.

Amount as of
December 31,

Current Classification Previous Classification 2021

Consolldated Statements of

Financial Position
Du& from related partles - net  Dua from stockholders

Due from stockholders Due from stockhalders [ H 275,733,442
Consolidated Statements of

Comprehensive Income
Finance costs Other Income (charges)

Finance costs Finance costs 41 955, 386

Management believes that the above redassifications resulted to a better presentation of
accounts,

36. Events after Reporting Period
36.01 Equity Restructuring

On March 27, 2023, the Parent Company's application for equity restructuring to
wipe-out the deficit as of December 31, 2021 in the amount of P1,628,045,535
against the additional paid-in capital (APIC) of £3,602,050,960 was approved
considering that all the requirements have been complied with provided that the
remaining APIC of P1,974,005,425 cannot be applied for future losses that may be
incurred by the Parent Company without prior approval of the SEC.

S?r ﬂ'“'l!r Matters

a. On March 19, 2014, a request for assistance was filed by Mr. Jens Sorensen against the
Group and/or Antonio L. Tiu in the National Labor Relations Commission (NLRC) - NCR
Arbitration Branch for the illegal dismissal with money claims, Based on the DOLE-SENA
Form No. 1 attached to the Notice of Conference, Mr. Sorensen is seeking the following
reliefs: (1) payment of money claims; (2) reinstatement; (3) back wages; (4) damages
in the amount of $500,000; and (5) attorney’'s fees in the amount of ®B500,000,
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The last meditation conference was held on April 23, 2014, There being no possibility for
the partles to reach anm amicable setttement, the meditation officer terminated the
mediation proceedings. Mr. Sorensen filed a formal complaint with the NLRC and both
parties already submitted their respective position papers and replies thereto. The case
is now submitted for resolution. The labor arbiter rendered a decision finding that there
was illegal dismissal, but with modification as to the amount being claimed for back pay
and damages. Baoth parties filed their respective motions for partial reconsideration. Both
parties appealed the decision to NLRC, but the latter sustained the findings of the labor
arbiter, Subsequent motions for reconsideration were denied. Both parties appealed the
decision with the Court of Appeals (CA). The Group prayed for a temporary restraining
order for the execution of the award of the laber arbiter pending appeal, but no resolution
has been received. The CA partially granted the Group’s appeal by ruling that
Mr. Sorensen is not entitled to separation pay and found that Mr. Tiu is not solitarily liable
with the Group to pay the monetary award. However, the CA sustained the award for
back wages. Both parties filed their motion for partial reconsideration, which were both
denied by the CA. Thereafter, both parties filed their respective petitions for review on
certiorari before the Suprema Court (SC) which were consolidated in the second division
of 5C. As of date, the Group has not received any decision from the SC in relation to the
Case.

Mo provision relative to the above case was recognized in the consclidated financial
statements as at December 31, 2022 as the case is still ongoing.

IMEX filed a case for estafa against several individuals who were members of the board
of directors and officers of Tolman, Advance payment to Tolman Manufacturing Inc.
["Tolman™) for future acquisition of equipment necessary for pre-processing, sterilization,
aseptic storage and clean in place station for coconut water amounted to P30.6 million as
at December 31, 2022 and 2021. The Group has angoing criminal action against Telman
to recover the advanoe payment mentioned. In 2019, the Group filed a complaint-affidawit
charging the directors, officers and shareholders [respondents) of Tolman, with the crime
estafa, The Group alleges that during the negotiation stage of the Shareholders
Agreement, respondents represented to the Group that Tolman Is In the process of
increasing its authorized capital stock from which the shares of the Group will be ssued
upon the latter's delivery of cash, equipment and other resources. Relying on such
representation, the Group entered into a Shareholders Agreement and delivered to
Tolman P30,000,000 cash, UHT processing equipment worth P134,000,000 and lease
payments in the amount of P46,000,000. Despite receipt of said cash, equipment and
lease payments, respondents failed to issue the Group's shares of stock., Worst, no
application to increass the capital stock was ever made before or during the existence of
the Shareholders Agreement. In the resolution dated January 29, 2021, the Office of the
City of Prosecutor of Makati finds a sufficient ground to engender a well-founded belief
that the crime of Estafa under Article 315, paragraph 2 (a) was committed by respondent
Emmanuel ¥V, Duenas. The amount s guaranteed by a stockhelder in the event of an
adverse result of the gngoing case, Due to the foregoing, the total putstanding receivables
of the Group from Tolman is considered to be fully recoverable as at December 31, 2022,
In addition, the assets of Actron Industries, Inc., Jemana Holdings, Inc. and Duenas in
Todman exceeds the clalms of the Group against the outstanding receivables, A civil case
has now been filed to further pursue for the overall claim of the Group against the
concerned parties.
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PKF R.S. Bernaldo & Associates PKF

REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Dampaol II-A, Pulilan

Bulacan

We have issued our report dated April 5, 2023 on the basic consolidated financial statements of
AGRINURTURE, ING. AND SUBSIDIARIES as of and for the year December 31, 2022, Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
statermnents of AGRINURTURE. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES taken as a whole. The information in the
index to the consolidated financial statemnents and supplementary schedules as of and for the
year December 31, 2022, which are not required parns of the consolidated financial statemants,
are required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Such information is the
responsbility of the Management of AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic consolidated
financial staterments. In our opinion, the information is fairdy stated in &ll material respects in
refation to the hasic consolidated financial staternents taken as a whaole,
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Schedule I

AGRINURTURE, INC.

SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, Beginning P (1,628,045,535)
Net income based on the face of audited financial statements 25,276,838
Less: Dividend declarations during the year - Property -
Dividend declarations during the year - Cash -
Derecognition of Dividend Income from an Associate -
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net (prior year) -
Appropriations of retained earnings -
Reissuance of treasury stock -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (current year) 7,602,079
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax) (5,688,090)
Fair value adjustment of Biological Assets resulting to gain 7,643,425
Sub-total 9,557,414
Net loss actual/realized 15,719,424
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, Ending P (1,612,326,111)

Note: The presentation of reconciliation of retained earnings is based on Financial Reporting Bulletin No. 14 dated January 24, 2013.



Schedule Il

AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MAP SHOWING RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN AND AMONG
DIRECT AND INDIRECT SUBSIDIARIES

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Shareholding and Business SEnsciure

AgriNurture, Ine. |
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AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule A - Financial Assets
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Name of issuing entity and

association of each issue

Number of shares or
principal amount of bonds or
notes

Amount shown on the
balance sheet

Income accrued

Guangzhou Tianchen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

458,431,117

458,431,117




AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSDIARIES

Schedule B - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and
Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Receivables

Stockholders 255,683,304
Affiliates/Entity under common ownership 253,283,322
508,966,626




AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule C - Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated
during the consolidation of financial statements

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Payables
ANI FCAC IMEX BCHAC FGH FGP LFVPL FI GANA TBC HC FFCI ANI HK FUCANG Total

Receivable:
ANI - 192,851,155 180,469,891 80,758,584 611,138 508,859 568,623 - 3,024,256 - 2,364,532 - 112,476,388 399,546,964 973,180,390
FCAC - - 3,001,449 33,862,689 - - 82,975,581 10,553 - 157,908 - - - - 120,008,180
IMEX - - - - - - - - - 7,109,517 - - 7,123,316 - 14,232,833
BCHAC - - - - - - 1,191,425 180,000 - - - - 2,416,834 - 3,788,259
FGH - 53,972,457 - - - - - - - - - - - - 53,972,457
LFVPI - - 1,500,000 - - - - - - - - - - - 1,500,000
FI - - 75,000 - - - - - - - - - - - 75,000
TBC - - - - - - - - 20,500 - - - - - 20,500
HC - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

- 246,823,612 185,046,340 114,621,273 611,138 508,859 84,735,629 190,553 3,044,756 7,267,425 2,364,532 - 122,016,538 399,546,964  1,166,777,619




AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule D - Long-Term Debt
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Title of issue and
type of obligation

Loans with Land

Amount shown under caption
“Current portion of long-term
debt’ in related balance sheet

Amount authorized
by indenture

Amount shown under
caption “Long-Term Debt”
in related balance sheet

Interest Rate

%

Maturity Date

Bank of the
Philippines

146,000,000.00 29,053,571

6%

2/28/2023




AGRINURTURE. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule E - Indebtedness to Related Parties

(Included in the consolidated financial statement of position)
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Payables
Stockholders 166,466,647
Affiliates/Entity under common ownership 4,343,041
170,809,688




AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule F- Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Name of issuing entity of
securities guaranteed by the
company for which this statement
is filed

Title of issue of each class of
securities guaranteed

Total amount of guaranteed and
outstanding

Amount owned by person of
which statement is filed

Nature of guarantee

None to Report




AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule G - Capital Stock

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Title of Issue

Number of shares

Number of shares issued and
outstanding as shown under

Number of shares reserved for

Number of shares held

Directors, officers and

authorized the related balance sheet | °Ptions, warrants, conversion by related parties employees Others
- and other rights
caption
S;’E:m stock - 1 par 1,600,000,000 832,831,688 10,631,467, 269,004,169 37,326,291 515,869,761
Preferred stock - 0.10
par value 400,000,000 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 - -




AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE IV - FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020

2022

2021

2020

A. SHORT-TERM LIQUIDITY RATIO

CURRENT RATIO

Current Assets
Current Liabilities

1.76

2,823,165,705

1.69

2,883,483,421

1.71

2,398,159,236

1,602,010,967

1,708,914,608

1,401,700,534

WORKING CAPITAL TO ASSETS

(Current Assets - Current Liabilities)

0.21

1,221,154,738

0.20

1,174,568,813

0.23

996,458,702

Total Assets

5,861,104,817

5,936,621,547

4,363,078,053

B. LONG-TERM SOLVENCY

ASSET TO EQUITY

Total Asset
Shareholders' Equity

1.39

5,861,104,817

1.43

5,936,621,547

1.54

4,363,078,053

4,205,100,391

4,148,134,817

2,828,140,123

DEBT TO EQUITY

Total Liabilities
Shareholders' Equity

0.39

1,656,004,426

0.43

1,788,486,730

0.54

1,534,937,930

4,205,100,391

4,148,134,817

2,828,140,123

LONG-TERM DEBT TO EQUITY

Long-Term Debt
Shareholders' Equity

0.013

53,993,459

0.019

79,572,122

0.047

133,237,396

4,205,100,391

4,148,134,817

2,828,140,123

FIXED ASSETS TO EQUITY

(Fixed Assets - Accumulated Depreciation)

0.44

1,867,497,891

0.45

1,882,653,280

0.35

981,662,162

Shareholders' Equity

4,205,100,391

4,148,134,817

2,828,140,123

CREDITORS EQUITY TO TOTAL ASSETS

Total Liabilities
Total Assets

0.28

1,656,004,426

0.30

1,788,486,730

0.35

1,534,937,930

5,861,104,817

5,936,621,547

4,363,078,053

FIXED ASSETS TO LONG-TERM DEBT 34.59 23.66 7.37
(Fixed Assets - Accumulated Depreciation) 1,867,497,891 1,882,653,280 981,662,162
Long-Term Debt 53,993,459 79,572,122 133,237,396
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RETURN ON INVESTMENTS

RATE OF RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS

Net Income

Average Total Assets

0.00

2,500,323

0.21

1,057,861,300

0.00

16,563,014

5,898,863,182

5,149,849,800

4,374,563,227

RATE OF RETURN ON EQUITY

Net Income

Average Stockholders' Equity

0.00

2,500,323

0.30

1,057,861,300

0.01

16,563,014

4,176,617,604

3,488,137,470

2,798,577,564

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

GROSS PROFIT RATIO

Gross Income
Revenues

0.11

408,981,386

0.11

493,869,121

0.12

511,739,210

3,836,827,479

4,549,288,378

4,408,748,982

OPERATING INCOME TO REVENUES

Income from Operations

Revenues

0.01

57,277,495

0.03

128,519,499

0.02

66,610,155

3,836,827,479

4,549,288,378

4,408,748,982

PRETAX INCOME TO REVENUES

Pretax Income
Revenues

0.00

10,343,443

0.24

1,094,664,173

0.01

53,261,939

3,836,827,479

4,549,288,378

4,408,748,982

NET INCOME TO REVENUE

Net Income
Revenues

0.00

2,500,323

0.23

1,057,861,300

0.00

16,563,014

3,836,827,479

4,549,288,378

4,408,748,982

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

Earnings Before Interest and Tax

Interest Expense

1.178 27.066 2.266
68,331,191 1,136,659,559 95,339,699
57,987,748 41,995,386 42,077,760

12
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